IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA -

Electronically Filed

May 08 2020 10:13 a.m.
RALPH EDMOND GOAD, No. 79@Wazyabeth A. Brown -

Clerk of Supreme Court
Appellant,

Vs.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.
/

Appeal from a Judgment of Conviction in Case CR19-0999
The Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada
Honorable David Hardy, District Judge

JOINT APPENDIX VOLUME ONE

JOHN L. ARRASCADA CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
Washoe County Public Defender Washoe County District Attorney
KATHRYN REYNOLDS JENNIFER P. NOBLE

Deputy Public Defender Chief Appellate Deputy

350 South Center Street, One South Sierra Street,

5th Floor 7th Floor

Reno, Nevada 89501 Reno, Nevada 89501

Attorneys for Appellant Attorneys for Respondent

Docket 79977 Document 2020-17492



- TABLE OF CONTENTS

Court Minutes: Decision on Motion to Admit Evidence

of Motive, held on July 30, 2019......ccvveriiiiriieiniiiiiiiininnn. 2 JA 265
Defendant’s Offered and Rejected Jury Instructions

filed on August 9, 2019.......cccciiiiiiiiiiniiinne s s 9JA 1320
Judgment of Conviction, filed on October 3, 2019.........cccennen. 9 JA 1366
Jury Instructions, filed on August 9, 2019.......cccvvvviniviiiininnn. 9 JA 1282
Indictment, filed on June 12, 2019.....cccemmeecramsssscsssssosssanpessassios 1JA1
Motion in Limine Re: Other Act Evidence,

filed on July 8, 2019.....cvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 1JA 34
Motion to Admit Evidence of Motive, filed on July 3, 2019............ 1JA4
Motion to Preclude Or Limit Use of Prejudicial Photographs,

filed on July 8, 2019...cciiivriririiiiiiici 1JA 41
Notice of Appeal, filed on November 4, 2019.........cccvvviniinnannn. 9 JA 1368
Opposition to Motion in Limine Re: Other Act Evidence,

filed on July 18, 2019.....iviiieiiiiiiieiiiie e 1JA 94
Opposition to Motion to Preclude or Limit Use of Prejudicial
Photographs, filed on July 18, 2019.......ccccoiiviiiiiiiiiiniinin. 1JA 84
Opposition to State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Motive,

filed on July 11, 2019......cccciviiiiiiinins danssavirisam ssarsssesoins e 1JA 46
Order, filed on July 30, 2019......coiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 2 JA 266

Order, filed on August 9, 2019.....c.cvriiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiri e, 9JA 1328



Reply in Support of Motion to Admit Evidenee of Motive,

filed' om July: 22; 201D mmrr, semmmrmmsmms. o msmasamsesmmmn oo sasmmsmms: s 1JA 110
Second Supplement to Exhibit, filed on July 22, 2019............... 1JA 101
State’s Exhibit 15, admitted on August 8, 2019........cc.cevvinnnnee. 8JA 1114
State’s Exhibit 19A, admitted on August 7, 2019.........c.ceeeee. 8 JA 1140
State’s Exhibit 20A, admitted on August 8, 2019...........ee.e. 8 JA 1152
State’s Exhibit 21A, admitted on August 7, 2019.......cccvvennen. 8 JA 1162
State’s Exhibit 22, admitted on August 22, 2019..........cceeeevnnn 8 JA 1170
Stipulation and Waiver of Jury Penalty Hearing,

filed on August 9, 2019.....coviviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 9 JA 1326
Supplement to Exhibit, filed on July 12, 2019.......covvvviininiennnnn. 1JA 64

Transcript of Proceedings: Pretrial Motions,
held on July 23, 2019...... simsssascasensisavsss s ws s esexess 2JA 178

Transcript of Proceedings: Jury Trial,
lieldh on=Julyi 815 200Dz .. . 5 3 55 ™ Fls Jr 755 o5 o, T o[ 5016 T 5o T o106 0578 o 555 2 JA 267

Transcript of Proceedings: Jury Trial,
held on August 5, 2019.....cccvviriiiiiiiiiiiiiii 3JA 273

Transcript of Proceedings: Jury Trial,
held on August 6, 2019......cevvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii 4 JA 511

Transcript of Proceedings: Jury Trial,
held on August 7, 2019......cviviiiiiiiiiiiiriiriiiiniieeaeaes 5JA 720

Transcript of Proceedings: Jury Trial,
held on August 8, 2019....c.ovvririiiriiniiie i 6 JA 813



- Transcript of Proceedings: Jury Trial, e
held on August 9, 2019......cevviiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiii i, 7JA 1044

Transcript of Proceedings: Sentencing,
held on October 2, 2019.....iiiiriiiiiiiieieinirieieniieiie et 9 JA 1330

Verdict, filed on August 9, 2019.......c.covviiiiiiiiiiiininiiiiiinn 9JA 1324



3 Pages
05:00 PM

DC-09900089647-007
GOAD (D4)

[

I

CR15-0999
. 8TATE ¥S. RALPH

J

o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

06/12/2019

District Court
Washoe County

1795
GGTNR

CODE 1795 F E L E y

DA #19-2557

RPD RP19-003098

Christopher J. Hicks

$7747 JUN 12 2019

One South Sierra Street

Reno, NV 89501 JACQUELINE BRYANT, CLERK
(775) 328-3200 Y DEPUTY G

€ IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* K *
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Case No.: CRI94-0999
o Dept. No.: H
RALPH GOAD,
Defendant.
/
INDICTMENT

The defendant, RALPH GOAD, is accused by the Grand Jury of
Washoe County, State of Nevada, of the following:

MURDER WITH THE USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, a violation of NRS

200.010 and 200.030 and NRS 193.165, a category a felony, (50001) in

the manner following, to wit:

‘ That the said defendant, RALPH GOAD, on or about January
22, 2019, within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did
willfully, unlawfully, and with malice aforethought, deliberation,
and premeditation, kill and murder Theodore Gibson, a human being, by
means of stabbing the said victim with a deadly weapon, which was a

knife, scissors, or other sharp force instrument, thereby inflicting




10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

mortal injuries upon Theodore Gibson from which he died on or about
January 22, 2019; or,

That the said defendant, RALPH-GOAD, on or about January
22, 2019 within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, did willfully
and unlawfully kill Theodore Gibson in the perpetration or attempted
perpetration of a robbery and/or burglary in that.the killing
occurred when the defendant did enter Theodore Gibson’s room or
apartment at 33 Park Street #205, Reno, with the intent to éommit
larceny, robbery, assault, or battery and thereafter did take or
attempt to take pgrsonal property from the person of Theodore Gibson
or from his presence against Theodore Gibson’s will- by means of force
of violence or fear of injury to the person, and in the course of the
crime did stab Theodore Gibsocon with a deadly weapon, which was a
knife, scissors, or other sharp force instrument, inflicting mortal

injuries upon Theodore Gibson from which he died on or about January

22, 2019.
AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030
The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain t ocial security number of any person.

Dated this J :2 day of June, 2019.

CHRISTOPHER J.
District

By

"AMOS STHGE :
9200
Deputy Distri ttorney

PCN RPD0044113C-GOAD
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The following are the names of witnesses examined before

the Grand Jury:

MONIQUE WARNECKE
VICTORIA JUAREZ
PATRICK BILLINGS
DAVID MILLSAP
DAVID L NEVILLS
SCOTT A NAPIER
BERNARD ROBINSON
GLEN SOLBERG
MADISON DAHLQUIST
ELLIE KOEDER
MONICA SIEWERTSEN
DR. KATHERINE CALLAHAN

"A TRUE BILL"

- ;Z;fJﬂ? 724?51L/

"OREPERSON

"NO TRUE BILL"

FOREPERSON
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CODE 2490

Christopher J. Hicks
#7747

One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501

(775) 328-3200

Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

* k&
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No: CR19-0999%
V. Dept: D04
RALPH GOAD,
Defendant. P

MOTICN TO ADMIT EVIDENCE OF MOTIVE

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through CHRISTOPHER J.
HICKS, District Attorney of Washoe County and AMOS STEGE, Deputy
District Attorney, and files this Motion to Admit Evidence of Motive.

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings
on file herein, the attached points and authorities in support
hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if deemed necessary
by this Honorable Court.

/77
/17
/77
/17

a
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

The victim and the defendant lived on the same floor of the Park
Manor Apartments, the victim in apartment 205 and the defendant in
213. The men were friends. They each used the same payee service to
manage payment of their rent from their Social Security benefit. But
at the end of 2018 the payee service closed. The victim found a new
payee service and his rent continued to be paid. The defendant did
not, and as a consequence, his rent was not paid for the month of
January!. Eviction proceedings were initiated. He was served with a
five day notice on January 11, 2019. The Justice Court granted the
eviction and the Sheriff locked him out on January 30, 2019.

According to records, the victim received two government
benefits: $482 monthly VA benefit, and $583 Social Security benefit?.
The defendant’s only benefit came from Social Security in the amount
of $7803. Upon closing, the payee service issued a final check to the
defendant of $253.90 on November 5, 2018. As he had no new payee, the
defendant would have had no income since that date.

The victim is last known to be alive on January 18th?%. The
victim was likely murdered on January 22nd. A wall calendar in the
victim’s apartment had every day in January crossed off up to the
23rd5. His body was not discovered until February 13th. His body

wore evidence of over two hundred stab wounds. The body was covered

1 See Exhibit 1, eviction packet.

2 5ee Exhibit 2, 2018 lease income statement and Exhibit 3, victim payee documents,

3 See Exhibit 4, defendant payee documents and Exhibit 5, 2016 lease income
statement (listing annual income of $8,088).

4 Tn that he is last seen on surveillance video entering his apartment and never
leaving.

5 IT.e. the 22nd was crossed out, the 23rd was not. 5

2
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with a blanket. The victim’s wallet lay on the floor open, next to
the body, its contents strewn about. It contained no cash. In the
victim’s right front pants pocket was $45 cash. Of note, the victim
was laying on his right side, with this pocket was underneath him.

A review of hallway video surveillance shows only two people
entering the victim’s apartment after January 18th: the victim and
the defendant. After the 22nd, the defendant enters the apartment on
two dates: twice on January 23rd and once on January 25th. Goad is
never seen on surveillance after January 30th.

Police located the defendant in Sacramento, California on or
about March 7th and arrested him for murder.

Admissibility of Eviction

The Court should allow testimony surrounding the eviction of the
defendant under the following theories: 1) res gestae, and 2)
evidence of motive.

The defendant is charged with murder under two theories: open
murder, and felony murder on a robbery motive.

The general rule of law pertaining to the “complete story” or

res gestae is set forth in NRS 48.035(3) and Dutton v. State®. The

State is entitled to present full and accurate account of
circumstances of commission of a crime. The Dutton court held,

“[A]ll the facts . . . necessary to prove the crime
charged in the in(dictment), when linked to the chain of
events which support that crime, are admissible. The
state is entitled to present a full and accurate account
of the circumstances of the commission of the crime, and
if such an account also implicates the defendant or
defendants in the commission of other crimes for which

6 Dputton v. State, 94 Nev. 461, 581 P.2d 856 (1978) overruled on other grounds in
Gray v. State, 100 Nev. 556 (1984).

3
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they have not been charged, the evidence is nevertheless
admissible.” Dutton at 464.

Apparent from the Nevada Supreme Court’s holdings, is the preference
for permitting the State to present a full and accurate picture of
the offense charged. As applied here, the chain of events that
supports the crime begins with the failure to change payees, flows
through the eviction, then the murder, and finally the defendant’s
flight to California.
Motive

Under NRS48.045(2) evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts 1s
not admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show
that the person acted in conformity therewith. It may, however, be
admissible for “other purposes, such as proof of motive, opportunity,
intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake
or accident”. The Nevada Supreme Court has interpreted this rule to
include “a presumption of inadmissibility attaches to all prior bad
act evidence”?. . In order to overcome the presumption of
inadmissibility, the prosecutor must request a hearing and establish
that: (1) the prior bad act is relevant to the crime charged and for
a purpose other than proving the defendant's propensity, (2) the act
is proven by clear and convincing evidence, and (3) the probative
value of the evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger
of unfair prejudice®. As applied here, the court should admit the

prior acts as evidence of motive for murder. Specifically, the

? Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. 108, 117, 270 P.3d 1244, 1250 (2012)
8 Td.
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defendant’s destitute financial situation (no money) and subsequent
eviction (no place to live) provides motive for robbery and/or
murder.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 3rd of July, 2019.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By /s/ Bmos Stege
AMOS STEGE
9200
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY E-FILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of
the Washoe County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date,
I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court. A
notice will be sent electronically to the following:

James “Jay” Slocum
Deputy Public Defender

Dated this 3rd of July, 2019.

/s/DESTINEE ALLEN
DESTINEE ALLEN
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IN THE JUSTICE’S COURT OF RENO TOWNSHIP
COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA

Case No. REV2019-000111

Park Manor
Landlord Department 6
Vs,
Ralph Goad
Tenant LOCKOUT ORDER
/

UPON APPLICATION duly and regularly made by Park Manor, Landlord, and proof thereon
being supported by a swon affidavit on the.date hereinafter mentioned, and good cause appearing therefore,

. IT IS HEREBY ORDEREDL., ADJUDGED AND DECREED AS FOLLOWS:

That the Sheriff of Washoe County, or one of their duly authorized agent, are hereby directed to

remove each and every person found upon and within those certain premises located at 33 8 Park Street #213

Reno; NV 89502, Washoe County, Nevadd within 24 hours after receipt of this order.

DATED: January £3, 2019,

‘{? /70}"} st

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

| hereby ceriify'-tﬁé'i' the docume

i : ument to which {
certificate is affixed s a full, truﬁe-and corrgtl:?
copy of the original document found in ‘the records
or files of the Reno Juaties Court.

Reno Justice Court
By: - O%
Deputy Clerk of-the Court

12
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IN THE RENO TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW%:‘{ LER THoras
YYSTICE op,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE | ;
b Y%fﬁ
bEPUTY

Park Manor ) Dated: 1/31/2019
PLAINTIFF )
) Civil File Number: 19000558
Vs )
Ralph Goad ) CASE No.: REV2019000111
DEFENDANT )
DECLARATION OF SERVICE

STATE OF NEVADA }
} sse
COUNTY OF WASHOE }

Bryan Radli, being first duly swom, deposes and says: That affiant is a citizen of the United States, over 18
years of age, not a party to the within entered action, and that in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, personally
served the described documents upon:

Posted: Ralph Goad
Location: 33 § Park Street #213 Reno, NV 89502
Date: 1/30/2019 Time: 11:00 AM

The document(s) served were: EVICTION ORDER

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law provided of the State of Nevada that thé foregoing is true and cofrect,
No notary is required per NRS 53.045.

DARIN BALAAM, SHERIFF

./Cj€;4~hz/<[“‘ﬂ{l:
By:
Sheriff’s Authorized Agent

Northern Nevada Community Housirig
PO Box 20604
Reno, NV 89515

| hereby certify
ificata oY thatithe do

certificate jg afixad 'is fs:;mfrﬂt to which this

copy of the origina » IUe ‘and corrggt

I'docume
or files of the Reno Justice gtofuort:nd " the recards

Reno Justice Court
By: L

S )
Deputy Clerk of the Gouyrt .

911 PARR BOULEVARD, RENO, NV 89512-1000 (775) 328-3310

13
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Submilled 1/23/20
CLERK OF

Accepted: 1/23/2(

IN THE JUSTICE COURT RENO TOWNSHIP,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE, STATE OF NEVADA

Owner's Name: L dNwoac, LLL

Business Name: oy VA DCUY
Agent's Name: ._)cuap Ao Gva i ane
Address: PO2oy._2 Olat

City, State, Zip: Lo\, 0 1s) 995
Phorie: 'T}S 537. OII%Y [0"}‘

E-Mail 3 il @0
Landlord,
Ve . REV2019-000111
Case No.
Tenant’s Name: R oA\ Crocd] Dept. No.:
Address:_33S . Poont. S, H 2213
City, State, Zip: ReN0,0 W19 SQ;I:
Phone:; LANDLORD AFFIDAVIT FOR.
E-Mail___ SUMMARY EVICTION FOR
Teénant. NONPAYMENT OF RENT

Landlord: or Landlord's authorized ageiit states as follows pursuant to NRS 40.253:

1. I am the (check one box) O owner or &O\mer’s- agent of the rental premises located at

(nsert rental 's address)_s_f) 5, T\)Cl.'(‘ﬂ_ Seppd ’P"‘ 213 . Reno ,Nevada.

28 The tenancy stacted on (insert date) '\D\‘ \ "11 A010

3. The amount of Tenant’s rent is (frisert amount) $ L‘l’ qO'UO per (check

one) lﬁ.m'on_th, O week, J other (specify)

4, Tenant paid the following deposits in advance (insert amounts): (1) rent deposit of
$ 3 (2) sccurity deposit of $ ?t XO -0-("J i (3) cleaning deposit of
h) ; and/or (4) other deposit $ (specify)

5. Tenant's rent became delinquent on (inserf date) \\1 W \l\ 9 , and Tenant has

remained in possession without paying rent since 2D d_(ngS(inserl length of time Tenant did not pay
rent).

6. I verified Tenant continued in possession of the rental premises following the expiration
of the Five-Day Notice to Pay Rent or Quit on (insert date you checked rental premises)_\,‘l_a_s _I_]ﬁ_

at (insert time you checked rental premises) q 00 Fla.m. Op.m.

-1- RIC 4/16/2018

nically Filed
912:31 PM
HE COURT
Reno Civil
19 2:56 PM

Case Number: REV2019-000111

14
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Electronically Filed

Submilled 1/23/201
CLERK OF T

Accepted: 1/23/2(

7. Tenant has not complied with the obligations of tenants set forth in Chapter 118A of the

NRS by defaulting on the rent.

8. Tenant owes the following amounts:
$ l"\'qDOO in rent (from _\‘_\_LZOJﬁ_ to_}} 20_]_9_ );
$ SD'OO in late fees;
$ in dishonored check fees;
3 in unpaid security deposit;

0
8 S O in other costs/fees (you must describe in detail each

cost/fee and reference the Lease provisions (séction and line) authorizing their recovery)

5520 Renk Stex Daugment (n Prcops Mo,

$ S "-J’S.ob TOTAL rent/charges are now due and delinquent.
9. Tenant was served ‘with a written notice to pay rent or quit on (insert dale notice served)
l\‘ \t\\q in compliance with NRS 40.280. A copy of that notice must

be attached with the Certificate of Mailing to this Affidavit.
10. Tenant (check one box) [J did not sign a written rental agreement, or Mdid sign a
written rental agreement. A copy of that agreement must be attached to this Affidavit,
THEREFORE, Landlord asks the Court to enter an Order for Summary Eviction of Tenant,
Pursuant to NRS 53.045, 1 declare under penalty of perjury that this Declaration is executed in

the County of Washoe and under the laws of the State of Nevada, and that the foregoing is true and

correct,

V| a3|\9 %ﬁm!mm_ W W

(Date) Type'or print name)

=K RIC 411672018

912:31 PM
1E COURT

Reno Civil

19 2:56 PM

15



Electronically Filed

Submilled 1/23/2018 12:31 PM
CLERK OF THE COURT
Reno Civil

Accepted: 1/23/2019 2:56 PM

FIVE-DAY NOTICE TO PAY RENT OR QUIT

TO: FROM: Park Manor
Tenant(ﬁi Name(s) Landlord’s Name/Business Name

33 5. Park Street § Z.}% PO Box 20604

Address Address

Reno, NV 89502 Reno, NV 89515

City, State Zip Code City, State Zip Code
775.337,9155 x103

Phone No. Phone No.
parkmanor@nnch.org

E-mail Address E-mail Address

Date of Service: \ ' “ ‘\q Manner of Service:

[ 1Personal
[ ] Substituted/Mailing
[*] Posting/Mailing
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that you are in default in payment of rent for the above described premises in the sum of §
Bqﬁw for the period ).\ ‘q to \.=\.1C . ‘Rental payment(s)
became delinquent on _\.4¢».1 G

Your failure to pay. rent, leave the premises, or contest this Notice within five (5) judicial days:' {Judicial days do not
include: the date of service, weekends, or certain legal holidays) may result in the landlord applying to the Justice of the
Peace of Reno Township for an Eviction Order.

If the Justice of the Peace determines that you are guilty of an unlawful detainer, the Justicé of the Peace may thereupon
issile 2 summary order to remove you from, or provide for your non-admittance to, the above described premises that
directs the Coustable or Sheriff of this County to remove you within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of the Order.

The tenant is hereby advised of his right to contest this Notice by filing with tlie Justice of the Peace of Reno Township an
Affidavit stating that he is not in default in the payment of rent,

The Affidavit must be filed with Reno Justice Court located at 1 So. Sierra St,, Reno, NV 89501 no later than noon on the
fifth full judicial day following the dat¢ of service. The Affidavit may be accessed on the Reno Justice Courts website:
htipsswvwwvawvashoceounty.us/vje/forms php.

Pursuant to NRS 118A.390, you may seck relief if a landlord un]awfully removes you from the premises, or excludes you
by blocking or attempting to block your entry upoun the premises, or willfully interrupts or causes or permits the
interruption of an essential service required by the rental agreement or Chapter 118A of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

Ve mailing of service is used, Landlord musl file with the court a “certificate of mailing” issued by the United States Post Office
pursuant to NRS 40.280(3) (JCRCP 6(a)).

RIC 6/26/18

16



Electronically Filed
Submitlled 1/23/2019 12:31 PM

CLERK OF THE COURT
- _ Reno Civil
Landlord PROOF OF SERVICE Summary Eviction (NRS 40.251-40.260) Accepted: 1/23/2019 2:56 PM
JUSTICE COURT, RENO TOWNSHIP Washoe, Nevada e
Owner's Name: '—‘)ﬁ L VoD | Le
Business Name:_ I poenl W e Qv
Agent's Name, 3)‘_4_",_ o [yt e
Adelress: \-:)D_,\..)\.,L_!t'._r::lf_d_u(__‘%'L I Check One:
City, State, Zip \D_£X0, 5 j(} e : AR o
Phone: -:1-1:_3 3 7.9 ‘.s_‘f\]l)'-' - % Nonpayment of Rent Notice
E-Mail B%mm%éhhbh_ R 0O No Cause Notice
Landlord, 0O Nuisance/Waste Notice
Tenant's Name: Q Gon d B 0 Unlawful Detainer Notice
;I‘ffd: 0ss:_52 VPR 331'_-_"-'&'.3.13 e (3 Unlawfual Entry Notice
g‘?)";imw' 2ip) -&S\D WL 5049‘ o * O Breach of Contract
E-Mall MUST ATTACH A COPY OF THE NOTICE
Tenant.
On (insert date of service) \\‘ \\\l \4 « I served this notice in the following manner (check only one):

0 By delivering a copy (o the Ienant(s) personally, in the presence of a witness (server, witness; and tenant must all sign landlord's copy of
notice below);

-OR-
O 1 attempted personal service in the presence of a wilness wha signed below but the tenant(s) was absent from tenant'’s place of residence or
business or found the tenant: but tenant would not sign so I lefl a copy with (insert name) , & person of
suiitable age and diseretion AND mailed! a copy to tenant(s) place of [J residence or [ business.
-OR-

ﬁ Lattempted personal and substituted service above in presence of a witness who signed below but because [ could not find the lenant at tenant’s
~ plagenlresidence or business and :could not find a person of suitable age or discretiori, I posted a copy in a coispicuous place on the property at
E‘scﬂﬂ (6. front door, etc,) AND mailed a copy 1o the tenant(s) place of

\\,\\.\\q Mivslen Menshed

(Date) {Type or print witness ' name)

5 " slenature)

(IFitr

(Date) (Type or print tenant’s name) (Tenant’s signature)

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevnda that the foregoing is true and correct.

W n\q ocel dn bohaw M0l M%LLUL

ﬂ)are,l (Typé ofF print servers' name} (Servers " signature)

Ifany of the below applies yoi MUST check one of the fullowing boxes and sign thé unsworn decluration per NRS § 53.045 (block on the

right):

O 1am alicensed process server or an employee of a licensed pracess server; my licefise of registration number is (insert ticense or registration
number):

B Tam a sherifY or consfable; my badge number is — i o

m I am nof a licensed process server?

"1 decldre under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregging is true and carrect,”

Signutures

brintname: Ol 1n, 07 teih ceetn I

! When notice is also mailed you cannot include nOﬂjUdlClal days in the computation and you must add an additional three (3) (calendar) days for mailing.

(JCRCP é(a)). Judiciat days do nwot include the date of service, weekends and certain holidays. o
3 1 mailing of service is used and you arc not a process server or sheriff you must file with the court a “cerlificate of mailing” issued by the United States Post

Office per NRS 40.280(3).
RIC4/16/2018
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Electronically Filed

Jan. 22 2019 5:14PM | Fa. 3997 Sufnt ywants oo
(, ( Accepted: 1/23/201?;?;6%‘3
. PARK MANOR APARTMENTS

83 Purk Street 4 Reno, Nevada 89502 ¢ Phone: (7'75) 337-9222 ¢ Fax: {'775) 337-9229

(5\'

IU ‘L HOUSING
OPFORTULT ¥

LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ( the “Lease” ) is executed by and between PARK MANOR APARTMENTS

( hereinafter the “Landlord” ) and Ralph E Goad

(herelnafter “Reeident/s” ) who agree jointly and severally to rent Apartment forth herein. Occupatncy is
lithited to the Residents named herein,

TERM: This Lease creates a_12 month tenancy, commencing 10/19/10 and
—terminating-10/31L/L11 . 'Cheaddress-is-33-RatlcStreet-Reno-NV-89502-Apartment4--213
RENT:-The-periodic monthly rental-( the “Rent™) for-the-Premises is $ 475.00_-per month: Resident - -
agrees to pay Landlord, in advance, without deduction or offset, at Rental Office of the property at Park
Manor Apartmenta, 33 Park Street, Reno, NV 89502, Payments made in check or money order to Park
~«—Manoi-Apartments —

PAYABLE: PRIOR RECEIVED
TO OCCUPANCY
Total Rent for the period from 10/19/10 to 10/31/10 % 205.00 . $.205.00
Security Deposit $ 300,00 $ 300,00
Other & $
TOTA L $.505.00 $_505.00

MO R B U RN N AN A RGN DA R I NN I SRy IO e N E N DS EN DA SN E NN U NN S NS PN RN L AN I TR TN ANV RN DO RO

DISCLOBSURE: (Northern Nevada Community Housing Resource Board, P.O, Box 189, Reno NV 89501 |
authorized to mangge the Premises and Property, receive rerits, execute leases, enforces leasés, and
receives legal notice oh béhalf of the owner of the Property.

Resident acknowledges that Park Manor Apartments at 33 Park Street, Reno, NV 89502, is operated to 1
rules and regulations of the Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit program ( the “ program” ), The
Program provides for a specific maximum monthly fent which niay be charges for the Premises, which
amount is subject to annual adjustment based upon median incomes as determined by HUD. The Progr
also requires that the Property be leased to “Qualified Houscholds” as défined be Section 42 of the IRS. .
this property, Qualified Houselolds muat meet certain income limitation.

C:ADocwmenls and Seltings\WMelany\Desktop\Park ManoriLease\Lease-PM 01-08.doc
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Resident agrees that 90 days priot to the Expiration, Resident will subnut to Landlord all documentatior
required by Landlord necessary to insure that Resuient remains a Qualified Household, In the event tha
Resident fails to deliver such information or Landlord determines (whether in connection with a renewal
otherwise ) that Resident is no longer a Qualified Household under the Program Resident agrees to vaca
the Premises upon the earlier of the Expiration or upon 30 day’s written notice from Landlord of no
qualifying status,

Jan. 22, 2019 5:14PM

It is specifically agreed that each obligation of the Lease, Application and Certification is material and tk
violation of any abligation or misrepresentation of any information shall constitute a breach of the Least
Resident is fully aware that this Lease may not be canceled or otherwise terminated prior to its Expiratit
without the written consent of Landlord, Abandonment of the Prémises or Termination of the Lease for

breach. will not release Resident from the obligation to pay future Rent payments as provided for herein,

If the unit leased under this agreement is a unit specifically designed for persons with
handicaps or disabilities, Tenants acknowledge that priority for such unitg is given to those
needing special deslgn features; that they are permitted to eccupy the unit until Qwner igsues
a notice that a priority applicant is on the waiting list that they must move to another suitably
sized vacant unit in the project, that they, upon receiving this notice, agree to move at their
own expense within thirty (30) calendar days to the suitably sized vacant urnit within the

—project-if-one-is-available;and-that-they-understand-their-rental-rate-may-changerwhen
appropriate, td the rental rate-for the unit theymove to amd this leawe will be nmodifled:
accordingly.

—It-is-a-misdemeanor-to-commit-or-maintain-a-publi¢-nuisance-or-to-allow-any-building-or-boat———= —
to be vaed for a public nuisance, Any person who willfully refuses to remove such a nuisance
when there is a legal duty to do so, is guilty of a misdemeanor. Summary NRS 202,470,

A public nuisance may bhe reported to the local sheriffs depattment. A violation of building,
héealth or safety codes or regulations thay be reported to the résponsible government entity in
your local area such as the code enforcement division of the coutity/city government or the
local health or building departments.

Rent shall be payable as follows:
Total Rent for the period from 10/19/10_t0 10/31/10 ..cccvrrvernin w5 _205.00
The sum of § 475,00 on the first day of each calendar month commencing 11/1/10 .

PRORATIONS: All pro-rations made during the term of this tenancy shall be made on the basis of a thi
(30) day month,

LATE CHARGES: The Rent is due and payable in advance no later that §:00 p.m. on the first day of eac
month. Subsequent to a grace period, any Rent received after the fifth (5) day of each month will be
considered delinquent and will be subjected to a late charge as hereinafter defined. Rent may be paid at
the Reatal Office by personal check, cashier’s check or money order. Second Party checks will not be
accepted, Payments should be made with one check or money order per apartment payable to Park Ma:
Apartments at 33 Park St., Reno, NV 89502.

$25.00 late charge when rent is delinquent, and
$25.00 for each check returned by the bank for any reason.

AGENT: The name and address of the person authorized to act for and on behalf of MANAGEMENT for
purpose of service of process and receiving notices and demands is as follows: Matthew Fleming, 33 Par
Street, Reno, NV 89502,

C:\Documents and Seltings\WMelany\Degktop\Park Manor\t.esse\lease-PM 01-08.doc ;
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OWNER: The name and address of the principal or corporate owner(s] of the leased premises is: _Kuenzl
Partneys, P.O. Box 189, Reno NV 89504,

The acceptance by Landlord of any late payments shall not change the due date or amount of any requi:
payment in the future nor shall relicve Resident from. any obligation to pay the balance of the Rent and
any applicable late fees or charges. Landlord and Resident agree that the charge is presumed to be the

damages sustained because of Resident’s late payment of Rent.

EGUR.I%’ Deposit: Resident has pald Landlord, upon execution of this Lease, a security deposit of
@(JBEE_.QUJ aid deposit shall be held by the Landlord as security for the faithful performance by Resident
the terms of this agreement, Landlord may at anytime use any part/portion or all of said deposit to

remedy Resident’s repair damages caused by painting and carpet cleaning. Resident agrees that soilage
not ordinary wear and agrees to restore the premises fo original condition at commencement of tenancy
evidenced by the Move-In Inspection Check List signed by the Resident prior to occupancy. As applicabl
any deposit or refund check will be made payable jointly in the name of each Resident who has executes
this Lease utiless Landlord received written instruction to the contrary, executed by all such Residents.

USE OF PREMISES:

—A1—‘I‘hs-p1 emises-are-rentecl- fm'-re‘31c!enht‘u.l—us&only—and'sh'ﬂl be-occupxcd'by n‘otmbre*thm1 Lht“foiiuwnrg—”
- listed veccupants: Ralph B, Goad
B. Resident shall not disturb, annoy, endanger or inconvenience othcr residents or neighbors, nor use)
premises for any immoral or mﬂawful purpose, tior violate any law or ordinance, nor commit waste or
—nuisanees-upon-or-about-the-premises:

ALTERATIONS OF PREMISES: Resident may not alter the premises {n any manner without Landlord’s
priot written consent. Alterations include, but are not limited to, painting, wallpaper, changing of locks,
modification of electrical appliances.

MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES: Resident has examined the premises and is satisfied with its physical
condition, order and repair. Upon termination or expiration of the Lease, Resident agrees to survender t
Premises to Landlord in the same condition, reasonable wear . Resident shall maintain the Premises in
neat, clean and undamaged condition and, in particular, shall comply with all applicable provisions of
building codes regarding public heath and safety. Resident agrees to (a) digpose of all ashes, rubbish,
garbage and waste in a clean and safe manner; (b} use all plumbing, electrical, sanitary, heating,
ventilating, air conditioning facilities and appliances in a safe and reasonable manner, and (c) generally
conduct themselves and invited guest in a manner sa as not to disturb other tenants, deface, damage,
otherwise harm any part of the premises. Resident shall be responsible for all glass on the premises.
Leandlord shall at all times comply with the requirements of all applicable building codes and shall make
all repairs necessary to keep the premises and property in a fit and habitable conditian.

UTILITIES: Landlord agrees to pay for the sewer, water, garbage, electricity, local telephone services, &
cxtended hasic cable.

ACCESS: As rcqulred by statue, Resident shall not unreasonably withhold consent for Landlord to ente
the premises in order to inspect the premises, make necessary repairs or services, deliver legal notices,
and verify occupancy. Landlord may also allow a licensed exterminator to enter the premises for the
purpose of pest control, Except in the case of emergency or of it is impractical to do so, Landlord shall g
reaident advance notice of at least twenty-four ( 24 ) hours of Landlord’s intent to enter the premises.
Housekeeping services will be provided according te the posted schedule,

PARKING: Landlord reserves the right to assign specific parking spaces at the property; Landlord may
also designate specific ereas for prospective residents or handicapped parling. Boats, trailers, and
oversized vehicles are not permitted on the property at any time. Prohibited vehicles, inoperative vehicle
unlicensed vehicles, uninsured vehicles, vehicles parked in a space assigned to another. and vehicles
C:\Documents ang Setlings\Melany\Dasktop\Park Manar\Lease\Lease-PM 01-08.d0¢
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parked in a tow-away zone or otherwise impeding traffic will be towed away without notice at the vehicle
ownet’s expense. Motoreycles are not permitted on the sidewalks, in landscaped areas, or'gny building
any time. Additional regulations regarding parking are contained in the Rules and Regulations.

Jan 22 2019 5. 16PM

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES: The failure of the Resident to make any rent payment or other payment
required where such failure shall continue for a period of five ( 5 ) days after written notice thereof, shal
constitute defanlt under this Lease. Additionally, the failure by Resident to observe or perform any of al)
covenants, conditions or provisions of the Lease shall also constitute and event of default where such
failure shall continue for a period of five { 5 ) days after written notice thereof from Landlord to Resident
provided, however, that if the nature of Resident’s default is such that more than five ( 5 ) days are
reasonably required for its cure, then Resident shall not be deemed to be in default if Resident commen
such cure within said 5-day period and thereafter diligently prosectites such cure to completion.

Remedies in Default: In the event of any such default or breach by Resident, Landlord may, at any tin
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any right ¢
remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or breach, exercise any one or more of the
following remedies: ( a ) Terminate Resident’a right to possession of the Premises by any lawful mean, in
which case thig Lease shall terminate, and Resident shall immediately surrender possession of the
Premises to Landlord. In such event, Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Resident all damages

__incurred by Landlord-by-reason-of Tenant's-defanlt-including-but-net-imited-tos-the-cost-ofrecovering—
pasaession of the Premises, the expense of rerenting, including necessary renovation and alteration of i
Premiges, and reasonable attorney’s fees. (b) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter ayailable to
Landlord undet the laws or judicial decisions of the State of Nevada,

Default by Landlord: Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations
required ol Landlord within a reasondable time, but in no event later than thirty ( 30 ) days after written
notice by Resident to Landlord, specifying the default of Landlord; provided, however, that if the nature
Landlord’s obligation is such that more than thirty ( 30 ) days are required for performance, the Landlor
shall not be in default if Lasidlord commences performarice within such thirty (30 ) day period and
thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion.

WAIVER OF LIABILTY: Landlord shall not be liable for damages by reason of any injury to any person
including Resident and their family, or to any property belonging to any person, including Resident and
their family (except as caused by Landlord’s negligence), which injuries or damages may in any way be
connected with said premises or the land surrounding said premises, the acts or neglects of co-resident
or other oceupants of said premises or of any owners or occupants of adjacent and contiguous property.
and Resident hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Landlord from any liability, loss or obligatic
resulting from any such injuries or damages. Landlord recommends that Resident secure renter’s
insurance to protect against Hability, property damage and casualty losses,

ASSIGMENT: Resident shall not sublet, transfer, or assign this Lease. Only persons listed herein and
temporary guest registered with the management office and residing for less than three (3) days may
occupy the premises, Landlord may permit changes or one Resident with the full release of such Resides
only upon application by a replacement Resident, verification of credit, income, program eligibility and
writtenn modification of the Lease.

EXPIRATION: At Expiration, this Lease shall automatically créate a month-to-month tenancy. Residen
has delivered a 30-day notice to Landlord of Resident’s intent to vacate the premises by the expiration.
Failure by Resident to provide such notice to intent to vacate shall be deemed an election to continue th
Lease on & month-to-ionth basis.

Resident acknowledges that renewal rates and month-to-month tenangy rates may result in an increase
the Rent. Landlord will provide Resident with notice of any such increase at least 45 days prior to the
Expiration.

C:\Documenls and Sellings\WMelany\Dasklop\Park ManonLease\Lease-PM 01-08.doc
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MONTH-TO-MONTH TENANCY: Should this Lease create a month teiancy, the expiration shall be
extended on a month-to-month basis,

HOLDOVERS: under Nevada law, this Rental Agreement and any changes agreed to in writing will rem.
in effect on a monthly basis after the initial term. A 30-day written notice to vacate must be issued by tt
RESIDENT prior to vacating, anytime during or after the initial term of this agreement, If improper notic
or no notice to vacate is given by the RESIDENT, resident is liable for prorated rent until lawful
termination and MANAGEMENT may deduct this from the Security Deposit on hand or collect any moni
due by other lawful means.

ADDENDUMENTS TO LEASE: This lease cannot be altered, amended or changes in any manner
whatsoever unless in writing and properly signed by Landlord and Resident.

WAIVER OF BREACH: The waiver by Landlord of any breach shall not be constructed to be a continuin
waiver of any subsequent breach.

RULES & REGULATIONS: Resident agrees to comply with all occupancy Rules and Regulations govern
the property whether now in effect or hereinafter promulgated and delivered to Resident. Resident
acknowledges receipt of program eligibility and recertification requirements in effect ae of the date herec

THIS LEASE CONSITUTES A LEGALLY BINDING CONTRACT ENFORCEABLE BY LAW. EXECUTION BY [
THE PARTIES ACKOWLEDGES FULL ACCEPTANCE OF ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINI
HEREIN.

Dated this _19 _day of October , 2010 .

/ﬂ;/éﬂ,,@ //,7571524,0 [o—/F-10

Resident /' Date
Co-Resident Date
L /J\J [O- 14 - D
Park Maot Apartndehts Date

I hereby certify. thatthe d ]

reby certify, e documentifo which thi
cerlificate rs,__t?fﬂz(,el‘,is & full} trde and correcst
copy of thq_ongu?g.‘ document found in e records
or files of the Reno Justice Court,

Reﬁo Justica Court

By: D‘\,\_ /

Deputy Clerk of the Court

C:\Dotuments and Sellings\Malany\Desklop\Park Manoi\Lease\Lsasa-PM 01-08.dac
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Client Name: 4”‘ odoee é é S Place ofBlrth AR B m 7P

DED: 7//£/ZSSN r’s Maiden Name: _ 72 e

Address? 33 5 //?f’é" ST

7 2.2
Phone Number: . =7 — #//22&5 Email Address: N fr
Race: ¢ V(X Marital Status: 5"’0_.2 [

Living Arrangement:
Alone (JGroup Home: Move in Date:

CIMotel: [JTransitional: - - Move in Date:
L Assisted Living: Move in Date:
OWith Family (list all in the house & relationship):

Type of Income: Amount: Date Received: Current Overpayment?
[@ SSA Retirement 407, 0€ 2L WED oF #lo,  DOYESONO-
O SSA Disability OYES CINO .
[0 SsI 2 4 _ OYES CINO
VA a5 7 CIYES CINO
DFAS OYES CINO
O Private Pension OYES CONO
1 Other

Current Services: Amount: Application needed:
OFood Stamps CJYES OONO
CINV Energy Assistance - [JYES OONO
OMedicare Saving Plan CIYES ONO

HCommunity HCBW ,
(agency & hours/week) g J/l + @ 4’?6

OGH HCBW

DO Homemaker

(agency & hours/week)

[JPAS (agency & hours/week)

[JCOPE (agency & hours/week)

ADSID Worker Contact Info:

Emergency Contact Information:

Name: 6((% r\)M Ny~ B Relationship: _ \ /ﬁ/l -
Phone Number: ‘T’)S CGL‘i b qgoq\ddresa 2(1 2:2/ QBC?ESL] Cf% (?Sf)a,f b& N\/

Health Information: | % ‘% q g

Primary Care Physician: \) 10( Hm |- 'l"(_’ik Phone Number:
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T

, ) . Transactions By Client
A;:{ount: Checking #2

lient Type: All / Support Type: All
Acct Mgr: All Date Range 2/1/2010 thru 6/25/2019
h%t Name: Th}odu/r; T Gibson Acct Mgr: Colly Garde

SS h Account:  Checking #2
Date Withdraw Deposit  Category . PayTe e Balance
1172912017 \ $98500 Transfer $985.00
12/01/2017 $41100 Client Fees Payee Counseling, Service $944.00
12/01/2017 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $459.00
12/13/2017 $595.00 SSA $1,054.00
01/03/2018 $42.00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,012.00
01/03/2018 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $527.00
01/10/2018 $607.00 SSA $1,134.00
02/02/2018 $42,00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,092.00
02/02/2018 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $607.00
02/14/2018 $607.00 SSA $1,214,00
03/02/2018 $42.00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,172.00
03/02/2018 $485,00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $687.00
03/14/2018 $607.00 SSA $1,294.00
04/03/2018 $42.00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,252.00
04/03/2018 3485'{00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $767.00
04/11/2018 ! $607.00 SSA $1,374.00
05/03/2018 $42.00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,332.00
05/03/2018 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $847.00
05/09/2018 $807.00 SSA $1,654.00
06/01/2018 $42.00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,612.00
06/01/2018 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $1,127.00
06/13/2018 $607.00 SSA $1,734.00
07/03/2018 $42;00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,692.00
07/03/2018 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $1,207.00
07/11/2018 $607.00 SSA $1,814.00
08/03/2018 $42.00 Client Fees Payee Counseling Service $1,772.00

08/03/2018 $485.00 Rent Park Manor Apartment $1,287.00

NG IND A1 D MISNAT AN a4 LAR I Yo WA VAN
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Account: Checking #2
Client Type: All

Transactions By Client

Transactions for Period: 60

Acct Mgr: All
Client Name: Ralph E Goad
ssvi
Date Withdraw Deposit  Category
07/03/2018  $485.00  Remt
07/12/2018 $70.00 Personal Needs
08/03/2018 $780.90 SSA
08/03/2018 $200.00 Personal Needs
08/03/2018 $42.00 Client Fees
08/03/2018  $485:00 Rent
08/13/2018 $75.00 Personal Needs
08/31/2018 $780.90 SSA
08/31/2018  $200.00 Personal Needs
08/31/2018 $42.00 Client Fees
08/31/2018 $485.00 Rent
09/14/2018 $70.00 Personal Needs
10/03/2018 : $780.90 SSA
10/03/2018 $200.00 Personal Needs
10/032018 $42.00 Client Fees
10/03/2018 $485.00 Rent
10/10/2018 $£82.50 Personal Needs
11/02/2018 $780.90 SsSA
11/02/2018 $42.00 Client Fees
11/02/2018 $485,00 Rent
| 1@5/20 18 $253.90 FINAL PAYMENT
Totals: $9,729.40 $9,729.40
Payment Category Total
Client Fc_;s SSOS(;{)_
FINAL PAYMENT $253.90
Personal Needs $3,072.50
Rent 1 $5,900.00

Acct Mgr: Colly Garde
Account:
Pay To

Ralph E Goad

Ralph Goad

Payee Counseling Service
Park Manor Apartment
Ralph E Goad

. Ralph Goad

Payee Counseling Service
Park Manor Apartinent
Ralph E Goad

Ralph Goad

Payee Counseling Service
Park Manor Apartment
Ralph E Goad

Payee Counseling Service
Park Manor Apartment
Ralph E Goad

Checking #2

Deposit Category
SSA
Transfer

Deposit Total

Support Type: All
Date Range: 7/1/2015 thru 6/25/201_9

Total

$9,378.60
5350.80

$9,729.40

Balance
$135.80
$65.80
$846.70
$646.70
$604.70
$119.70
$44.70
$825.60
$625.60
$583.60
$98.60
$28.60
$809.50
$609.50
$567.50
$82.50
$0.00
$780.90
$738.90
$253.90
$0.00

50.00
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EXHIBIT NV-1c

LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDIT PROGRAM
ALTERNATE CERTIFICATION

Property Name:  Park Manor Unit#: 213 Bedroom size: 0
Certifica?ion Effective Date: 10/19/16  Move-in Date: 10-19-10 % c;f Set Aside: % . Tenant Paid Rent:  $475
Household Income at move-in:  $8088 Utility Allowance:  $0

Gross Household Income: $9924 Rental Subsidy:  $0

Max Income Limit: 520000 Total Gross Rent  $475
Income Limit x 140%: $28000 Max Allowable Rent Limit: $500

List all occupants of the unit and indicate if full-time student(s)

Household members name Birth Date Full-time Student?

Ralph Goad 8/22/46 Yes[ | No[X

Yes[ ] NoX]

Yes[ | No[X]

Yes[ ] No[X]

Yes[ ] NoX]

Yes[ ] No[X]

Yes[ | No[X]

Yes| | No[X]

Are any of the above Adult occupants original members of the household? Ye's No[_]

Answer only if all members are full-time students:

(Definition of student: Anyone who has been or will be a full-time student at an educational institution with regular facilities and
students during 5 months of the year this Certification is completed.)

If yes, are the students married and filing a joint tax return (verification required)? . . . . ... ... .. L. Yes[J NofX
ifyes, doas the household recaive Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) (verification required)? . . Yes[] No
If yes, is the household comprised of a single patent & child(ren) none of whom are dependents of 3 third party

(verification required)? Yes[[] No[X
If yes, are the students enrotled in a job training program under the Job Training Partnership Act (verification

required)? Yes[[] No[X
If yes, has any household member previously been part of a foster care program {verification required)? . ... Yes[] wNol[X

Resident’s Statement: | understand that the above information has been collected to determine my eligibility for residency. |
certify that the statements made in this certification are true and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief and are
aware that false statements may be cause for termination of my lease and may be punishable under Federal Law. | agree to
immediately inform the project manager of any changes to my household’s family composition. | also agree to immediately
inform the project manager if all members of my household become full-time students.

Signature of all adult household members:

ﬂLt/?/Q M Date: ?"/ 7-//{’

Date:

Date:

Date:

Project Sponsor's Statement: Based on the representations herein, the household defined in this certification is eligible under the
provisions of Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code, as.amended, to live in a unit in this development.

Management Representative: , m %C(_'/M_; Date: 5’*’/7*/é

Exhibit NV-1¢

Alternate Certification
New 7/30/08 31
Revised 4/7/09
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CODE 2245

WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
JAY SLOCUM, BAR # 9099

JENNIFER MAYHEW, BAR# 11349

350 S. CENTER ST, 5TH FLLOOR

RENO, NV 89501

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

Case No. CR19-0999
Vs.

RALPH GOAD, Dept. No. 4
Defendant.
/

MOTION IN LIMINE RE: ALLEGED OTHER BAD ACTS, NRS 48.045

The Defendant, RALPH GOAD, by and through counsel, Washoe County
Deputy Public Defenders JAY SLOCUM and JENNIFER MAYHEW, and hereby
moves this Court for an order in limine precluding the State from proffering at trial
“other bad act” evidence and other evidence prohibited by NRS 48.045 and
construing case law, subject to trial court determination of admissibility at a
hearing outside the presence of the jury, in accordance with the law referenced in
the attached Points and Authorities.

This Motion is made and based upon NRS 48.045 and the cases cited in the
attached Points and Authorities.

1
"
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. SUMMARY OF APPLICABLE LAW

NRS 48.045(2) prohibits admission of a defendant’s other crimes, wrongs or
acts and is not admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show that
the person acted in conformity therewith. The Nevada Supreme Court has
approached such evidence cautiously, repeatedly holding that “[a] presumption of
inadmissibility attaches to all prior bad act evidence.” Rosky v. State, 121 Nev. 184,
195, 111 P.3d. 690, 697 May 26, 2005). Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 10,
p.11 (. .. “we reemphasize that ‘[a] presumption of inadmissibility attaches to all
prior bad act evidence.” quoting and citing Rosky (underscore added). “In order to
overcome the presumption of inadmissibility, the prosecutor must request a
hearing and establish that: (1) the prior bad act is relevant to the crime charged
and for a purpose other than proving the defendant’s propensity, (2) the act is
proven by clear and convincing evidence, and (3) the probative value of the
evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice.”
Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 10, pp. 11-12.

“The improper admission of bad act evidence is common grounds for
reversal.” Rosky, 121 Nev. at 194. Bad act evidence is inadmissible to prove
propensity. Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 10, p.8 (2012). The hearing must
be outside the presence of the jury. See generally Petrocelli v. State, 101 Nev. 46
(1985).

Even where the Court holds an out-of-the-presence hearing and determines
that the evidence is admissible, if requested, a limiting instruction pertaining to
such evidence is required. Tavares v. State, 117 Nev. 725, 729-30 (2001). See also
Bigpond, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 10, pp. 14-15. “...before admitting evidence of a prior

bad act or collateral offense, the district court must conduct a hearing outside the
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presence of the jury. During the hearing, the state must present its justification for
admission of the evidence, the state must prove by clear and convincing evidence
that the defendant committed the collateral offense, and the district court must
weigh the probative value of the proffered evidence against its prejudicial effect.”
Armstrong v. State, 110 Nev. 1322, 1323-24 (1994); See generally Petrocelli v. State,
101 Nev. 46, 692 P.2d 503 (1985).

In addition to the concerns addressed directly by the Nevada Supreme Court
and NRS 48.045(2), a jury being permitted to consider evidence other than the
elements of the crime must be clearly instructed. A jury must be clearly instructed
that the other acts evidence, if admitted, is not an element of the crime and cannot
be considered by them as an element of the crime. If a jury were permitted to
consider other acts evidence to establish an element of charged offenses, the
conviction could not stand. The United States Supreme Court has made clear that
every element of a charged offense must be proven to a jury, beyond a reasonable
doubt. In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 90 S.Ct. 1068, 25 L.Ed.2d 368 (1970). To allow
less would permit the State to avoid its constitutionally imposed burden of proof,
and to convict not based upon proof of the elements of the offense, but other, non-
charged acts. This would clearly contravene the defendant’s rights under the
Nevada and United States Constitutions to due process of law, fair trial by jury
and proper notice. U.S. Const. Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments; Nevada
Const., Art. 1, Sec. 8.

Furthermore, in accordance with the legal authorities cited in the
Defendant’s Motion, as well as the Fifth and Sixth Amendments to the United
States Constitution, the Defense maintains that a defendant in a criminal action
cannot make a knowing, intelligent and voluntary decision regarding trial tactics,

theory of the case, and whether or not to testify at trial or invoke the protections of
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the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution, unless the State provides
In advance of trial any alleged “PBA’s” which it seeks to admit at trial. The State’s
failure to do so places the defendant in a position of being unreasonably surprised
at the jury trial if subject to evidence of “PBA’s” without having been advised of
such possible evidence in advance of trial.

Failure of the State to disclose such evidence and provide pre-trial
opportunity to litigate its admissibility and/or scope of admissibility violates the
Fifth Amendment right against self-incrimination, the Fifth Amendment right to
due process by way of proper notice of anticipated impeachment and the Sixth
Amendment right to effective assistance of counsel by having been deprived of
meaningful consultation by defense counsel of whether or not to testify by virtue of
defense counsel having been untimely notified of the State’s intent to proffer such
evidence.

Under the legal authorities cited hereinabove, the State must disclose
anticipated “other wrongs, crimes, or acts” and “request a hearing” by which it
proffers evidence of the other wrongs, crimes or acts and proves them up under the
cited authorities. The burden of disclosure and to request a hearing, under the
Bigpond case, above, and other legal authorities cited herein, is on the State. The
Defendant’s Motion seeks to obtain pretrial disclosure of anticipated “PBA’s” which
the State may offer at trial, so that proper determination of admissibility could be
made before the trial date and so that defense counsel could properly and
effectively advise the Defendant of whether or not to settle the case, whether to
proceed to trial, whether to testify or not, and whether to proffer evidence in
rebuttal against State-offered “PBA” evidence.

1
11
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II. ANTICIPATED POSSIBLE BAD ACTS THE STATE MAY SEEK TO
HAVE ADMITTED

This Motion is intended to require the State to identify such other wrongs,
crimes or acts in advance of trial so their admissibility may timely and adequately
be litigated and determined without need to halt the jury trial every time a
possible “PBA” is proffered. See Fed. R. Evid. 404(b)(2) (On request by defendant
in criminal case, prosecutor must provide reasonable notice, before trial, of the
general nature of any such evidence that the prosecutor intends to offer at trial).

Defense formally objects to any evidence of prior bad acts whether or not
resulting in convictions and requests a hearing as to admissibility thereof prior to
any proffer by State before the jury at trial. Indeed, under the case law cited
herein, the State must “request a hearing” at which it proffers evidence of the other
wrongs, crimes or acts, proves them up with competent evidence under the cited
authorities and articulates persuasive justification for use of such evidence at trial
on the merits in the instant case. Simply waiting until trial to then “take a break
and hold hearing outside the jury’s presence” to litigate such evidence is neither
efficient nor consistent with the practice of utilizing pretrial motion practice to
determine, before trial, admissibility or contingent admissibility of evidence.

ITII. CONCLUSION

Accordingly, it is respectfully requested that this Motion be granted and that
the State be required to disclose, in writing and sufficiently in advance of trial, to
permit a pretrial hearing, any and all evidence of other wrongs, crimes, or acts
1
11
1
1/




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

which it will seeik to admit against the Defendant, so that such matters may bé
properly litigated in a pretrial hearing in accordance with the legal authorities

cited hereinabove.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not

contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 8th day of July, 2019.

JOHN L. ARRASCADA
Washoe County Public Defender

By: _/s/ Jay Slocum By: /s/ Jennifer Mayhew
JAY SLOCUM JENNIFER MAYHEW
Deputy Public Defender Deputy Public Defender
6
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County Public Defender's
Office, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada; that on this 8th day of July, 2019, I
electronically filed the foregoing documents with the Clerk of the Court by using the

ECF system which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
1 SOUTH SIERRA STREET
RENO, NV

/s Jessica Haro
JESSICA HARO
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WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
JAY SLOCUM, BAR # 9099

JENNIFER MAYHEW, BAR# 11349

350 S. CENTER ST, 5TH FLLOOR

RENO, NV 89501

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
VS.
Case No. CR19-0999
RALPH GOAD,
Dept. No. 4
Defendant.

/

MOTION TO PRECLUDE OR LIMIT USE OF PREJUDICIAL
PHOTOGRAPHS, VIDEOS AND DEMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE

The Defendant, RALPH GOAD, by and through counsel, Washoe County
Deputy Public Defenders JAY SLOCUM and JENNIFER MAYHEW, hereby moves
this Court for an Order precluding or limiting the introduction of prejudicial
photographs, videos and demonstrative evidence at the trial in this case. This
Motion is made and based upon the Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to
the United States Constitution, and Article One, Section Eight of the Nevada
Constitution, which guarantee an accused in a criminal case due process of law,
effective assistance of counsel and a fair trial.

This Motion is based on the attached Memorandum of Points and
Authorities, all other documents and papers filed herein, and any physical and

testimonial evidence presented should this matter be set for a hearing.
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES -

I. RELEVANT FACTS

RALPH GOAD (hereinafter Mr. Goad) is scheduled for Jury Trial on July 31,
2019 on a charge of Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon. Defense anticipates the
State will proffer several crime scene and autopsy photographs containing views of
the alleged victim.

Defendant requests a pretrial hearing at which State will produce the
photographs, videos and demonstrative evidence it intends to offer at trial, so they
may be examined for any potential Defense objections as to prejudicial impact,
cumulativeness, or other objections. Defendant moves this Court for an Order
precluding or limiting introduction of unfairly prejudicial photos, videos, and
demonstrative evidence, including but not limited to unnecessarily or excessively
gruesome photographs of the crime scene and/or the autopsy. Such evidence
should be precluded during the trial. Additionally, Defendant moves for exclusion
of multiple or cumulative photographs of the decedent.

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. ANY PROBATIVE VALUE OF THE PHOTOGRAPH(S) IS
SUBSTANTIALLY OUTWEIGHED BY THE RISK OF UNFAIR
PREJUDICE, CONFUSION OF THE ISSUES, OR MISLEADING THE
JURY.

Even relevant evidence is “not admissible if its probative value 1is
substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the
issues or of misleading the jury.” NRS 48.035(1). Even if the Court considers the
photograph(s) as relevant, they should be excluded because any probative value is
substantially outweighed by the risk of unfair prejudice, confusion of the issues, or

misleading the jury. See Id.
"
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..... Autopsy photographs cannat be admitted for viewing by the jury if unfairly
prejudicial and not necessary to the testimony of the expert sponsoring the
photographs. See Sipsas v. State, 102 Nev. 119, 716 P.2d 231 (1986). In Sipsas,
the Court recognized the value and danger of photographs: “It is of no surprise that
the district court originally found the photographs to be more prejudicial than
probative. No jury could be free from thoughts of compassion and sympathy after
viewing an 8x10 inch color photograph of an eviscerated child. A photograph lends
dimension to otherwise non-dimensional testimonial evidence. That an erroneous
admission of a photograph would cause undue prejudice is certain. The extent of
that prejudice is immeasurable.” Sipsas, 102 Nev. at 124, fn. 6.

Several Nevada cases have permitted the use of photographs, but no case
has ever suggested that all photographs will be admissible. See Wallace v. State,
84 Nev. 603, 447 P.3d 30 (1968)(photos concededly accurate, but a single
photograph was used), Shuff v. State, 86 Nev. 736, 476 P.2d 22 (1970) (photos
concededly accurate, but a single color photograph admitted), Nalls v. State, 90
Nev. 124, 520 P.2d 611 (1974) (non-murder case, asserted defense was accident,
two photos admitted), Allen v. State, 91 Nev. 78, 530 P.2d 1195 (1975) (color photos
of the victims were taken prior to autopsy, thus avoiding the problems presented
by gruesome photos), Athey v. State, 106 Nev.520, 797 P.2d 956 (1991) (two photos
were admitted to explain cause of death).

Here, the photograph(s) prejudices Mr. Goad because the depiction is
passion-inflaming, emotion and sympathy invoking and, therefore, patently
prejudicial. Further, any juror that sees the photograph(s) will be misled by
focusing attention on the grotesque nature of the alleged injuries rather than

ascertaining the truth.

1"
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e III. . CONCLUSION
For the foregoing reasons, Mr. Goad requests a pretrial hearing at which
time counsel and the Court can evaluate the admissibility of photographs, video
and demonstrative evidence which the State anticipates proffering at trial and a
ruling from this Court precluding or limiting introduction of unfairly prejudicial
evidence, including autopsy and crime scene photographs, and other gruesome

photographs, videos, and demonstrative evidence.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not
contain the social security number of any person.
Dated this 8th day of July, 2019.

JOHN L. ARRASCADA
Washoe County Public Defender

/sl Jay Slocum /sl Jennifer Mavhew

JAY SLOCUM JENNIFER MAYHEW

Deputy Public Defender Deputy Public Defender
4
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- CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County Public Defender's
Office, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada; that on this 8th day of July, 2019, I
electronically filed the foregoing documents with the Clerk of the Court by using the

ECF system which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
1 SOUTH SIERRA STREET
RENO, NV

[s/ Jessica Haro
JESSICA HARO
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Jacqueline Bryant

WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
JAY SLOCUM, BAR # 9099

JENNIFER MAYHEW, BAR# 11349

350 S. CENTER ST, 5™ FLOOR

RENO, NV 89501

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

Case No. CR19-0999
Vs.

RALPH GOAD, Dept. No. 4

Defendant.
/

OPPOSITION TO STATE’S MOTION TO ADMIT EVIDENCE OF MOTIVE

The Defendant, RALPH GOAD (“Mr. Goad”), by and through his attorneys,
JOHN ARRASCADA, Washoe County Public Defender, and Deputy Public
Defenders JAY SLOCUM and JENNIFER MAYHEW, hereby opposes the State’s
Motion to Admit Evidence of Motive and requests this Court for a pretrial Order
precluding the State from introducing res gestae and specific evidence of any other
crimes, wrongs, or prior bad acts of Mr. Goad pursuant to NRS 48.045(2) and NRS
48.015 through NRS 48.035.1

This Motion is made and based upon NRS 48.045, construing case law, the

attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, as well as any evidence or

! On July 8, 2019 Mr. Goad filed a Motion in Limine Re: Alleged Other Bad Acts, NRS
48.045.

f
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argument adduced at a hearing on the motion. Finally, Mr. Goad requests this
Court conduct an evidentiary hearing to determine the admissibility of the State’s

proposed evidence.

BRIEF STATEMENT OF FACTS

Mr. Goad stands accused of Murder with the Use of a Deadly Weapon. Jury
trial is set for July 31, 2019. The State’s alleges Mr. Goad murdered Theodore
Gibson (“Mr. Gibson”) for money.

Mr. Goad has been living in Park Manor Apartments for at least thirteen
years. Mr. Goad collected social security in an amount between $827.00 and
$916.00 per month. See Exhibit 1. He was also the recipient of an inheritance
from his mother’s last will and testament. See Exhibit 2. Mr. Goad has a payee
service through Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services that assists with
facilitating rent and other financial matters. See Exhibit 3. Mr. Goad became
delinquent with his $490 rental payment which was due on January 11, 2019. The
reason for his delinquency stems from the payee service closing and its inability to
pay his rent. On January 30, 2019, Mr. Goad was evicted and subsequently locked
out of his apartment. On January 30, 2019 Mr. Goad went to Sacramento,
California in an attempt to collect his inheritance his mother bequeathed to him in
her will.

The State is seeking to admit motive evidence that Mr. Goad killed Mr.
Gibson for money. The State failed to prove that this evidence be admitted under
the narrow constraints of the res gestae rule. Moreover, the State has failed to
prove that the prior bad act evidence is admissible under Nevada law. This
Opposition follows.

1
1

1.7
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. The evidence is inadmissible under res gestae.

A trial witness may only testify to another uncharged act or crime if it is so
closely related to the act in controversy that the witness cannot describe the act
without referring to the other uncharged act or crime. Cf. State v. Shade, 111 Nev.
887, 894, 900 P.2d 327, 331 (1995)(upholding the admission of uncharged acts
based on the strict language of NRS 48.035 (to wit: the res gestae doctrine
codified)); Bellon v. State, 121 Nev. 436, 444, 117 P.3d 176, 181 (2005)(expressly
concluding that, under NRS 48.035, “a witness may only testify to another
uncharged act or crime if it is so closely related to the act in controversy that the
witness cannot describe the act without referring to the other uncharged act or
crime”)(emphasis added). The operative language, of course, is that the trial
witness may only testify to “uncharged” acts or crimes allegedly committed by the
accused.

The Complete Story of the Crime, or commonly referred to as the res gestae
doctrine, allows occasion for the State to “present a full and accurate account of the
crime, and such evidence is admissible even if it implicates the defendant in the
commission of other uncharged acts.” Bellon v. State, 121 Nev. 436, 444, 117 P.3d
176, 181 (2005)(citing Bletcher v. State, 111 Nev. 1477, 1480, 907 P.2d 978, 980
(1995)). “However, the ‘complete story of the crime doctrine’ must be construed
narrowly.” Id. (citing Tabish v. State, 119 Nev. 293, 307, 72 P.3d 584, 593
(2003)(emphasis added)).

“[the] admission of evidence under NRS 48.035(3) is limited to
the statute’s express provisions. Under the statute, a witness
may only testify to another uncharged act or crime if it is so
closely related to the act in controversy that the witness cannot
describe the act without referring to the other uncharged act or
crime.”
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| Id. at 444. Iri“other words, for the “res gestae” doctrine to apply, certain and

specific elements must be satisfied, and the crimes must blend together and “form
an indivisible criminal transaction” whereby proof of “any one of them cannot be
given without showing the others.” Sutton v. State, 114 Nev. 1327, 1331, 972 P.2d
334, 337 (1998)(citation omitted). The Supreme Court of Nevada has applied the
“res gestae” doctrine when the uncharged act or crimes: (1) occur
contemporaneously; (2) arise out of the same transaction; (3) involve the same
participants; and (4) are inextricably intertwined with the charged crime. Id.
(citing State v. Shade, 111 Nev. 887, 894, 900 P.2d 327, 331(1995)).

None of the above elements apply to this case. The alleged acts are simply
irrelevant to the State’s case-in-chief, i.e., whether Mr. Goad committed the crime
of murder. The State has not provided a substantial nexus between the
eviction/lockout and proving the commission of the alleged murder. Furthermore,
the State has not sufficiently articulated how it cannot effectively prosecute Mr.
Goad for the charged offense without referring to eviction/lockout. Of note, the
alleged eviction/lockout did not occur at the same time as the alleged murder, both
events are completely separate factual transactions, and is not “inextricably
intertwined with the charged crime” of murder. Ultimately, the State has failed to
describe how the exclusion of this evidence from its case-in-chief completely
destroys the ability to present a “coherent and comprehensive story regarding the
commission of the crime . . ..” to a jury. Even if determined to be relevant by this
Court—could mislead or confuse the jury as to what the germane issues are in the
trial and possibly cause the jury to associate his guilt on the charged offense based
solely on his propensity to commit violence. See NRS 48.035 (permitting the

exclusion of relevant evidence if its probative value is substantially outweighed by
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the danger of unfair prejudice, indue delay, confusion of the issues, and misleading

the jury, etc. . .).

In this case, there is no correlation between Mr. Goad’s eviction/lockout and
murder. Under the narrow res gestae rule, a witness may only testify to another
uncharged act or crime if it is so closely related to the act in controversy that the
witness cannot describe the act without referring to the other uncharged act or
crime. The witnesses in this case can testify about the crime involving murder
without describing Mr. Goad’s uncharged crime of alleged eviction and subsequent
lockout.

Further, the State has not sufficiently explained why not presenting the
proposed res gestae evidence will be so detrimental to its case or will prejudice it in
any way. Again, Mr. Goad’s alleged eviction and lockout are irrelevant to whether
the State can prove he committed a murder beyond a reasonable doubt.
Furthermore, the State has not argued that avoiding this evidence will leave the
jury baffled, wondering, and primed to punish the State for cloaking this limited
information. And, the State has not established to this Court either that the flow or
relevant content of the State’s presentation will certainly be interrupted and the
testimony of its witnesses cannot be taken in a seamless manner.

Therefore, any and all evidence pertaining to Mr. Goad’s financial status
including but not limited to an alleged eviction and/or lockout from his apartment
is inadmissible under the narrow res gestae rule.

I1. The evidence is inadmissible as a prior bad act.

It 1s well-established law in Nevada that evidence of other crimes, wrongs,
or acts, whether prior or subsequent, is “heavily disfavored” and presumptively
inadmissible. See NRS 48.045(2); Rosky v. State, 121 Nev. 184, 195, 111 P.3d 690,
697 (2005); Tavares v. State, 117 Nev. 725, 730, 30 P.3d 1128, 1131 (2001) holding
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modified by Meclellan v. State, 124 Nev. 263, 18z P.3d 106 (2008). As eloquently
stated by the Nevada Supreme Court, the use of other bad acts to convict a
defendant is heavily disfavored in our criminal justice system, due to the fact that
“such bad acts are often irrelevant or prejudicial and force the accused to defend
against vague and unsubstantiated charges.” Walker v. State, 116 Nev. 442, 445,
997 P.2d 803, 806 (2000). Consequently, evidence of other bad acts is inherently
prejudicial and its improper admission can rarely be deemed harmless. Id. at 446;
see also Richmond v. State, 118 Nev. 924, 935, 59 P.3d 1249, 1256 (2002)(“[i]t 1s
error for a witness to testify in such a manner that the jury could infer that the
defendant had engaged in prior criminal activity”). Beginning with Petrocelli v.
State, 101 Nev. 46, 51-52, 692 P.2d 503, 507 (1985), the Nevada Supreme Court
has progressively developed procedures and substantive criteria to regulate the
admission of other bad acts evidence. See Tavares, 117 Nev. at 733, 30 P.3d at
1133; Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170, 1176, 946 P.2d 1061, 1064-65 (1997);
Armstrong v. State, 110 Nev. 1322, 1324, 885 P.2d 600, 601 (1994).

Accordingly, to overcome the initial presumption of inadmissibility, the
State bears the burden of: (1) requesting the evidence’s admission through proper
notice; and (2) establishing, at a Petrocelli hearing outside the presence of the jury,
that: (a) the prior act has independent relevance under NRS 48.045(2) to the crime
charged; (b) the act is proven by clear and convincing evidence; and (3) the
probative value of the proffered evidence is not substantially outweighed by the
danger of unfair prejudice. See Tinch, 113 Nev. 1176, 946 P.2d at 1064, holding
modified by Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 10, 270 P.3d 1244 (2012).
Furthermore, in order to admit such evidence, this Court must make specific

findings of fact and conclusions of law for purposes of direct appellate review. See

Armstrong v. State, 110 Nev. 1322, 1324, 885 P.2d 600, 601 (1994).
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“ =" Based upon the State’s moving papers, the State is seekirig to introduce
testimonial motive evidence at trial specific to Mr. Goad’s financial status
including an alleged eviction and/or lockout from his apartment. First, Mr. Goad
was not financially destitute. He had been collecting social security and was
bequeathed money from his mother’s will. Second, none of these acts, whether
construed as prior bad act, are relevant to the issue of whether a murder took place
and whether it was committed by Mr. Goad. Third, the prospective probative value
of this evidence, if any, does not outweigh the danger of unfair prejudice to Mr.
Goad. If offered by the State and admitted, there is a concrete danger that the
evidence will encumber Mr. Goad’s presumption of innocence; he will be
immediately saddled with the prejudicial effect that this evidence would bring with
it. The danger here is that the jury might associate guilt or otherwise deem this
evidence as the kind which establishes Mr. Goad’s propensity to commit other
crimes, especially even the crime for which he is now charged. The danger of unfair
prejudice in this case is evident, unnecessary, and should be avoided at all costs.

Accordingly, and after an evidentiary hearing on the matter, this Court
should conclude that the alleged prior acts are inadmissible and must be precluded
from admission at trial. These allegations have no probative value with respect to
the offense charged against Mr. Goad.

I
I
11
/1
I
1/
1
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CONCLUSION

In sum, the State failed to prove that evidence related to Mr. Goad’s
financial status including the alleged eviction and/or lockout be admitted under the
narrow constraints of the res gestae rule. Moreover, the State has failed prove that
the prior bad act evidence is admissible under Nevada law. Mr. Goad requests this

Court to hold a pretrial evidentiary hearing on the issues raised.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not
contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 11th day of July, 2019.

JOHN L. ARRASCADA
Washoe County Public Defender

By: _/s/ Jay Slocum By: _/s/ Jennifer Mavhew
JAY SLOCUM JENNIFER MAYHEW
Deputy Public Defender Deputy Public Defender
8




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of the Washoe County Public Defender's
Office, Reno, Washoe County, Nevada; that on this 11th day of July, 2019, I
electronically filed the foregoing documents with the Clerk of the Court by using the

ECF system which will send a notice of electronic filing to the following:

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
1 SOUTH SIERRA STREET
RENO, NV

/s/ Jessica Haro
JESSICA HARO
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1. Social Security Income

2. Inheritance

3. Payee Information
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EXHIBIT 1
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W P.0. Box 20604
Rerio, NV 89515
tel (775) 3379155 fax (775) 3379166

SUPPLEMENTAL RENTAL APPLICATION email fo@mchiorg
Applicant Name: ZZZ% L /7[ é D7D Date: D~ /g-— l%’

NOTE: Applicants must complete this section in order to determine qualifications for
resldency within the Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program. Although this
information is voluntary under the Federal Falr Houslng Act, fallure to provide such
information may result in non-qualification for residency for any rental unit in the LIHTC
Program.

INCOME
Income includes GROSS amount of wages, salaries, overtime pay, commissions; fees, tips,
bonuses, meal allowances, uniform allowances, social security, annuities, Insurance policies,
retirement funds, pensions, disability or death benefits, unemployment compensation,
disability compensation, worker's compensation, severance pay, welfare assistarice (TANF),
alimony and child support, recurring monetary gifts or contributions regularly received, net
income from a business, and other compensation for all adults in the household.

INCOME DOES NOT INCLUDE
Student financial assistance, personal loans, meals on wheels, special pay to household
member serving in the Armed Forces exposed to hostile fire, value of allotment provided.
under the Food Stamp Act of 1977, payments received under Domestic Volunteer Service
Act of 1973, payments received under Title V of the Older Americans Act, earned income tax
credit, and income from the employment of children under the age of 18 years.

Are you entitled to, ar do you anticipate receiving income from any of the following sources
during the next 12 months? If you answer with a YES to any of the following, please explain.

Are you entitled to or do you expect | Amount/ Year Name of Source
the following? /
Employment Yes( )No ¢}

/
Second Emplayer | Yes () No (Uf

/
Unemployment | Yes { ) No (\J

Z
Child Support Yes( ) No (M

pa
Alimony Yes { ) No ]
Social Securlty | Yes (YNo (), | /4 toArn ) (S AgiL 1Ty
Supplemental Yes(JNo (WY | ' ~ /
Security  Income

(5S) /
TANF Yes ( JNo )
(Not Food Stamps) /
Recurring Gifts Yes ( } No M’/
Other Yes { ) No (J
57
»ww.NNCHRB.0rg

COUAL HOUSING
CPPORTUNITY



Y. .
NNCHRB &
Northem Nevada

G
[RESOURCE BOARD
Assets include cash (whatever held), trust corpus, equity in real estate or capital
investment, notes receivable, mortgages, stocks, bonds, money market accounts, IRA’s,
retirement & pension funds, and luxury personal property (gems, jewelry, art, coin
collections, etc.)

ASSETS

ASSETS DO NOT INCLUDE

P.0. Box 20604

Reno, NV 89515

tel (775) 3379155 fax (775) 3379166
emafl ifo@nncirb.org

Do not include necessary personal property such as clothing, furniture, daily use autos,
tools, dishes, etc. Also excluded is any special equipment for use by the handicapped, and

assets of a business,

If you answer YES to any of the following items please fill In blanks to the right. Include

assets of minors.

Do you have?

Bank Name Account No.

Balance

Interest
Rate

Checking Yes() NotJ

Savings Yes() NoM
Certificate of | Yes() NOM
Deposit

Money Yes() No™
Market s
Trust Yes() Nodj ;

Stocks/Bond | Yes() NofY/

Mutual Fund | Yes() No&Y/

IRA/Keogh | Yes() NofJ;

Retirement | Yes() Nof)

Accounts i
Rental Yes() NolY
Property /
Other Yes() NogY

Are TOTAL household assets over $5,0007 (Include the assets of all occupants? ()YQ)N(‘

Have you sold, ég?en as gift or disposed of any real property or other assets in the past 2
N

years? () Yes

lo List any assets currently being sold:,

Warning: Section 1001 of the Title 18, US Cade provides, “Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of any
department or agency of the United States kmowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals or covers up by any trick,
sscheme, device or material fact, or makes any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, shall be fined not
more than $10,000 or imprisoned not more than five years or both.”

I certify that the information above is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief. 1authorize Park Manor, NNCHRB to make such investigations into my history as they
may deem appropriate, including but not limited to, verification of employment & salary,
assets, rental history and consumer credit reports.

Fosnd)

Applicant / Penant Signature

wiw. NNCHRB.org

touUAL
AQPFORTURITY

lo -~ [{-/¢

Date
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FILED
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Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7368097 . tsulezic
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ommnwrmmsmmTA :
 XCCOUNTANDREPORT o}ﬂ? m hi

CONSERVATOR, DISCHARGING!

CONSERVATOR AND OTHER RELIEI

Date: Apm_'zd, 2017,
Times: 9:00AM
Depta 129

rupim and llrsi an’d ﬁnal Z‘-LLOUN of the conservator of the estate of F\m (md was rfmu\e.r'\'

il 70 ”’Ul 7an Dcparm)cm 1“‘) for hearing and settlemnent by the Courts All notices of the'

¢ Gourt, after hearing the evidence. settles the account

'ni}-’.h'fzcn gl_\'un a3 rdi’-"“d by L“ s
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EXHIBIT 3

FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999
2019-07-11 01:58:43 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transacion # 7368097 : csulezic
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STATE OF NEVADA o MICHAEL WILLDEN

w Director

JIM GIBBONS
Governer

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
DIVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH AND DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES
NORTHERN NEVADA ADULT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

480 Galletti Way
Sparks, Nevada 89431-5574
(775) 688-2001 = FAX (775) 688-2192

September 15, 2010

To: Park Manor Apartments
From: Paula Proulx, SC

RE: Ralph Goad

To: Angela

I am writing you a letter in xegards to Mr. Ralph Goad, NNAMH is presently his Rep Payee. NNAMHS will be
forwarding a deposit check and his rent checks. He is allotted personal money, food money and a bus pass. 1
understand the rent is $475 and Mr, Goad bas the income to support this amount of rent.

Mr. Goad keeps his apartment véry neat and tidy.

If you have any questions regarding Mr. Goad, please feel free to contact me at 688-2134.

S?e M-Q-m]y ﬁw_@ é&/
Paula Proubx, SC

Northem Nevada Adult Mental Health
(775) 688-2134
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Social Security A%ﬂ]inistration
Retirement, Survivors, and Disability Insurance
Important Information -

Southeastern PSC
Birmingham Social Security Center

1200 Rev. Abraham Woods, Jr. Blvd.

Birmingham, Alabama 35285-0001
| | Date: July’28, 2015

ittt gttt gy Cladm Number: 226-68-2092 D1

0000254 CTPMKS 1A 0440
? RALPH_EDMOND GOAD
£ 33 S PARK STREET

APT 213

RENO NV 89502-0823

We have chosen PAYEE COUNSELING SERVICES INC to be your
representative payee. Your payee will receivé your checks each
month and will use this money for your needs.

Information About Your Checks

We are sending your regular monthly check of $827.00 to PAYEE
COUNSELING SERVICES INC around August 3, 2015.

Suspect Social Security Fraud?

Please visit http://oig.ssa:gov/r or call the Inspector  ——- .
General's Fraud Hotline at 1-800-269-0271 (TTY 1-866-=501-2101).

If You Have Questions

We invite you to visit our website at www.socialsecurity.gov on
the Internet to find general information about Social Security.
If you have any specific questions, you may call us toll-free
at 1-800-772-1213, or call your local Social Security office at
1-888-80B-5481. We can answer most qguestions over the phone.
If you are deaf or hard of hearing, you may call our TTY v
number, 1-800-325-0778. You can also write or vigit any Social
Security office. The office that serves your area is located
at:

SOCIAL SECURITY
1170 HARVARD WAY
RENO,NV 89502

SEE NEXT PAGE sl

‘]2.:
9s924L %

B
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FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999
2019-07-12 03:00:3
Jacqueline Bryat

CODE 410 Clerk of the Cou
et S Transsstion # 7371

WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
JAY SLOCUM, BAR # 9099

JENNIFER MAYHEW, BAR# 11349

350 S. CENTER ST, 5™ FLOOR

RENO, NV 89501

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Vs. Case No. CR19-0999
RALPH GOAD, Dept. No. 4

Defendant.
/

SUPPLEMENT TO EXHIBIT

COMES NOW, Defendant RALPH W. GOAD, by and through his attorneys
of record, Deputy Public Defenders JAY SLOCUM and JENNIFER MAYHEW, and
hereby files the attached Supplement to Exhibit 2, to the previously filed,
Opposition to State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Motive.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the following document does not
contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 12th day of July, 2019.

JOHN L. ARRASCADA
Washoe County Public Defender

By: /s/ Jay Slocum By: _/s/ Jennifer Mavhew

JAY SLOCUM JENNIFER MAYHEW
Deputy Public Defender Deputy Public Defender

) PM
it
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| CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ‘
I certify that I am an employee of the WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC
DEFENDER’S OFFICE, and that on the 12th day of July, 2019, I electronically

served, a true copy of the attached document, addressed to:

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

/s/ Jessica Haro
JESSICA HARO
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2. Supplement

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

16 pages
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Exhibit 2
(Supplemental)

Exhibit 2
(Supplemental)
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DE-111

ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY, STATE BAR NO -

name: Shawn J. Ervin 179450

“ramname: Collins, Ritchie & Ervin, LLP
streeTaooress 331 J Street, Suite 200

ery. Sacramento state CA zpcooe 95814
vewerHoneno: {(916) 273-4902 raxno: (916) 273-4891
emaLaooress: Servin@crellp.com

ATTORNEY FOR (ame); Petitioner, Robert Goad

FOR COURT USE ONLY

FILED

Sacramento
02/01/2047

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF  Sacramento
swreeTavoress: 3341 Power Inn Road
MAILING ADDRESS:
city mio ziecobe: Sacramento, CA 95826
BrANCH NAME: William Ridgeway Family Relations Court

thrice
By

Superior Caurt Of Californi

Cage Numbur:

ESTATE OF (name): Elan Goad

DECEDENT

34-2017-00207298

» Deput]

=

=

PETITION FOR [X]Probate of [_JLost Will and for Letters Testamentary
[ClProbate of [_JLost Will and for Letters of Administration
with Will Annexed
[ Letters of Administration
[l Letters of Special Administration [ with general powers
[XJ Authorization to Administer Under the Independent
Administration of Estates Act [_Jwith limited authority

CASE NUMBER;:

HEARING OATE AND TIME:

Y420 N CTram

DEPY.:

L4

4. Publication will be in (specify name of newspaper): The Daily Recorder

a.-[_] Publication requested.
b. [X] Publication to be arranged.
2. Petitigner (iame 6ach)) Robert Goad

requests that
a. @] decedent's will and codicils, if any, be admitied lo probate.
b. {name): Robert Goad
1) B executor
2y ) adrinistrator with will annexed
(3) O admiinistrator
@ [ special administrator (] with general powers
and Létters issue upon qualification.
c. X fun (] limited authority be granted to administer under the Indepe
d. (1) XA bond not be required for the reasons stated in ilem 3d.

be appointed

ndent Administration of Estates Ac!.

@ s bond be fixed. The bond will be fumished by an admitted surely insurer or as otherwise
provided by law. (Specify reasons in Attachment 2 if the amount is different from the maximum required by Prob.

Code, § 8482.) )
(3) Os in deposils in a blocked account be allowed. R
(Specify institulion and location):

3. a. Decedent died on (date): 11/3/2016 at (place):
(1) X] a resident of the county named above.

2 [ a nonresident of California and lefi an estale in the county named above located at (specify location permitting
publication in the newspaper named in jlem 1):

eceipls will be filed.

Sacramento, CA

Page 10f 4

Probute Code, §5 8002, 10450,
v couts €a gov

b. D Decedent was a cilizen of a country olher lhan the United States (specify country):
c. e at time of death (specify):
SiipULLL ) AT S
Sacramento, CA 95831
Fomm Agapted lor Mardatary s T PETITION FOR PROBATE
B o Geia 1 5007) (Probate-Decedents Estates)
Essential

{z}Forms-

68



DE-111

ESTATE OF (name):
Elan Goad

DECEDENT

CASE NUMBER:

3.d. Character and estimated value of the property of the astate (complete in all cases):

(1) Personal property: $ 98,700.00
(2) Annual gross income from

(a) real property: $ 0.00

{b) personal properly: $ 0.00
(3) Subtotal (add (1) and (2)): $ 98,700.00
(4) Gross fair market value of real property:  § 0.00
(5) (Less) Encumbrances: (% 0.00)
(6) Net value of real property: $ 0.00

(7) Total (add (3) and (6)):

$ 9R8.,.700.00

e. (1) X will waives bond. [ Special administrator |s the named executor, and the will waives bond.
(2) L Al beneficlarles are adults and have waived bond, and the will does not require a bond, (Affix walver as Attachment

3e(2).)

(3) L All heirs at law are adults and have waived bond. (Affix walver as Attachment 3e(3).)
(4) 0 Sole personal representative Is a corporate fiduciary or an exempt govemment agency.

f. (1) [} Decedent died intestate.
(2) ] Copy of decedent's will dated: 3/3/2010
2/16/2011

X codicil dated (specify for sach):

are affixed as Attachment 3(2). (/nclude typed copies of hendwﬂtterﬁq_c:fimefgg agd ﬁnfg% {%’lfﬂ‘_’ﬂ‘@s of foreign-

language documents.)

e

X3 The will and all codicils are self-proving (Prob. Code, § 8220). Codicil is holographic.
(3) 20 The original of the will and/or codlcil identified above has been lost. (Affix a copy of the lost will or codicll or a wrilten
statementf of the toestamentary words or their subslance in Attachment 3f(3), and state reasons in that attachment

why the presumplion in Prob. Code, § 6124 does nof apply.)

g. Appointment of parsonal representative (check all applicable boxes):
(1) Appointmenl of executor or administrator with will annexed:

(a) X} Proposed executor is named as executor in the will and consents to act.

(b) ) No executor is named in the will.

{¢) (L] Proposed personal representalive Is a nomines of a person entitled to Letters.

(Affix nomination as Attachment 3g(1){c).)

(d) ] Other named executors will not act because of [N death ] declination

(3 other reasons (specify):

[ Continued in Attachment 3g(1)(d).
(2) Appointment of administrator:

(a) (X Petitioner is a person entitled to Letters. (If necessary, expfain priority in Attachment 3g(2)(a).)
(b) (] Petitioner is a nominee of a person entilled to Letters. (Affix nomination as Attachment 3g(2)(b).)

(¢) [ Petitioner is related to the decedent as (specify):

(3) 0 Appointment of special administrator requested. (Specify grounds and requested powers in Attachment 3g(3).)
(4) 2] Proposed personal representative would be a successor personal representative.

h. Proposed personal representalive is a
(1) X3 resident of California.
(2) 0 nonresident of California {specify permanent address):

(3) (XA resident of the Uniled States.
(4) (] nonresident of the United States.

95513 v, Jouary 1, 2017) ~PETITION FOR PROBATE

Essentlal {Probate-Decedents Estates)
[Z|Forms-

Page 2 0f 4



DE-111

ESTATE OF (name): Elan Goad CASE KUMBER:

DECEDENT

4. [X) Decedent's will does not preciude administration of this estate under the Independent Administration of Estates Act.
5. a Decedent was suivived by {check items (1) or (2}, and (3) or (4), and (5) or (6), and (7) or (8))
(1) 3 spouse.

2y X1 no spouse as follows:
(2 XA divorced or never married.
vy (3 spouse deceased.
(3) [ registered domestic partner.
4 X1 no registered domestic pariner. (See Fam. Code, § 297.5(c); Prob. Code, §§ 37(b}, 6401(c), and 6402.)
5) [X1] child as follows:
(@) [X] natural or adopted.
(b} (X natural edopted by a third party.
6) [ nochild.
7y ] issve of a predeceased child.
(8 [XJ noissue of a predeceased child.

b. Decedent [} was [X] wasnot survived by a stepchild or foster child or children who would have been adopted by
decedent but for a legal barrler. {See Prob. Code, § 6454.)

6. (Complete if decedent was survived by (1) a spouse or registered domestic pariner but no issue (only a or b epply), or (2) no
spouse, registered domestic partner, or issue. (Check the first box that applies):

(20 Decedent was survived by a parent or parents who are listed in item 8.

[} Decedent was survived by issue of deceased parents, all of whom are listed in ltem 8.

) Decedent was survived by a grandparent or grandparents who are lisled in item 8,

[} Decedent was survived by issue of grandparents, all of whom are listed in item 8.

(2] Decedent was survived by issue of a predeceased spouse, all of whom are listed in item 8.

() Decedant was survived by next of kin, all of whom are listed in item 8.

[C] Decedent was survived by parenis of a predeceased spouse or issue of those parents, if both are predeceased, all of
whom are listed in item 8.

h. [} Decedent was survived by no known next of kin.

@~® a0 T

7. (Complets only if no spouse or issue survived decedent.)
a. (] Decedent had no predeceased spouse.

b. [ Decedent had a predeceased spouse who

(1) [ died not more than 15 years before decedent and who owned an interest in real property that passed to decedent,

(2) [} died not more than five years before decedent and who owned personal propetty valued at $10,000 or more that
passed to decedent, (If you checked (1) or (2), check only the first box that applies): -

(@) [} Decedent was survived by issue of a predeceased spouse, all of whom are listed in item 8.

(t) ) Decedent was survived by a parent or parents of the predeceased spouse who are listed in item 8.

(c) [} Decedent was survived by issue of a parent of the predeceased spouse, all of whom are listed in item 8.
(d) [} Decedent was survived by next of kin of the decedent, all of whom are listed in item 8.

(e) [ Decedent was survived by next of kin of the predeceased spouse, all of whom are listed in item 8.

3} [0 neither (1) nor (2) apply.

8. Listed on the next page are the names, relationships to decedent, ages, and addresses, so far as known o or reasonably
ascertainable by petitioner, of (1) all persons mentioned in decedent’s will or any codicll, whether living or deceased; (2) all persons
named or checked in items 2, 5, 6, and 7; and (3) all beneficiarles of a trust named In decedent's will or any codicil in which the
frustee and personal representative are the same person,

GE-111 {Fev. Jaruary 1, 2017) ~ "PETITION FOR PROBATE

Essential (Probate-Decedents Estates)
ElForms-

Pagn Jof 4



DE-111

ESTATE OF (name): Elan Goad CASE NUMSER:
DECEDENT
8. Name and relationship lo decadent Age Address
Robert Goad adult [ g D S L
Son Sacrawento, CA 95831
Heather Schuchardt adult [EEEsal A
Granddaughter
Ryan Schuchardt 12
Great Grandson
Tyler Schuchardt 9
Great Grandson
Ralph E. Goad adult
Son
Roy L. Goad adult
Son
Doctors Without Borders USA n/a
Charitable Beneficiary
The Smile Train n/a
Charitable Beneficiary
Goodwill n/a : AT ;
Charitable Beneficiary Rockville, MD 20855

[} Continued on Attachment 8.
9. Number of pages atlached: 12

pate: O\|B1|Z01M

Shawn J. FErvin : ) M%\»

(TYPE OR PRINT NAI\?E COF ATTORNEY) (’KI‘GNMURE OF ATTORNEY)”

“Signaturas of all peiitioners are elso required. All patitionars must elgn, but the pstillon may be veriflad by any ons of lhyr Cods, §§ 1020, 1021; Cal. Ruies of Court, rule 7.163).}

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that thef foregoing Is true and corject,
pate: 91 {511 707

S o
Robert Goad }

\
{TYPE OR PRINT NAME CF PETITIONER) ( {j,(zmmﬂe OF PETITIONER)
{TYPE OR PRINT NAME OF PETITIONER) (SIGNATURE QF PETITIONER)
Signatures of addilional petitioners follow last attachment.
DE-111 [Rav. January 1, 2017} PETITION FOR PROBATE Pagadafd
Essentlal (Probate-Decedents Estates)

F)Forms-
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Last Will And Testament
Of
Elna Louise Goad

Social Security Number fi-‘;iij‘i-’_':ii“}!f‘?"ri!‘F‘f“i""f‘

West Sacramcnto CA 95691

I, Elna Louise Goad, a resident of and domiciled in the State of California, hereby declare that
this is my Last Will and Testament and that I hereby revoke, cancel and annul al] wﬂls and
codicils previously made by me either jointly or severally. I declare that  am of legal age, and

being of sound mind, to make this Will and Testament expressing my wishes without undue

influence or duress.

1. Family Details

T am single.

| have the following children:
Name: _Ralph Edmond Goad Date of Birth:

Name: Roy Lawrence Goad __Date of Birth: ||l
Name: Robert James Goad Date of Birth:

2. Appointment of Executors

2.1 lhereby nominate, constitute and appoint Robert James Goad as Executor or if this

Executor is unable or unwilling to serve then [ appoint _Evan Auberry as alternate

Executor,

2.2 Thereby give and grant the Executor all powers and authority as are required or allowed

in law, especially that of assumption.

2.3 Ihereby dircct that my Executors shall not be required to furnish security and shall serve

lof6 -, %’

without any bond.
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2.4 My Executors shall have authority to borrow money for any purpose connected with the
liquidation and administration of my estate and to that end may encumber any assets of my
estate.

2.5 My Executors shall have authority to engage the services of attorneys, accountants and
other advisors as he/she may deem necessary to assist with the execution of this Last Will and
Testament and to pay reasonable compensation for their services from my estate.

3. Bequests

3.1 Tbequeath unto the persons named below, if he/she survives me by 5 (five) days, the
following cash, understanding that all bank and financial accounts which reflect cash ‘

investments only, includes checking and savings accounts, bank CD‘s (Certificates of Deposit),
money markets, etc. which make up the bulk of my estate:

Name: Robert J. Goad
Relationship: Son
Address: PEEEH
Cash: 50%

ey

§Courtland, CA 95615

Name: Heather Schuchardt
Relationship: Grand Daughter '

Address: Fisai | Woodland, CA 95695
Cash: 10%

Name: Ryan Schuchardt, Tyler Schuchardt
Relationship: Great Grandchildren
Address:

R e T

e R A T v s )

oodland, CA 95695

Cash: 10 % To be divided equally among surviving great grandchildren. Cash to be held in a
bank CD until they reach an age of 28 years old.

20f6 ff"}b
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Name; Ralph E. Goad
Relationship: Son

Address: (Estate to contact Social Security for location.)
Cash: 5%

Name: Roy L. Goad
Relationship: Son

Address: (Can be contacted through Heather Schuchardt)
Cash: 5%

Name: Doctors Without Borders USA
Relationship: Charity

f=. |, Hagerstown, MD 21741

Cash: 15%

Name: The Smile Train
Relationship: Charity
Address o
Cash: 5%

#4 New York, NY 10010

32  Ifatthe time of my death any of the property described in 3.1, above is no longer in my
possession ot part of my estate, then the bequest of such property shall be deemed null and void

and shall no longer form part of this Wiil and Testament.

33  Ifany of the persons named in 3.1, above do not survive me by 5 (five) days, the property

bequeathed to such person shall become part of the remainder of my estate.

3of6 g.{%
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4. Remaining Property and Residual Estate

* 4.1  Ibequeath the remainder of my estate, property and effects, whether moveable or

immovable, wheresoever situated and of whatsoever nature to Robert James Goad named iun L.

above,

4.2  Idirect that the inheritance devolving upon any of my children under my Last Will and
Testament as well as the proceeds, the reinvestment of such proceeds and the income thereon
shall be free from legal effects of any present or future marriage of any of my children, whether
in or out of community property including any accrual system and with or without the presence
of any pre-marital agreement. _

43  Should any of my children not survive me by 5 (five) days I direct that the remainder of
my estate, property and effects, whether moveable or immovable, wheresoever situated and of

whitsoever nature to _Dravo Sansom [ TCourtland, CA 95615.

5. Special Requests _
I direct that on my death my remains shall be cremated and all cremation expenses shall be paid
out of my estate. My wishes regarding burial are as follows:
I have donated my body for medical research. Any remains are to be cremated and placed
with my grandmother Elizabeth Salisbury in the old Cherokee Cemetery north of

Oroville California (Just off Highway 70). A small engraved stone marker is to be placed
at the site. ‘

6. General _

6.1  ‘Words signifying one gender shall include the others and words signifying singular shall
include the plural and vice versa where appropriate.

62  Should any provision of this will be judged by an appropriate court of law as invali(i it

shall not affect any of the remaining provisions whatsoever.

40f6 A0
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SELF-PROVING AFFIDAVIT

A T A e AP e

State of California

County of Yolo, SS.,

We, Elna Louise Goad, and M W M\) WLLM/
Neton) dindban

% Testator and the witnesses respectwcly, whose nanies are

signed to the attached of fgregoing instrument, have been sworn, declared to the undersigned
officer that the Testator, in the presence of the witnesses, signed the instrument as the Testator’s
Last Will and Testament and that each of the witnesses, in the presence of the Testator and in the

presence of each other, signed the Will as & witness.

FA T Tt =5 7=

Testator and Date "

/ / ; ¢ /Q.&< |
Witness and Date 3L | Address:

Witness and Date 3-3-/ o Address:

Sof6 Z".,Z’j
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T 4 Nreesa

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY CF YOLO, 83.,

: RO
Subscribed and swom to (or affirmed) before me on this

3. day of
Megc ,2010,bvENE L Goan

, proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person who appeared before me.

..................

At D

SANJEEV PATHAX |

COMM, #1788039 11
Notary Public-Cailfornia

o~

SACRAMENTO COUNTY

T @
(Seal)

P

Signaturé of Notary Public

sofs £
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TRANSCRIPTION OF HOLOGRAPHIC CODICIL
2-16-11

Page 1

Codicil Original

Under 3. Bequests:

Shauld my son Robert J. Goad of

SR ATREIEE ] Courtland, CA 95615 preceed me In death:

I want the percentages of my money requests be as follows:

Heather, my granddaughter of GllEE Essttd Woodland, CA 95695 should receive: 27.50.%

., J7

My Son Ralph Edmond Goad (contact social security for address: should receive 10%

Ray L. Goad, my middle son, of c/o Heather D. Schnehardt of address above, to receive 7.5 %
To be held in bank trust fiflegible) till age 28 (each) |

Great Grand children Ryan + Tyler + if others to equally split 12.5% (c/o Heather S as above.

My son, Roberts’, domestic partner, Dravo Samson at Robert's address above, to receive 10.0 %
Elna L. Goad 2-16-11 continued page 2
2-16-11 |
Page 2 Codicile {continued) Original
3. Bequests ~ Charities
A. Smile Train
Receives 7.5 %
B. Doctors Without Borders
Recelve 22.25 %
Goodwill (California |
Receive 2,5 %
(100% herewith)
Under 4.3 Please delete (Cancel) this Paragraph

Remaining Property 4.1
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Uriger 4.1 Robert my son (Executor) Is sharing my personal and Hbuwhold items with my 7
Granddaughter Heather D. Schuchardt of G Woodland, CA 95695

For original will only Heather gets 15% Instead of 10% -> My son Robert will choose items he wants,
before  die. Also under 3. Requests Robert gets 45% + Heather 15% In original will if | die 1%,

Sincerely, Elma L. Goad

2-16-'11

Robert as written above Is to take no monies during 5 days after my death except the co signed CD.
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FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999

2019-07-18 11:15:05 AM

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7380569 : csulexi

CODE 2645

Christopher J. Hicks
#7747

One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501

(775) 328-3200

Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT COF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.
* k%
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No: CR19-0999
V. Dept: D04
RALPH GOAD,

Defendant.

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO PRECLUDE OR LIMIT USE OF PREJUDICIAL
PHOTOGRAPHS, VIDEOS AND DEMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through CHRISTOPHER J.
HICKS, District Attorney of Washoe County and AMOS STEGE, Deputy
District Attorney, and files this Response to Motion Preclude or
Limit Use of Prejudicial Photographs, Videos and Demonstrative
Evidence.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and
pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in
support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if deemed
necessary by this Honorable Court.

/77
///
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

The defendant stabbed the Theodore Gibson to death in a studio
apartment. His body was discovered three weeks later in a mild state
of decay. His body lay face down, covered with a blanket, his feet
sticking out. When the blanket was removed, stab wounds covered the
victim’s head and back. Beside the body lay a bloody pair of
scissors and the victim’s ransacked wallet. Blood spattered the
walls. Near the bathroom sink a bloody hunting knife had been
hastily washed.

Responding officers wore body cameras which depict the scene and
body. Many photographs were taken.

The medical examiner discovered that Mr. Gibson had been stabbed
over 200 times. The wounds evidenced the use of at least two
different weapons. There were stab wounds to the face, eyes, neck,
scalp, ears, chest, abdomen, sides, back, arms, and hands!. Blows had
punctured each lung.

The defendant is charged with open murder to include a theory of
felony murder (robbery/burglary).

Lacking an eyewitness to the crime the crime scene as well as
the number, type, location, and extent of the injuries is highly
relevant and probative of malice, premeditation, willfulness,
deliberation, and robbery.

/17
A
/77

I Amongst the coroner’s findings are 151 wounds to the face/head, 76 wounds to the

chest, 17 to right forearm and wrist, and 5 to the left hand. 85
()
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Law

Photographs may be gruesome and shocking due to the brutality
of the crime. While gruesome, photographs are probative of reality.
In Browne, the Nevada Supreme Court held:

e have repeatedly held that despite gruesomeness,
photographic evidence has been held admissible when
utilized to show the cause of death and when it reflects the
severity of wounds and the manner of their infliction.” Thus,
gruesome photos will be admitted if they aid in ascertaining
the truth?.

In this case, the defendant makes naked and blanket statements

that the photographs are not relevant, immaterial, cumulative, and
unfairly prejudicial.

Jason Browne beat his wife to death with a baseball bat.
Responding officers found blood splattered on the floor, ceiling, and
walls of the kitchen and a baseball bat lying across the victim’s
body. The medical examiner found that the victim’s face was
unrecognizable, her head was one large bruise, she had defense wounds
to her arms, a hinge fracture to her skull, her skull was exposed,
and there were “no real life-like contours to the head”3. The
Supreme Court found no abuse of discretion in admission of the
photographs?.

Robert Byford executed an eighteen year old girl by shooting her
twice in the head. He then poured gasoline on her and lit her body
on fire. He returned a week later and partially buried her

decomposing, maggot-covered body. Two weeks later her body was found

2 Browne v. State, 113 Nev. 305, 314 (1997) (citing Theriault v. State, 92 Nev. 185,
193 (1976); Scott v. State, 92 Nev. 552, 556 (1976); Allen v. State, 91 Nev. 78,
82, (1975)).

3 Browne supra at 310.

! Browne at 314. 86
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having been partly eaten by coyotes or wild dogs. At trial the State
admitted evidence of maggots found on the victim’s body, and
photographs of her body. The Supreme Court found no error in the
district court’s decision to admit these disturbing photos>.

Claude Theriault and his accomplice repeatedly stabbed a couple
to death in a motel room. He complained to the Supreme Court that
the photographs used to convict him were gruesome. The Court
responded:

“The photos are gruesome. They do, however, depict the scene
of the crime. Despite gruesomeness, photographic evidence has
been held admissible when it accurately shows the scene of
the crime, or when utilized to show the cause of death and
when it reflects the severity of wounds and the manner of
their infliction, In the instant case, the district Jjudge
found that the probative value of the photographic evidence
outweighed the prejudicial effect, if any, and properly
received the photos in evidence.”®
A “gruesome” label is merely the first among this Court’s analysis.

The defendant’s reading of Sipsas is flawed. At issue in Sipsas
was the admission of a single autopsy photograph of a deceased child,
specifically “the body during evisceration with the skin opened,
exposing the child's organs”’. The trial court excluded the
photograph on grounds of undue prejudice. Later the prosecutor

admitted the photo to refresh the pathologist’s recollection®. The

5 Byford v. State, 116 Nev. 215,231 (2000) (“"The district court considered them and
Byford's objections and concluded that the photos were relevant to show the crime
scene and the condition of the victim's body”).

6 Theriault v. State, 92 Nev. 185, 193, (1976) overruled on other grounds by Alford
v. State, 111 Nev. 1409, 906 P.2d 714 (1995) and Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. Adv.

Op. 10, 270 P.3d 1244 (2012).

7 Sipsas v. State, 102 Nev. 119, 122, 716 P.2d 231, 233 (1986).

5 Sig;as v. State, 102 Nev. 119, 124, 716 P.2d 231, 234 (1986) (“"The record does not
reflect that the trial court ever reversed this previous finding. Instead, the
court incorrectly admitted the photograph under the guise of NRS 50.125(1) (d). This
is an abuse of the court's discretion”). 87
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Court found error because the expert had not testified to lack of
recollection (“it was not used, nor was it needed to refresh [the
doctor’s] recollection”?®). 1In spite of the defendant’s misleading
recitation of a footnote from the opinion, the Court found
“[s]ltanding alone, the admission of the photograph might not warrant
reversal.l%” It was only after also finding prosecutorial misconduct
(“The hired gun from Hot Tub Country”) that the Supreme Court reverse
on cumulative error grounds.
Relevance

“The prosecution's burden to prove every element of the crime
is not relieved by a defendant's tactical decision not to contest an

essential element of the offense.ll” Further:

“Regardless of the defendant's willingness to stipulate, the
government 1s entitled to prove the crime by introduction of
probative evidence.” The unwillingness of courts to force
the prosecutor to accept a criminal defendant's stipulation
is based on the long-standing rule that “the criminal accused
cannot ‘plead out’ an element of the charged offense by
offering to stipulate to that element.'?”

While prejudicial to the defendant’s case, the Court must determine
if the prejudice is unfair and whether it substantially outweighs the
probative value of the photographs under NRS 48.035(2). Among the
Vi, Y

g v

/77

® Id. at 119, 234.

10 el

11 Estelle v. McGuire, 502 U.S. 62, 70, 112 s.Ct. 475, 481 (1991).

12 United States v. Breitkreutz, 8 F.3d 688, 690-91 (9th Cir. 1993) (internal
citation, quotations omitted) abrogated on other grounds by 0ld Chief v. United
States, 519 U.S. 172, 117 S. Ct. 644 (1997). 88
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most basic and legitimate reasons is that scene and autopsy photos
prove elements of the offense, namely malice, willfulness,
premeditation and deliberation?3.

Misleading Citations

In addition to ignoring cases directly on point, supra, the

defendant makes several misleading citations. First, Allen v State,

for which the defendant enters the parenthetical “color photos of the
victims were taken prior to autopsy thus avoiding the problems
presented by gruesome photos”. The reality is that this minor claim
in Allen bears no such ‘avoiding the problems’ rationale. The
entirety of the discussion in Allen is:

Appellant also contends that the district court erred by
admitting into evidence color photographs of the victims,
which he claims were taken after autopsies were performed.
The record clearly shows that they were taken prior to the
autopsies. Color photographs of a victim used by a doctor to
explain the cause of death to a jury are properly admissible
because they aid in the ascertainment of truth. The probative
value of the photographs outweighs any prejudicial effect
they might have on the jury!.

In the same string citation the defendant assigns the parenthetical
“two photos were admitted to explain cause of death” to Athey.

Reading Athey it is clear that Athey challenged the admission two

13 DePasquale v. State, 106 Nev. 843, 848, 803 P.2d 218, 221 (1990) (“Premeditation
and deliberation can be inferred from the nature and extent of the injuries,

coupled with repeated blows”). See also, Jones v. State, 113 Nev. 454, 468 n. 3,
(1997) (concluding that evidence of 36 stab wounds was, in itself, “overwhelming
evidence upon which the jury could have found ... first-degree murder”);

Valdez v. State, 124 Nev. 1172, 1204, (2008) (evidence the defendant sliced the

vietim’s chin consistent with an attempt to slice her throat and the victim

suffered a total of nine stab wounds and multiple blunt force injuries among facts

that “strongly demonstrate that Valdez committed a willful, premeditated, and

deliberate murder”) .

14 pllen v. State, 91 Nev. 78, 82, 530 P.2d 1195, 1197-98 (1975). 89
6
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specific photographs of the deceased child’s headl>. The case cannot
be read to mean that only two photographs were admitted or, as the
defense urges, as a precedent for only two photos. The same can be
said for the defendant’s assertion in Nalls that only two photographs
were admitted. Nalls only challenged twol®. Shuff is a poor case to
rely on as the issue was whether a color photograph was too
inflammatory when a black and white one was already in evidencel’?.
Finally in Wallace, the defendant reads too much into a 1968 case.
The entirety of the discussion is four sentences:

The colored photograph of the nude decedent was taken at the
morgue. The doctor used that photograph to explain to the
jury the various wounds and their relation to the cause of
death. It is not suggested that the photograph was inaccurate.
Since the purpose of trial is to ascertain and disclose the
truth we will not subvert that purpose and declare relevant
photographic evidence inadmissible simply because it damages
the defenseld.

/17
/77

15 “Athey further contends that under Sipsas, the district court abused its
discretion in admitting two autopsy photographs of Paul's head..” Athey v. State,
106 Nev. 520, 525-26, 797 P.2d 556, 959 (1990). The Court later finding “, [Tlhe
trial judge determined that the two autopsy photographs were more probative than
prejudicial.” Id.
16 Nalls v. State, 90 Nev. 124, 125, 520 P.2d 611, 612 (1974) (“Appellant contends
the trial court erred by admitting into evidence two color photographs of the
wound, which he claims were offered solely to inflame the passions of the jury”).
7 shuff v. State, 86 Nev. 736, 739-40, 476 P.2d 22, 24 (1970). Shuff’s:
“[Plrimary objection is to the considerable amount of blood shown in the
photograph, which he contends had a tendency to inflame the jury. He also
asserts that the colored photograph was duplicative and that it was
introduced by the state for the sole purpose of inflaming the minds and
passions of the jury.
In his testimony the appellant stated that he placed the knife in the
victim's hand before she crumpled to the floor. It therefore became very
importarit that the jury be able to see the position of the knife in the
victim's hand. Although, it is true that a black and white photograph, in
evidence, did show the wvictim's right arm and hand, it did not picture
the knife with the same clarity found in the colored photograph”.
18 Wallace v. State, 84 Nev. 603, 606, 447 P.2d 30, 31 (1968) (citing Langley v.
State, 84 Nev. 295, 439 P.2d 986 (1968})) 90
1
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Timing
The defendant seeks an empty placeholder objection to unfairly
limit the prosecution’s case. The defendant claims that:

Here, the [unspecified] photograph(s) prejudices Mr. Goad
because the depiction 1is passion-inflaming, emotion and
sympathy invoking and, therefore, patently prejudicial.
Further, any juror that sees the photograph(s) will be misled
by focusing attention on the grotesque nature of the alleged
injuries rather than ascertaining the truthl?.

By not identifying specific photographs, the defendant hamstrings the
prosecution’s ability to respond. Context is everything.

The request for a pretrial hearing intentionally ignores trial
realities. The prosecution does not know what theory the defense
will advance at trial. The specifics of witness testimony have not
been heard. The State cannot know or predict what adjustments,
including to exhibits, must be made.

Best Course

The wiser course is this: after exhibit marking the defendant
will know what photographs he may want to object to. As the trial
progresses to admission of specific photographs any objections can be
brought up outside the jury’s presence.

Conclusion

For the reasons above the defendant’s motion should be denied.

19 Defense motion at page 3, line 21-25.
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AFFTRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 18th day of July, 2019.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By /s/ Amos Stege
AMOS STEGE
9200
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY E-FILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of
the Washoe County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date,
I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court. A
notice will be sent electronically to the following:

James “Jay” Slocum
Deputy Public Defender

Jennifer A. Mayhew
Deputy Public Defender

Dated this 18th day of July, 20109.

By /s/ Amos Stege
AMOS STEGE
9200
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999

2019-07-18 05:00:21 PM

Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7381972 : ywis

CODE 3880

Christopher J. Hicks
#7747

One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501

(775) 328-3200

Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.

*x * %
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No: CR19-0999%
V. Dept: D04
RALPH GOAD,
Defendant. ’

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION IN LIMINE RE: OTHER ACT EVIDENCE

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through CHRISTOPHER J.
HICKS, District Attorney of Washoe County and AMOS STEGE, Deputy
District Attorney, and files this Opposition to the Defendant’s
“Motion in Limine Re: Alleged Other Bad Acts, NRS 48.045".

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and
pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in
support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if deemed
necessary by this Honorable Court.
oy
W% Y
Y

94

ia



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

The parties and the Court are well versed in the contours of

other act evidence. See, e.g. NRS 48.045(2), Bigpond v. State, 128

Nev. 108, 270 P.3d 1244, 1249 (2012) (recognizing other act evidence

may be admissible for a relevant nonpropensity purpose other than

those listed in the statute and modifying three part test); Tinch v.

State, 113 Nev. 1170 (1997) (requirement of hearing outside presence

of jury); Tavares v State, 117 Nev. 725 (2001) (requirement of

contemporaneous Jjury instruction).
The statute and case law are clear that prior act analysis

applies to witnesses as well as the defendant. Mortensen v. State,

115 Nev. 273, 280, 986 P.2d 1105, 1110 (1999) (rejecting the claim
that NRS 48.045(20 applies only to the accused as “[t]lhe plain
language of NRS 48.045(2) uses the term “person,” rather than
“defendant,” or “accused.” and “[H]ad the legislature intended NRS
48.045(2) to apply only to an accused, it would have clearly stated
so”) . Indeed character evidence is generally not admissible. NRS
48.045(1).

First NRS 48.045(1) (a) permits:

Evidence of a person’s character or a trait of a character
offered by the accused, and similar evidence offered by the
prosecution to rebut such evidence.

Next, NRS 48.045(1l) (b) permits:

Evidence of the character or a trait of character of the victim
of the crime offered by an accused, subject to the procedural
requirements of NRS 48.069 where applicable, and similar
evidence offered by the prosecution to rebut such evidence
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Importantly when character evidence is admissible it is limited
to reputation evidence and specific acts are not admissible except on
cross examination of the witness (for the character trait). NRS
48.055. Specifically NRS 48.055 reads:

NRS 48.055 Methods of proving character.

1. In all cases in which evidence of character or
a trait of character of a person is admissible, proof may be
made by testimony as to reputation or in the form of an
opinion. On cross-examination, inquiry may be made into
specific instances of conduct.

2. In cases 1in which character or a trait of
character of a person is an essential element of a charge,
claim or defense, proof of specific instances of the person’s
conduct may be made on direct or cross—-examination.

All evidence, including character evidence, must be relevant to
be admissible. NRS 48.025. (“Evidence which is not relevant is not

admissible”), see Coombs v. State, 91 Nev. 489, 490(1975) (“[b]efore

any evidence is admissible, it must be relevant. Character evidence
is no exception”).

The State will abide by the above framework and has already
filed one other act motion.
Opposition

Nonetheless the Court should deny the motion. On the one hand
it may appear as an innocuous exhortation to abide by the law. On
the other though, it seeks to upset that very law. Procedurally the
motion invites the State to place any other act evidence in the
/17
/17
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instant opposition, depriving the State of its reply as the moving
party.

Substantively the defendant seeks change, all of it thin on
rationale or legal citation. First, by asking that any hearing occur
only before the trial ignores that legitimate possibility that a
hearing be conducted at any time thereafter. In fact, the only legal
requirement is that such a hearing occur “outside the presence of the

jury”. See, inter alia, Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. 108, 119, 270

P.3d 1244, 1251 (2012) (Trial court properly conducted hearing outside
presence of the jury after witness recanted her testimony);Ledbetter
v. State, 122 Nev. 252, 259, 129 P.3d 671, 677 (2006) (While trial
should conduct “[a] hearing outside the presence of the jury” failure
to hold a proper hearing will not mandate reversal if 1) the record
is sufficient or 2) where result would have been the same if the

court had not admitted the evidence); Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170,

1175, 946 P.2d 1061, 1064 (1997), holding modified by Bigpond, supra
(“The trial court conducted a hearing outside of the presence of the
jury on [the other act evidencel”). This recognizes the realities of
trial. The State does not know the defense strategy, or other ways
that other act evidence may become relevant.

In broad, unsupported terms the defendant “maintains” that the
defendant cannot make trial téctic decisions unless it knows the
entire universe of other acts prior to trial. First, it ought to go
without saying that without citation, the assertion fails. Second,
the defendant lived the other acts, so he is aware of them. Third,

having to make a trial strategy decision, such as whether to testify
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must always be made with risk and the instant issue does not have a
constitutional dimension. The United States Supreme Court reasoning

in Williams is analogous. Williams v. Florida, 399 U.S. 78, 90 S. Ct.

1893 (1970). The Williams court rejected the contention that notice-

of-alibi statues violate Due Process and Fifth Amendment rights, and
noted that:

The defendant in a criminal trial is frequently forced to
testify himself and to call other witnesses in an effort to
reduce the risk of conviction. When he presents his witnesses,
he must reveal their identity and submit them to cross-
examination which in itself may prove incriminating or which
may furnish the State with leads to incriminating rebuttal
evidence. That the defendant faces such a dilemma demanding
a choice between complete silence and presenting a defense
has never been thought an invasion of the privilege against
compelled self-incrimination. The pressures generated by the
State's evidence may be severe but they do not vitiate the
defendant's choice to present an alibi defense and witnesses
to prove 1it, even though the attempted defense ends in
catastrophe for the defendant. However ‘testimonial’ or
‘incriminating’ the alibi defense proves to be, it cannot be
considered ‘compelled’ within the meaning of the Fifth and
Fourteenth Amendments. Williams at 83-84, 1897.

The defendant has the procedural protection Bigpond et al., the
Court should not expand it.

The defendant also lumps in the rationale that it will help him
decide whether to testify or not. Related rationales have been

rejected. United States v. Burreson, 643 F.2d 1344, 1350 (9th Cir.

1981) (rejecting claim that edited statements admitted against
defendant’s compelled them to testify in violation of Fifth
Amendment; “Their testimony, even if partly motivated by a desire to

respond to evidence admitted against them, was not “compelled”
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testimony”) (citing United States v. Hearst, 563 F.2d 1331, 1339 (9th

Cir. 1977), cert. denied, 435 U.S. 1000, 98 S.Ct. 1656 (1978) .

Conclusion

For the reasons stated the motion should be denied.

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 18th day of July, 20109.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By /s/ Amos Stege
AMOS STEGE
5200
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY E-FILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of
the Washoe County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date,
I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court. A
notice will be sent electronically to the following:

James “Jay” Slocum
Deputy Public Defender

Jennifer A. Mayhew
Deputy Public Defender

Dated this 18th day of July, 2019.

/s/ Amos Stege

AMOS STEGE

8200

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999

2019-07-22 02:10:0 L PM

Jacqueline Bryal

CODE 4105 Clerk of the Cou

WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER Transaction # ko9
JAY SLOCUM, BAR # 9909
JENNIFER MAYHEW, BAR# 11349
350 S. CENTER ST, 5T FLOOR
RENO, NV 89501

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
VS. Case No. CR19-0999
RALPH GOAD, Dept. No. 4

Defendant.
i
SECOND SUPPLEMENT TO EXHIBIT

COMES NOW, Defendant RALPH W. GOAD, by and through his attorneys

of record, Deputy Public Defenders JAY SLOCUM and JENNIFER MAYHEW, and
hereby files this Supplement to Exhibit 2, to the previously filed, Opposition to
State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Motive, with emphasis on page 4 of 5 reflecting
a $4,244.47 deposit from Elna Louise Goad Estate to Ralph Goad.
AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the following document does not
contain the social security number of any person.
Dated this 22nd day of July, 2019.

JOHN L. ARRASCADA
Washoe County Public Defender

By: /sl Jay Slocum By: /s/ Jennifer Mayhew

JAY SLOCUM ‘ JENNIFER MAYHEW
Deputy Public Defender Deputy Public Defender
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that I am an employee of the WASHOE COUNTY PUBLIC
DEFENDER’S OFFICE, and that on the 22nd day of July, 2019, 1 electronically

served, a true copy of the attached document, addressed to:

DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

/sl Jessica Haro
JESSICA HARO
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1. WCdJ Main Balance Log
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FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999
2019-07-22 02:10:01 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7386008

EXHIBIT 1

EXHIBIT 1
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(] ]
&0 Main Balance Trans Details o
Transactions From 3/20/2019 12:00 AM to 7/22/2019 11:58 PM
P00172307 : GOAD, RALPHE
WC H07 12 CPAN
Main Balance: $1336.24

Receipt Date Type Comment 1 Adjust Spend

Balance
3350101 7/118/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3350100 -3701.50 $1336.24
3350097 7/19/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3350096 -$501.50 $2037.74
3350093 7/19/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3350092 -$201.50 $2539.24
3350089 7/19/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3350088 -$76.50 $2740.74
3348839 7/19/201¢  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3348838 -$16.99 $2817.24
3347258 7/18/2018  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3347257 -$20.66 $2834.23
3345348 7/17/2019  BilPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3345347 -$74.70 $2854.89
3344674 7/17/2018  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3344673 -$17.72  $2929.59
3342974 7/16/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3342973 -$17.72  32947.31
3341703 7/15/2019 CredPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3341702 $0.75 $2965.03
3340963 7/15/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3340962 -$19.60 $2964.28
3336283 7/11/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3336282 -$21.20 $2983.88
3335538 7/11/2019  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3335537 -$72.30 $3005.08
3333629 7/110/2019  BilPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3333628 -$17.25 '$3077.38
3331914 7/9/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3331913 -$1.80 $3094.63
Printed 7/22/2019 Confidential Property of Washoe County Jail Page 1 owml-_|
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P00172307 : GOAD, RALPHE
WC HO7 12 CPAN

Main Balance:

$1336.24

Receipt Date Type Comment Adjust Spend
Balance
3331584 7/9/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3331583 -$17.72  $3096.43
3329560 7/8/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3329559 $15.21 $3114.15
3324915 7/4/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3324914 -$17.69 $3129.36
3322497 7/3/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3322496 -$74.95 $3147.05
3321686 7/3/2019  BiflPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3321685 -$17.72  $3222.00
3319545 7/2/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3319544 -$14.46  $3239.72
3317618 7/1/2019  BilPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3317617 $20.83 $3254.18
3313902  6/28/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3313901 -$17.89  $3275.01
3310683  6/26/2019 BilPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3310682 -$74.43  $3292.90
3309981  6/26/2019  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3309980 -$15.85 $3367.33
3308236  6/25/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3308235 -$1.20 $3383.18
3307958  6/25/2018  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3307957 -$17.72  $3384.38
3306154  6/24/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3306153 $17.38  $3402.10
3298940  6/19/201¢  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3298939 -$30.62  $3419:48
3287852  6(12/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3287851 -$22.20  $3450.10
3276409 6/5/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3276408 $15.19  $3472.30
3256838  5/24/2018  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3256837 -$23.83 $3487.49
3255406  5/23/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3255405 -$23.57 $3511.32
3251959  5/21/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3251958 -$10.00 $3534.89
3250775  5/21/201¢  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3250774 $14.76  $3544.89
Printed 7/22/2019 Confidential Property of Washoe County Jail Page 2 of 5
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P00172307 : GOAD, RALPHE
WC HO7 12 CPAN

Main Balance:

$1336.24

Receipt Date Type Comment Adjust Spend
Balance
3245609 5/17/2019  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3245608 -$21.39  $3559.65
3244173 5/16/2019  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3244172 -$23.83 $3581.04
3242353 5/15/2019  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3242352 -$75.00 $3604.87
3241660 5/15/2019 BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3241659 -$16.88 $3679.87
3239602 5/14/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3239601 -$19.40 $3696.76
3238133 5/13/2019  BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3238132 -$19.40 $3716.16
3235285 5/10/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3235284 -$10.00 $3735.56
3234541 5/10/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3234540 -§32.04 $3745.56
3232785 51912019 BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3232784 -$31.26  $3777.60
3231338 51812019 BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3231337 -$74.54 $3808.86
3230706 51812019 BilPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3230705 -$25.46 $3883.40
3228732 5/7/12019 BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3228731 -$23.05 $3908.86
3227072 5/6/2019 BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3227071 -$23.06 $3931.91
3223559 5/3/2019 BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3223558 -$14.67 $3954.97
3219783 5/1/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3219782 -$11.50 $3969.64
3216955 4/29/2019 CredPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3216954 $57.75 $3981.14
3211270 4/25/2019  BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3211269 -$7.63 $3923.39
3209693 4124/2019  BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3209692 -$57.75 - $3931.02
3209064 4/24/2019  BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3209063 -$11.95 $3988.77
3205527 4/22/2019  BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3205526 -$11.85 $4000.72
Printed 7/22/2019 Confidential Property of Washoe County Jail Page 30of 5
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P00172307 : GOAD, RALPHE
WC HO7 12 CPAN

Main Balance:

$1336.24

Receipt Date Type Comment Adjust Spend
Balance
3201984 4/19/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3201983 -$7.23 3401267
3200428 4/18/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3200425 -$13.31  $4019.90
3198388 4/17/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3198387 -$72.80 $4033.21
3197731 4/17/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3197730 -$12.24 $4106.01
3195903 4/16/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3195502 -$12.18 $4118.25
3194169 4/15/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3194168 -$5.05 $4130.43
3190356 4/12/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3190355 -$14.49 §$4135438
3188817 4/11/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3188816 -$14.58 $4149.97
3187097 4/10/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3187096 -$59.16  $4164.55
3186379 4/10/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3186378 -$9.98  $4223.71
3184649 4/9/2019 BillPay = PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3184648 -$12.43  $4233.69
3182961 4/8/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3182960 -§26.35 $4246.12
3177552 4/4/2019 BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3177551 -$20.44 $4272.47
3175754 4/3/2019 BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3175753 -$19.97 $4292.91
3175048 4/3/2019 BillPay  PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3175047 -$21.88 $4312.88
3172804 4/2/2019 Add  Check I $4244.47 $4334.76
From: Elna Louise Goad Estate
- (c/o Evan M. Auberry)
3163414 3/27/2019  BillPay PAYMENT FOR TRANS 3163413 -$14.16 $90.29
3150678  3/20/2019  Add  Check# [ $104.45  $104.45
BOOKING CHECK VER 4517
Printed 7/22/2019 Confidential Property of Washoe County Jail Page 4 of 5
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P00172307 : GOAD, RALPHE

WC HO7 12 CPAN

Main Balance:

$1336.24

Receipt Date Type Comment Adjust Spend
Balance

3150673 3/20/2019 Open OPENING ACCOUNT $0.00 $0.00

Printed 7/22/2019 Confidential Property of Washoe County Jail Page 5 of §
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FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999

2019-07-22 04:46:28 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 7386950 : yvilofi

CODE 3660

Christopher J. Hicks
#7747

One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501

(775) 328-3200

Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE.
* x %
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No: CR19-0999
V. Dept: D04
RALPH GOAD,

Defendant.

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO ADMIT EVIDENCE OF MOTIVE

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by and through CHRISTOPHER J.
HICKS, District Attorney of Washoe County and AMOS STEGE, Deputy
District Attorney, and files this Reply in Support of its Motion to
Admit Evidence of Motive.

This Response is made and based upon all the papers and
pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in
support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if deemed
necessary by this Honorablé Court.

/77
/77
/77
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

The defendant offers in opposition evidence that the defendant
received an inheritance after being booked into jail. Money received
after the fact is of little consequence. The defendant had no money
on hand because his payee service closed, issued him a final check
($253.90), and had no new payee to either receive his check or pay
his rent. He was evicted.

According to the defendant’s statement once he was evicted he
took a bus to California, was living on the street, found himself in
the hospital, and was reconnected with services there. See Exhibit
2, transcript at Bates 1343 (discussion of taking the train, drinking
whiskey, ending up in hospital, then being sent to a group home).
The defendant states that he went to California with the plan of
getting his inheritance money. Exhibit 2 at Bates at 1371 (“I had
kind of planned on get, gettin' my money here and goin' to pay back
my debts and goin' back [to Renol]”). The defendant said he had $70
and change when he left Reno. Exhibit 2 at Bates 1396 (“[Det.
Smith]: Okay. Where did you get the money to pay for that ticket?
Ralph Goad: I had $70.00 and change in my pocket”). The defendant
states that he received his payee service payout in $249.50 in
November and it lasted him two months during which time the victim
was giving him food. Exhibit 2 at Bates at 1396/ audio at
1:24:20 (Y [Det. Smith]: So November, and I apologize **** how much
money did she give you in November? Ralph Goad: 2, $2489.50. [Det.
Smith]: Okay. And that lasted you for 2 months? Ralph Goad: Yep.

Because Ted he's the one, he's giving me food to live on so I don't
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have to buy the food. And I was making all the runs to the store for
him so it kind of worked out. And I, as soon as I got this check I
was gonna pay a few things back plus the, uh, the late charges and
everything”) (this author’s insertions of transcription omissions in
bold) . Once he got to Sacramento he received his back checks (those
issued when he had no payee) but after numerous deductions he only
ended up with $200:

Well, they, the Clay Street people took me to somethin' called
SEPS, and they, well, first they took my Social Security,
then to SEPS. So when the Social Security finally gave back
those four checks they owed me, they gave it to SEPS, not to
me. So I couldn't do anything at all. And after 3 weeks or
so, they gave me a $200.00 check, which I couldn't cash 'cause
I don't have any I.D. So then they took me to a market that
cashed checks that don't have I.D., charged me $7.00 to cash
it, so they gave me $193.00. And I've been runnin' around in
the rain drinkin' beer and whiskey and, and keepin' up in
these board and care homes that I don't want anything to do
with. Exhibit 2 at Bates 1340.

As such, the evidence suggests the defendant was, 1in fact, destitute.
This situation tends to show a financial motive for the murder.
Realistically, there is little propensity inference from the
evidence. Finally, the defendant’s exhortation of prejudice, vague
as they are, do not substantially outweigh their probative value.

Bigpond v. State, 128 Nev. 108, 116-17, 270 P.3d 1244, 1249

(2012) (Third prong test is whether “the probative value of the
evidence is not substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice”) .

/77

/77
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this 22nd day of July, 2019.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By /s/ Amos Stege
AMOS STEGE
9200
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

113




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY E-FILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of

the Washoe County District Attorney's Office and that, on this date,

I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court. A

notice will be sent electronically to the following:

James “Jay” Slocum
Deputy Public Defender

Jennifer A. Mayhew
Deputy Public Defender

Dated this 22nd day of July, 2019.

/s/ Amos Stege
AMOS STEGE
9200
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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EXHIBIT 2

FILED
Electronically
CR19-0999
2019-07-22 04:46:28 PM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 7386950 : yviloria
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Other Speaker: R - =

Other Speaker: Walk out. You're right, it's in there.

Det. Nevills: Oh, perfect.

Other Speaker: Yeah, we'll take that with us. Do ya have my phone?
Other Speaker: Uh, as soon as you guys are ready, just come back ****,
Det. Nevills: Okay. Iappreciate it. Thank you. Thank you.

Other Speaker: He's all yours.

Det. Nevills: Hi, Mr. Goad.

Ralph Goad: Hi.

Det. Nevills: How are you?

Other Speaker: How you doin', sir?

Ralph Goad: Good.

Det. Nevills: My name's Dave Nevills. I'm a detective with robbery, homicide, Reno, Nevada.
This is my partner, Nick Smith.

Ralph Goad: Reno?

Det. Nevills: Reno, Nevada, yeah. How's it goin' today?

Ralph Goad: Okay.

Det. Nevills: You mind slidin' down a little bit so I can have a seat next to you?
Ralph Goad: Yeah, yeah.

Det. Nevills: So, I'd like to have a little chat with ya. Is that all right?

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: Where are you, uh, where you livin' at right now?

Ralph Goad: Nowhere, really.

Det. Nevills: Nowhere? Aren't you stayin' on Clay Street?
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Ralph Goad: No.

Det. Nevills: No?

Ralph Goad: I'm notthere. Um, I don't know. Ididn't ike that place.

Det. Nevills: You didn't like that place? So where'd you get arrested at?

Ralph Goad: Some new place.

Det. Nevills: Some new place, okay. You don't know the address of it though?
Ralph Goad: It's on my papers.

Det. Nevills: Okay, all right. Um, I heard that you were at the hospital. Were you at the
hospital for somethin'?

Ralph Goad: I fell down and hit my head.
Det. Nevills: Oh, okay. Nothin' major then?
Ralph Goad: No.

Det. Nevills: Okay. Well, we got some, some things that I want to talk to you about. Oh,
2832 Pepper Oaks?

Ralph Goad: Idon't know.

Det. Nevills: How long you been there?

Ralph Goad: 1 don't know that either. I was tryin'to get 'em to send me back to, uh, Reno at the
mental hospital, but they sent me to another. **** I cost 'em, like, $3,000.00 to be, **** room
and board, but I won't stay on this.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: Well, we got somethin' that we'd like to talk to you about. And I need to let you
know about a couple things first. You understand you have the right to remain silent. You don't

have to talk to me. You understand that?

Ralph Goad: Yeah, yeah.
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_ Det. Nevills: Uh, anything you say can and will be used against you in a court of law. You
understand that?

Ralph Goad: Yeah.
Det. Nevills: And, uh, you have the right to have a lawyer with you, uh, any time, —
Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: — uh, before and during any questioning. And if you don't have, can't afford a
lawyer, one will be appointed to you free of charge.

Ralph Goad: Yeah, I know that.
Det. Nevills: So you were livin' in Reno a while back. Right?
Ralph Goad: I've been livin' in Reno for 25 years.

Det. Nevills: 25 years? And what was your last place of, uh, residence? Where were you last
living?

Ralph Goad: 33 Park Street, Apartment 213, uh, right across from the police station, right, right
across from there.

Det. Nevills: And how many, how long did you live there?

Ralph Goad: 13 years.

Det. Nevills: 13 years?

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: Okay. You married?

Ralph Goad: Well, I was until 2010, she died.

Det. Nevills: Oh, I'm sorry about that. Yeah, that's too bad. How 'bout kids?

Ralph Goad: No, we never had kids. We didn't get married until we was 34 years old.
Det. Nevills: Okay. So—

Ralph Goad: She **** 34 years old.

Det. Nevills: Oh, okay. So what, uh, how'd you end up in Sacramento?
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. Ralph Goad: .Well, the, **** didn't pay the rent for December and then January. Ithought .-
Dicky was not serious. And then they came up and evicted me on January, January 30, I
should have had 24 hours to get out, but they locked the door and pulled out the lock without
giving me 1 minute. So everything I have is in there, all my paperwork, death certificates,
marriage license, my I.D., uh, Social Security car, ev, everything is in there.

Det. Nevills: And where did you go after you left there?

Ralph Goad: I walked downtown and I got a ticket in the damn truck, and I came here to
Sacramento, 'cause I have a brother somewhere in Sacramento, but I don't, he, my brother ****
in that room that they locked up.

Det. Nevills: Uh huh.

Ralph Goad: Also, this lawyer, I have a, well, I don't have a wallet, but anywayj, it's three
names of lawyers. And my mother died, and I was supposed to pick up money 2 years ago, but I
never came up and got it.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: So I was here to pick up the money, go see my brother, Roy. My bro, brother,
Robert, just died last year, so I didn't know what's goin' on over here. And, uh, mainly I went to
go to see Roy, and then go to that lawyer and see what, with that.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: So what day do you think you got here in Sacramento?

Ralph Goad: January the 30

Det. Nevills: January 30%?

Ralph Goad: **** on the 30" and shoot up here about 7:00, 7:30 at night. And I pulled up at
the **** gag station, and I **** 5o I've been wanderin' around in the rain. And there's nothin' to
do over here.

Det. Nevills: Right.

Ralph Goad: And I, I needed just that one thing, well, two things. My brother's address so I
could talk to him.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: And then he would take me over to the lawyer's to get straight with them.
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Det.. -N_evills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: And that would have been about when I got myself an apartment here. I went
over, went back to pay eviction for the 2 months and the late charges and just stayed there, 'cause
I was there 13 years. Ilike it. I've never ****

Det. Nevills: How did you get, uh, how'd you get set up here with the place that you're stayin'
at now? How, how did you do that?

Ralph Goad: Oh, I was, uh, in the hospital, uh, UC Davis for 4 days, and a man came in and
said would you like to go somewhere. I, he told me it was an alcohol treatment thing. And yeah,
okay. But it turned out to be that 3045 Clay Street, just a whole bunch of drug addicts and
alcoholics and ex-convicts. I didn't like that whatsoever. So I, I talked to the boss *** and he
gave me $200.00. I had 4 months, December, January, February and March's checks comin' to
me. But they only gave me $200.00 out of that. They wouldn't let me have anything else. They
did let me, uh, they let them take away 1,900 for rent for one place and 750 on rent for the other
place. But $200.00 is all I ever got out of 4 months Social Security checks.

Det. Nevills: So when you lived in Reno, you had a payee service. Right?
Ralph Goad: Yes.

Det. Nevills: And how 'come they didn't pay your rent? And why'd you get evicted? You don't
know? So, uh, why did you have a, why do you have a payee ser, and you have a payee service
here now?

Ralph Goad: Well, they, the Clay Street people took me to somethin' called SEPS, and they,
well, first they took my Social Security, then to SEPS. So when the Social Security finally gave
back those four checks they owed me, they gave it to SEPS, not to me. So I couldn't do anything
at all. And after 3 weeks or so, they gave me a $200.00 check, which I couldn't cash 'cause I
don't have any I.D. So then they took me to a market that cashed checks that don't have I.D.,
charged me $7.00 to cash it, so they gave me $193.00. And I've been runnin' around in the rain
drinkin' beer and whiskey and, and keepin' up in these board and care homes that I don't want
anything to do with.

Det. Nevills: Well, how, why do you have a payee service?
Ralph Goad: Idon't know.

Det. Nevills: You don't know?

Ralph Goad: No, oh, yes, I do, because I had one in, in Reno.

Det. Nevills: But why did you have it in Reno?
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Ralph Goad: Oh, because the mental hospital gave me Vicki, Bec, Becky Com as my payee for ..
the last 7 years.

Det. Nevills: Right.

Ralph Goad: And then she ****. Then all of a sudden she just disappeared.

Det. Nevills:  You said a mental hospital?

Ralph Goad: Yeah, uh, the, the state mental hospital at Glendale and Galletti.

Det. Nevills: Why were you in there, if you don't mind me asking?

Ralph Goad: [, I don't know. Well, they said because depression.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: But, um, the nurses would tell ya you got somethin' else. They'd tell the doctor to
write that down. They write that down even though they're not doctors. The doctors ****
doctor. So it was a mess. So some years they'd say it was this and give me these pills.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: And some years they'd say it was that and give me those pills. The only thing that
really worked was Amitriptyline for sleep and ****_ And, uh, 1 milligram of Ativan three times
a day to stop the shakes and the, the *ERE

Det. Nevills: What are the shakes from?

Ralph Goad: This and that. See, I've been a nervous wreck all of my life.

Det. Nevills:  Okay.

Ralph Goad: My mother's the same way.

Det. Nevills: What kind of nightmares have you had?

Ralph Goad: Um, Ihad just, uh, but with them, just **** 15 minutes, then you get hungry.
And then usually you fall asleep before you can even get up and get somethin' to eat. And then
you wake up a few minutes later, it's 8 hours later.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: You feel great.

Det. Nevills: Uh huh. Do you see things and stuff like that, or —
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Ralplll-_ Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralp.h Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:
there quiet.

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

No.

No, no? All right. Uh, what do you think? Do you think you're fine and —
No, I'm definitely not fine.

What do you think's wrong?

I don't know. I just don't get along like, um, I'm different.

You just don't get along with people?

Yeah, because I can't sleep right and I'm nervous all the time.

Okay.

So that makes me shy and I don't talk to people. Like, at school, all I did is sit

Right.

And, uh, I did my work. I **** one to two, uh, B, like, to C student. I didn't want

to attract attention to anything.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Do you hear voices or anything like that?
No.

No? No voice, or anything like that? No, all right. Um, so you lived at the Reno

one in about, for about 13 years then?

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Well, the —

In Reno, that, that specific room, about 13 years did you say? Uh, **** —
No, I **** 226 for 5 years.

Okay.

And then I moved to, um, 213 for the rest of the years.

Okay.

And before that, [ was 5 years over at the one out by the Peppermill Casino.
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Det. Nevills: Okay. . ... . -

Ralph Goad: Um, I forget the name of it. It was, all together, I had my own apartment since
1998.

Det. Nevills:  Oh, okay.

Ralph Goad: That's, yeah, that's when they gave me my, back then it was **** check. Then
there's been a check when my wife died. And I haven't even filed for, uh, Social Security
Retirement check for my own self, workin' all those years. And some places, I've made a lot of
money —

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: — for workin' in hospitals 4 years, ****, all kinds of little jobs.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: Yeah. But I've never even, 'cause every time I try to, even over here, they, what
they call board and care, they take everybody else to get the, I don't even, they didn't even take
me to get my 1L D. My **** Social Security **** Social Security Retirement. So eventually, I
couldn't have paid **** if I stayed there.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: And so -

Det. Nevills: So you said when you got over here, you ended up at UC Davis Hospital?

Ralph Goad: Yeah, the first one.

Det. Nevills: And how did that happen, when did that happen? Why, Why'd you go to the
hospital?

Ralph Goad: Well, as soon as we got off the train, I drank some whiskey, I went over and I fell
asleep under some trees, which is, we, I woke up about 4 hours later. It was freezing cold. Sol
got back into the hospital, uh, I was **** somethin' ****. And they put me back in for another
day. And that's when that man sent me over to Clay Street.

Det. Nevills: Ah.

Ralph Goad: And the place he, I just left there and got out of there. And then Wednesday night
I tripped, fell and thought I busted my nose.

Det. Nevills: And that's what's all the bruisin' around your face now is from when you fell on
Wednesday?
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Ralph Goad: Yeah. So I'm in the hospital this morning. And he said well, do you wanna go
back to Reno to the mental hospital. And I said yeah, I've been in and out of there 22 years. And
so what'd they do? They sent me to another board and care, and it cost me another $750.00.
Now, I was just gettin' ready to leave before you guys showed up.

Det. Nevills: Why'd, why'd they want to send you to the mental hospital?

Ralph Goad: That's where I belong, in the mental hospital.

Det. Nevills: Why, why do you belong —

Ralph Goad: Not, not to live there, just to, you know, I'd check in to see the doctor every
3 months, talk to the doctor and he gets me my medication.

Det. Nevills: What kind of medications do you take?

Ralph Goad: The Amitriptyline and the Ativan.

Det. Nevills: Ativan and Amitriptyline. What, what's it for?

Ralph Goad: Well, the Amitriptyline is for depression and sleep. And the Ativan is for bad
nervous, anxiety. It's much better than Valium. Valium just makes you sleepy. Ativan calms
you down like that.

Det. Nevills: What happens if you don't take either of those?

Ralph Goad: Then I get like this and I drink. See, I can self-medicate with beer.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: Whiskey's real bad because it makes me sick ****. But beer is just, just perfect.
Det. Nevills: When was the last time you took, you took your medications?

Ralph Goad: 7 years ago, 'cause When they took me out of the mental hospital and gave me that
payee, she was independent, so ] wasn't allowed to go back and see a doctor or get medicine
anymore. So it was good in a way. ButIwasn't able to get any medication anymore. So

7 years, I went without medicine.

Det. Nevills: So how do you feel when you're not on the medication?

Ralph Goad: Not good, just real nervous all the time.

Det. Nevills: Real nervous? Do you feel angry?
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Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:
again.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Yeah.

Angry? Like, how?

Well, you get angry because you have to drink beer to calm down.
Uh huh.

And then when you drink beer to calm down, it wears off and you're nervous

Okay.
Yeah, that was -
Is it nervous or angry? Uh, those are two different things in my mind.

Well, when I, the beer wears off, it makes you angry 'cause now I gotta walk to

the store and buy more beer to get to calm down again.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Okay.

Yeah.

Are you angry enough to hurt someone?
No.

No?

I wouldn't hurt someone. But it makes you real nervous, so it's real hard to get

across the street.

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Uh huh.

And once you get the beer in your hands and you're headed back to **** or Ted's

or to Raymond's, one of the two, we, well, Raymond doesn't drink anymore, but I still go up
there and drink a couple with him.

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Yeah.

But Ted, we'd sit there from, he called me at 5:30 in the morning, 6:00 we went to

the History Channel, the half hour ****_ Then at 7, he sends me over to get some beer and
cigarettes for the day.

Det. Nevills:

Is that, who, is it Ray you said?
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Ralph Goad: |

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

No, Ted.
Oh, Ted.

Ted gets it, he's in Apartment 205. And Raymond's in 240. But I know a lot of

other people in **** I used to know everybody in there, but over the years, they've moved, died

or got arrested.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Do you ever feel like hurtin' yourself or anyone else?

Yeah, I'd hurt myself, but never hurt anyone else.

Okay, all right.

Well, verbally, I called my mother names and stuff like that.
Okay. Nothin' physical though? You never —

No.

— hurt anybody physical?

Not physical, no.

Okay. So we had an incident over there at 33 Park Street that we're hopin' that

you can help us out with.

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Yeah.

And you mentioned Ted. Ted Gibson?

Yeah, yeah, he's the one —

You know him? When was the last time you saw him?

Oh, about 7, somewhere a day before I left. He's, uh, he didn't answer the phone.

He didn't call me. And I knocked on the door and he didn't answer. So I'm pretty sure he went
to the VA office 'cause he had a stroke once, and he's, like, 75 or 72. He's older than I am. And
he goes in there now and then. So I'm tryin' to tell him I'm goin', I'm goin' there and I'm
homeless out in the street. T got four checks piled up that I can't ****_ And, uh, but he wasn't —

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

He wasn't there?

No. So Itold all the other guys, you know, tell Ted I'm gone, and, uh, the women.

And, uh, I couldn't talk to Vicki 'cause she wasn't there that day.



Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

When was the last day that you saw Ted, if you remember?

Let me see. We was sittin' there drinkin' a beer. [ went up and talked to

Raymond and drank one up there, came back down and talked to Ted and drank one more beer
there. Oh, I took one for the road. **** and that's the last time I saw him.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Do you know what day that was though?

No.

How, how many days before you left, do you think?
A week.

A week before you left you saw him?

Somethin' like that.

Uh, —

And I was just figured he's back in the VA again.
Okay. Would it surprise you to —

Oh, Scott is the one you need to talk to. Scott is the one that takes him to the VA,

takes him to Denny's for breakfast, takes him to get his L.D., takes him to get a, a doctor or

anything.
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Right.

He, 'cause he has a car. Ted and I, we was **** walkin' and, uh, Ted was blind in

his left eye, so he couldn't see ****_ and his left foot was bad.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

So the last time you saw Ted, how was things between you two?
Fine.

Totally fine?

Yeah.

Yeah. You guys get in an argument or a fight or anything?

No, we never did that.
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Det. Nevills: Never did?

Ralph Goad: Not in the 9 years we've been sittin' there dr, drinkin' together. Well, we started
off with coffee and watchin' that History Channel. Then later, we drank a beer, talked about the
old days. He was in, um, he's from somewhere in Pennsylvania.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.
Ralph Goad: And I lived at **** Pennsylvania.
Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: And he was arrested one time, but he killed somebody. And I was arrested one
time for breakin' into a house, and I had a gun.

Det. Nevills: Mm hmm.

Ralph Goad: Ididn't hurt anybody, and I didn't steal anything. T was wavin' it around. So I
ended up doin' 5 years. And I don't know how long he did, but he was down for murder. So we
was both ex-convicts, he was, other than Waynesburg, he lived at that other town in
Pennsylvania. And I believe he **** Maryland and Howard County, Maryland. And he ****,
And then we lived in the **** City. That's all before my father died. And then afterwards, I
worked at Baltimore County General Hospital. And that ended in 1981. But that's the same time
when I met my wife, and we got married in 1983. So we've been runnin' around ever since. So,
uh, Atlantic City, got jobs there and went up to **** back down to **x#% Maine, uh, went and
took it there, and went back down to Atlantic City. Oh, then we came over to Las Vegas for

5 years, or because he lives there. And then we ended up in Reno for the last 20, well, 25 years,
but she's been dead for 9.

Det. Nevills: How long have you known Ted?

Ralph Goad: Uh, let's see, when I moved in 9 years ago. I didn't know him right away. But he
and the other guy drank coffee. And then he invited me in to drink coffee, so the three of us
were drinkin' coffee. And the other guy got thrown out for drugs or somethin'. He was real
young. Ted and I are pretty close to the same age.

Det. Nevills: Where'd you meet Ted?

Ralph Goad: Right here in the building.

Det. Nevills: In the building? So you've known him for how long, 9 years, is that what you
said?

Ralph Goad: Mm, 8 %.

Det. Nevills: 8 V5 ¥*¥**,
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Ralph Goad:

him —

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

I'd seen him for 9 years sittin' outside smokin' cigarettes, but I didn't really talk to

Uh huh.
— for 6 months. Then we did every day almost. Yeah, just about every day.

But you guys never got in any, any type of arguin' or physical fight or anything

like that? Has he ever threatened you with anything, a knife or a gun or anything like that?

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

everything.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

No, not with, with nothin' like that.

All right.

He was, like, my best brother, best friend and everything.

Okay.

My real brother ****_ Uh, I thought he was my best friend, but he died in 1977.
Uh hubh.

So Ted was kind of, like, my father and older brother, my best friend, he was

Well, we had a little incident over there, and we found Ted dead in his room.
He, —

He's dead.

— stroke?

No.

Well, he didn't have any money.

What's that?

He didn't have any money. He didn't have any jewelry or —

How do you know he didn't have any money?

Because I know everything about him. He was always gettin, uh, you know,

gettin' these papers out, lookin' through these 'cause he's tryin' to find this or that, —
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Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Mm hmm.
— or goin' through his **** to find that card or that card or —
Mm hmm.

—that one. So everything in that apartment, I knew, from the refrigerator, oh, I,

I'd change the channels to control the ****. He couldn't see so good, and he couldn't move.
around real good. So I, I did all that kind of stuff.

Det. Nevills:
death?

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Did you have anything with his, to do, did you have anything to do with Ted's

No.

No?

I didn't even know, didn't even know he was dead?
No?

He looked fine to me the last time I saw him.

Yeah? So, um, what I'd like to do is 'cause we're runnin' an investigation, I'd like

to get a sample of your DNA. Would —

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:
the place.

Det. Nevills:

thing. Right?

Ralph Goad:

Sure.

— that be all right?
Yeah.

Yeah?

Well, I spent every day for 8 % years in there, so **** covered with that all over

Well, it's, yeah, yeah. I'm sure it is. But it'd be nice to, for elimination kind of

No, I was there all the time. **** mornings **** drinkin' beers. And **** |

never stopped back by after I went to Raymond's.

Det. Nevills:
you finish?

So if you're okay with that, uh, just read the, uh, what, uh, what year of school did
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Ralph Goad: Uh 12%?

Det. Nevills: All 12? So you can read and write just fine?
Ralph Goad: Yeah, yeah.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: Wanna just read this, and then if it's okay with you, just initial right there and sign
right there.

Ralph Goad: This on the top one?

Det. Nevills: Initial that one and sign the bottom one. All right, thank you. And you got a time
there, Nick?

Other Speaker: The time is 1744 hours.

Det. Nevills: ****

Other Speaker: .
Other Speaker: Yeah.
Other Speaker: oA
Other Speaker: ks,

Det. Nevills: All right. This is so simple, it's not even funny. Take those sticks right there,
grab hold of them. Pull 'em out, and stick 'em in the crease of your mouth just like this, really
good. All right.

Ralph Goad: 1It's easy to do. I've got no teeth.

Det. Nevills: That's probably good. And stick 'em right in this little box. And we're gonna do
one more. Same thing with that one. All right. So why do you think we're here talkin' to you
today?

Ralph Goad: Well, you think I must have killed the guy because I'm in there every day of the
week. I was there **** die, I was there that morning for coffee, and then went and got the beer

and drank it. And then I would have left and went home. And then somethin' happened.

Det. Nevills: What happened between you and Ted?
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Ralph Goad: Nothin' between Ted and I. It was, like I 'keep tellin' you, we were best friends.
We never had an argument. Somethin' happened after I left. 1kept tellin' him not to open his
door to look at the peephole.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Who's this?

I don't know.

That's Ted.

That's Ted?

Yeah. Doesn't that look like Ted to you?

No.

No?

He don't wear, um, army pants. And, uh, [ never remember his hair to look like
that. Uh, I guess he combed it. But he, is that army khaki or camouflage?

No, no, no, no, they're not camo, no.

Oh then, —

It's kksksk

— oh, okay.

Does that look like Ted, or no?

It could be.

Who's this guy?
That's me, yeah.

How bout that one?

That's me.

And how 'bout that one?

That's me.
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Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:
that way.

Det. Nevills:
Ted.

Ralph Goad:
aftermoon.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:
well as Ted's.

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:
than Ted.

And that one?

It looks like me, and I'm not wearin' my coat.
Nope.

I don't know, well, I guess it is **** the back real quick.
How 'bout that one?

Uh, that's me, yeah.

Do you know where these are from?

No.

That's the hallway.

Oh, yeah, the, the camera in, in the —

Yeah.

— hallway from both ends.

Yeah.

It shoots this way, this way and, uh, that way and that way. That's always been

So we're here not because we think you killed Ted, because we know you killed

I was in there that morning, but that's it. You know, well, I might have drank 'til

You un, you understand, you understand there's video on that hallway. Right?
Yeah.

There's video on that hallway that shows your door, your apartment and as, as

Yeah, but I do this every single day.

I know. And you're the only one, the only person that goes in Ted's room other
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Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

That's of Ted.

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

No, —

Yeah.

—I'm not.

Listen to me.

No, I'm, I'm the only one that goes in there every day —
No, you're the only, —

_kkkok _

_ I have watched the video. This video right here is of Ted January 18", 2019.

18.

I've watched video 24/7 from January 18 all the way to February 13™ when we

found Ted, and you are the only one that goes in that room besides Ted.

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:
you.

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

But that's, that's not, there are other people that go in there.

No. Listen to me. You're not listenin' to me. No one else goes in that room but

Bernard goes in there.

No one else has been in that room but you.

See, the black guy's name —

Listen to me.

—was Bernard —

Look at me. No one else has been in Ted's room but you.
No, that's not, absolutely not true.

It is true. From the, —

Bernard goes in there.
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Det. Nevills: — listen to me, from the 18" to the.day we found Ted's body, you were the only
one who went in Ted's room.

Ralph Goad: That's wrong.
Det. Nevills: No, it's not.

Ralph Goad: Bernard and I came up, uh, he come up there three times drinkin' with us. He's a
black guy, short guy, and he drinks beer just like us.

Det. Nevills: Listen to me. Listen to me. No one else has been in that room but you. Why did
you kill Ted?

Ralph Goad: ##**,

Det. Nevills: Why did you kill Ted?
Ralph Goad: Ididn't kill Ted.

Det. Nevills: Yes you did.

Ralph Goad: And Bernard has been in there. You have to have photos of the little black guy
knockin' on the door and comin' in and *#** —

Det. Nevills: Mr. Goad, Mr. Goad, —

Ralph Goad: -~ drinkin' with us.

Det. Nevills: — I don't think you're a bad guy. I don't think you're a bad guy at all.
Ralph Goad: I-

Det. Nevills: I think, listen to me. I think somethin' happened between you and Ted that day,
and I'm interested in hearing it.

Ralph Goad: We've never had an argument.
Det. Nevills: Well, you did that day.

Ralph Goad: No, we never, ever had an argument. Well, I mean, you know, little things like is
that my last beer or your last beer, somethin’ like that, but Bernard comes in there, yes.

Det. Nevills: Not on, not between those times, he was not in there. I'm tellin' ya, listen to me.

Ralph Goad: These, these last 2 weeks, —
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Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

You haven't been there for the last 2 weeks.

— before, the last 2 weeks before I left, Bernard was up there three times drinkin'

with us. He bought beer, and one time he bought some Vodka.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Other Speaker:

He has not been in —

And he sat right there and talked with us.
Bernard has not been in that room since the 18",
There's somethin' wrong, 'cause yes, he was.
**x* ] have watched all the video.

Yeah, he was up there, yeah.

What happened between you —

Nothing happened between Ted and I except we got drunk together **** —
Why would you, why would you kill him?

I didn't kill him. Ididn't even hurt him.

Yes, you did.

I never touched him. No, I didn't.

Yes, you did.

*EXE is sittin' there **** —

Just let me ask you somethin' real quick. When we told you that Ted had

passed away, you didn't seem very surprised about that. When did you know Ted had passed

away?

Ralph Goad:

Other Speaker:

He's been very sick.

But when did you know, you told us a second ago that you saw him that

morning when he died.

Ralph Goad:

No, I said whatever morning he died, I saw him that morning because I'd bring,

he'd call me at 5:30, I'd go up there, we'd have coffee. Then we'd watch that History show —
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Other Speaker: . But what I'm askin' you is when did you know Ted was dead? It wasn't
today.

Ralph Goad: You just told me he was dead.

Other Speaker: You guys were friends for 9 years. You acted not surprised —
Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Other Speaker: — at all when we told you Ted was **** —

Ralph Goad: 8 Y. Um, -

Other Speaker: 8 Y, okay.

Ralph Goad: — why would I be surprised? I figured he'd kick off any day now.
Other Speaker: Okay. That was the question I had.

Ralph Goad: Yeah, he'd been sick for years and years. He's always goin' to the VA. And I'm

not real good. So, so we, we both thought, jokingly, one of us is going to die sometime. Bernard

was certainly up there three times, so there's somethin' wrong there.
Det. Nevills: There's nothin' wrong.

Ralph Goad: Little black guy and he drinks beer with us all —
Det. Nevills: I've seen, —

Ralph Goad: - the time.

Det. Nevills: I've seen him. [ know who he 1s.

Ralph Goad: We'd talk and —

Det. Nevills: Be, between the 18" of January until the February 13" of this year, he has not
been in that room. The only room, person —

Ralph Goad: He **** —
Det. Nevills: — that's been in that room is you.
Ralph Goad: I don't know about dates. All Tknow is, like I told you, —

Det. Nevills: Listen to me.
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_Ralph Goad: -TI'd come up there every day.
Det. Nevills:  Yep.

Ralph Goad: And then he wasn't answering his door, and he didn't call me at 5:30 in the
morning. **** at his VA. But Bemard, of course, had come up —

Det. Nevills: And when you went in that, —
Ralph Goad: — ****
Det. Nevills: —and you went in that room and he was dead.

Ralph Goad: Ididn't go in any room and do anything. I knocked on the door, and he didn't
answer. And he didn't call me at 5:30 every morning.

Det. Nevills: We have —

Ralph Goad: Ididn't see him come outside and smoke cigarettes anymore, and he disappeared,
so I ¥*** he was at the Veteran's Administration Hospital. That's all.

Det. Nevills: We're not here because I think you did it.
Ralph Goad: **** [ didn't do it.

Det. Nevills: Iknow, I know you did.

Ralph Goad: 1, no, —

Det. Nevills: Iknow you did it.

Ralph Goad: - you know I didn't do it.

Det. Nevills: No, I know you did do it.

Ralph Goad: ****,

Other Speaker: You gotta understand, we watched the whole video from every day.
You're the only one that enters that room. **** —

Ralph Goad: **** I'm not the only one. I've seen a lot of other people who knocked on the
door and he let them in. They let him in for a ****_ Bernard come in and drank when,

sometimes when I was up there.

Det. Nevills: But not between those days. Not on those days. No one else went in your, —
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Ralph Goad: Just the times when —

Det. Nevills: - in that room.

Ralph Goad: - Bernard was comin' up there, he came up and drank with us, a beer and, uh,
vodka. Then he was givin' us a hard time because we were drinkin', and he comes up with two
different kinds of liquor at the same time.

Det. Nevills: Mr. Goad, —

Ralph Goad: ****,

Det. Nevills: — look at me, look at me. Listen to me. January 18% I have watched video, the
entire video, 24 hours a day from January 18" 'til February 13", You know how long that is?
January 18" to February 13%.

Ralph Goad: 1don't care.

Det. Nevills: Listen to me, listen to me, listen to me. Look at me.

Ralph Goad: I **** —

Det. Nevills: Look at me. Look at me.

Ralph Goad: No, you look at me.

Det. Nevills: I'm listening, I'm lookin' at you.

Ralph Goad: I come to see Ted every day for 8 'z years. He'd give me a call, come on over, we
had coffee, **** and **** beer, we'd get the beer and cigarettes for the day. We'd sit there, and
then I go home.

Det. Nevills: And somethin' happened, —

Ralph Goad: 1It'd have to be 1, 1:30 or the afternoon, or it could be 11:00 if we're not feelin'
Skokok ok

Det. Nevills: — and somethin' happened between you and him, and —
Ralph Goad: Nothin'—

Det. Nevills: — you got in an argument and you stabbed him.

Ralph Goad: There's nothing happen between us.

Det. Nevills: Yeah, something happened.
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Radph Goad: And somethin' couldn't happen between us. I don't have money. He doesn't have
money.

Det. Nevills: You—

Ralph Goad: I'm in bad health. He's in bad health.

Det. Nevills: Right?

Ralph Goad: He was a convicted. I was a convicted. We, and both of us spent time in
Pennsylvania. We just had everything in common, like brothers. But he was more than that,
kind of older than me, so kind of like a father **** get along with. The only one I have out here
is Gordon. And I haven't seen him since 1983. All I know is he did let people in. The man
down there in 222 borrowed cigarettes. Bernard come up and drank with him whether I was
there or not. And, um, he's always answerin' the door instead of lookin' out the peephole. He's
always ****

Other Speaker: When did you figure out you were gonna get **** —

Ralph Goad: I would still be in that apartment.

Other Speaker: When did you figure out you were gonna get evicted?

Ralph Goad: Uh, when, January the 30 when he opened the door. No, I was downstairs
talkin' to that guy, and these two sheriffs went in there and said they was evictin' somebody.
Then when I went upstairs about 2 hours later to get in my room, I'm the one that got evicted.
And they pulled the locks so I can't get in.

Other Speaker: Is Ted the type of guy that would have let you stay with him?

Ralph Goad: Ted would have because I —

Other Speaker: He would have let you stay with him?

Ralph Goad: Yeah, because all I gotta do is pay $40.00 and you, you could stay. It said one,
and then $40.00, it could be two. But the main thing was **** I got my back checks, then I'd be
able to pay the 2-month's rent and that late fee, and still had a month and a half left over. So that

wasn't a problem. It was —

Other Speaker: What do you think he'd say to you if you asked him if you could stay in
that room after you got evicted?

Ralph Goad: Oh, we already talked about that. He said that, that, absolutely.

Other Speaker: He said that he would let you stay?
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Ralph Goad: Well, of course. Why wouldn't he? Same way I would do for him.
Other Speaker: Okay.

Ralph Goad: We had -

Other Speaker: How did that conversation go?

Ralph Goad: That's it. He had to. He's not gonna let somebody go out and die in the, you
know, the wintertime.

Other Speaker: Okay.
Ralph Goad: ****  We just had so much in common.

Other Speaker: But what did you, what did you say to him? What did you guys exactly
say about stayin' there?

Ralph Goad: Nothin'. He, he said, uh, well, you can stay here, uh, sleep on the floor, get a
sleepin' bag, and it's only an extra 40. Isaid yeah. Well, we talked about that years ago in case
somethin' happened. And I said the same thing. And there was one other one that, that moved or
somethin'.

Other Speaker: You were friends for 8 2 years. He wouldn't turn you out in, into the
cold, yeah?

Ralph Goad: No. Why would he?

Other Speaker: I don't know.

Ralph Goad: There's just, **** out in the cold. See, I didn't kill the guy. And he certainly
wouldn't, it don't even make sense. All I did is do what I did over here. **** here or stay in a
homeless, if I hung around at night long enough, they would have let me in. They say I wasn't
there, but I'd been there since 1995. Sometimes for many, stay inside, they would all **** 'til
another time where they get me an apartment for 1 year or 5 years, and this time 13 years, except
for I missed that 1 year 'cause I went to Portland, Oregon. In fact, I stayed at the civic center for
**** then I came back to ****,

Det. Nevills: So you notice on that, this photo right here, you notice you have a coat on. Right?
Ralph Goad: Yeah, that's my gray coat.

Det. Nevills: That's your gray sweatshirt.

Ralph Goad: This, this is the heavy one that the mental hospital bought me.
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Det. Nevills: That's your gray sweatshirt right there.

Ralph Goad: I don't have a sweatshirt.

Det. Nevills: Yeah, you do, 'cause [ have it.

Ralph Goad: No, I don't. I don't have a sweatshirt.

Det. Nevills:  Yes, you do. I have it.

Ralph Goad: Oh, you, yeah, that's right. I went over to that, uh, the hospital —

Det. Nevills: Your Apartment 213, right? Is there anybody else's property inside that
apartment, or is that all your stuff?

Ralph Goad: Everything's mine.

Det. Nevills: Everything's yours. Well, guess what? I got that sweatshirt with blood on it.
Ralph Goad: How could it have blood on 1t?

Det. Nevills: Uh, you tell me.

Ralph Goad: I got the sweatshirt, and it had a pair of pants, but I gave the pants to, uh, to that —

Det. Nevills: Mr. Goad, Mr. Goad, you tell me. How's it gonna have, why does it have blood
on it?

Ralph Goad: 'Cause I always wear a coat. I either wear this coat or the gray sweatshirt.

Det. Nevills: The same sweatshirt that you had on the day that you killed Ted, I got out of your
room and it has blood on it.

Ralph Goad: That's impossible because I always wear a coat.

Det. Nevills: You don't have a coat on right there. You have that gray sweatshirt on, 'cause you
were wearin' that gray sweatshirt when you killed Ted.

Ralph Goad: 1didn't kill Ted.
Det. Nevills: Yes, you did.
Ralph Goad: No, I didn't. Take it to trial. If you can prove I killed Ted, good. I'll get room

and board or a death sentence, whatever. But I didn't kill Ted. Ain't no way. I got too little bit
of time to live myself, and I wouldn't hurt the only friend I have, no.
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Det. Nevills: What did you —
Other Speaker: We're just tryin' to understand, Ralph.
Det. Nevills: What did you take from the room? What'd you take from his wallet?

Ralph Goad: 1didn't take anything. He didn’t have anything I would want. That's what I keep
tellin' you. He didn't have anything.

Det. Nevills: And that's why I don't understand.

Ralph Goad: He had two checks, one took care of all the bills. The other one, it would pay for
the rent. And the rest of it, he let, he'd keep it, like it was a bank or somethin’'.

Det. Nevills: That's why I don't understand. That's why I would like you to try to help me
understand what happened between you and Ted that you would get so angry and kill him.

Ralph Goad: 1didn't get angry, and I didn't kill him. You keep runnin' around in circles with
this dream of yours.

Det. Nevills: No, it's not a dream.

Ralph Goad: And I, no, I'm livin' in a real world, and you're, what do these pictures mean?
They don't mean a damn thing.

Det. Nevills: Well, they mean that you were the only one in his room.

Ralph Goad: No, I've told you a hundred times.

Det. Nevills: I've told you.

Ralph Goad: Bernard was in there.

Det. Nevills: Listen, listen to me.

Ralph Goad: There was, uh, Mike that *#** —

Det. Nevills: Yeah, but not on —

Ralph Goad: — ****,

Det. Nevills: — the timeframe, not from the 18™ 'til February 13" when we find his body.

Ralph Goad: That's exactly the time they would be, —
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Det. Nevills: No, because it, —
Ralph Goad: - yes.
Det. Nevills: — it would be on the video.

Ralph Goad: That would be when Mike loaned his cigarettes, and that would be when Bernard
was up there drinkin'.

Det. Nevills: No, no.

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: No one else went in that room but you.
Ralph Goad: No, no. That's what you say.

Det. Nevills: I know.

Ralph Goad: T **** —

Det. Nevills: ****,

Ralph Goad: ~ Iknow other people went in there.

Other Speaker: Ralph, how would you know someone went into the room after the time
when you were ****?

Ralph Goad: After the ****, I couldn't possibly tell you that. I'm talkin' about —
Other Speaker: So before, you're talkin' before?

Ralph Goad: Yeah. But somebody went in there **** Mike come up and bum a cigarette, —

Other Speaker: But we're tellin' you —
Ralph Goad: — or Bernard would come up and **** —
Other Speaker: And we have video of Ted goin' in the room and you goin' in the room

later, and no one else goin' in the room. And Ted ended up dead there.
Ralph Goad: It's impossible.
Det. Nevills: No, it's not.

Ralph Goad: There's other people **** around.
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Det. Nevills:  #*%**,

Ralph Goad: You know what he does for me, he's **** —
Other Speaker: We're not makin' that up there, Ralph.
Ralph Goad: Yes, you are.

Det. Nevills: No, we're not.

Other Speaker: We're not.

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Other Speaker: You can see, you can see the footage. You realize that we're detectives
and we've had weeks to **** —

Ralph Goad: **** today. How many pictures did you not bring —
Det. Nevills: I've got video.

Ralph Goad: — that shows Bernard and shows, uh, Mike and, uh, what's his name, Raymond

comin' in there, and several others? He's, like, got people he knows comin' in and out of there.

Other Speaker: But he doesn't.

Ralph Goad: Yes, he does.

Det. Nevills: No, no. That's what we're tryin' to tell you.
Ralph Goad: You're both lying.

Det. Nevills: No, no we're not.

Ralph Goad: **** there's five or six people that wanted to go in there for 5, 10 minutes, and
never had. And I've been watchin' it **** —

Other Speaker: How would they get in there —
Ralph Goad: **** —
Other Speaker: — if Ted's, uh, dead?

Ralph Goad: ****,
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Other Speaker: . He wouldn't have let 'em in after ****,

Ralph Goad: I'm not talkin' about when he's dead. I'm talkin' about, like, before he was dead,
that was his pattern.

Other Speaker: Okay.
Ralph Goad: He always let —

Other Speaker: But we're tellin' you that after Ted dies, there is no one else that goes in.
And you know that because —

Ralph Goad: There was not.
Other Speaker: — Ted can't open the door because he's dead inside.

Ralph Goad: Itisn't what I said. I said his pattern was to always let 'em come in, talk to 'em,
loan 'em a cigarette, have a beer with 'em —

Other Speaker: But you know we're not lyin' to you because you know that Ted couldn't
have let anybody in 'cause he was dead after you left.

Ralph Goad: I'm not ****_ I'm talkin' before Ted was dead. His pattern his whole life, —
Other Speaker: Okay.

Ralph Goad: - that's the way he did things.

Other Speaker: Okay.

Det. Nevills: That's not the point though.

Other Speaker: But let's be logical here. Right? You and I know that you killed him.
When Ted —

Ralph Goad: [ *#** —

Other Speaker: — is dead on the floor, —

Ralph Goad: — ****

Other Speaker: — how could Ted let anybody in the room?

Ralph Goad: — **** people **** and killed him **** —
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. Other Speaker: No, no, no. I'm just sayin' logically, for you, how.could anyone enter that
room if Ted's dead? You know Ted's dead. You —

Ralph Goad: Man, I'm talkin' about before Ted was dead. All 1 know is his pattern of what he
did when he was alive. I don't know what he did when he's dead. He probably laid there. He's
dead.

Other Speaker: Lay where?

Ralph Goad: ****,

Other Speaker: Where would he lay?

Ralph Goad: Wherever he was dead at. If he was dead, he's not up on the roof.

Other Speaker: Okay.

Ralph Goad: But he wouldn't change his pattern and so somebody come in there and, and did
somethin'.

Other Speaker: Which is true.
Ralph Goad: Yeah.
Other Speaker: But you're the person that goes in there.

Ralph Goad: So they shot him, they choked him, they stabbed him, they did somethin' to him,
and he's dead. But that doesn't stop the fact that all of these people were goin' in there before —

Other Speaker: Look over here, Ralph. We'll show you the video.
Ralph Goad: The video doesn't mean anything.

Det. Nevills: Sure it does.

Ralph Goad: You should, no it doesn't.

Det. Nevills: That's you right there.

Ralph Goad: It doesn't show a thing.

Det. Nevills: Sure it does.

Ralph Goad: **** every single, —

Det. Nevills: It shows every person that goes in that room.
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Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:
and —

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

— every single day I go up and down to tha£ foom. Every —
Exactly.

— single day.

Exactly.

Every day.

Exactly. Every single day you got up and down to that room.
Right.

And you were the only one that goes in Ted's room between the 18" of January

No, [ ##%* _

— the 13% of February.
—not the truth. Bernard —
Yes, it is.

— goes in there. **** —

Yeah, they, they may, they may go in there, but they didn't go in there in that

timeframe. That's what you're not understanding.

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills: Between, listen to me. Between January 18 of 2019 and February 13% 0f 2019,

No, no.

the only person that was in and out of Ted's room was you and Ted.

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

No.
Yes.
No.
YeEs;

Then he would have had his door locked, or he went to the VA Hospital.
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Det. Nevills: Mr. Goad, Mr. Goad, —.
Ralph Goad: There's somethin' wrong with that ****,

Det. Nevills: — Mr. Goad, Mr. Goad, if there was other people in and out, out of that room, why
would I be here talking to you after you've been arrested for murder?

Ralph Goad: You're **** wastin' my time. Take me over there and have me tried, get a jury
and all that —

Other Speaker: We're tryin' to understand what happened.
Ralph Goad: — **** do something.
Other Speaker: We think that there's more that happened, Ralph. We understand —

Ralph Goad: Maybe something happened that shouldn't have happened, because he should be
alive right now.

Det. Nevills: He should be alive right now?

Ralph Goad: I **** gshould be. Don't lie.

Det. Nevills: No, I, I didn't lie.

Ralph Goad: **** —

Det. Nevills: I'm wonderin' what all you said.

Ralph Goad: He should be alive right now, unless he had a stroke or a heart attack, 'cause he
was very sick. That's the only reason he could really die. I can't believe, ain't nobody gonna no
old man with no money. That's just completely impossible. Nobody ever argued with Ted.
Everybody got along with the guy. He never had any enemies.

Det. Nevills: A lot of people are gonna read my report, Mr. Goad.

Ralph Goad: Idon't care.

Det. Nevills: Well, you will because they're gonna want —

Ralph Goad: **** film **** films of 8 %2 years ago going up to the day before he died, the day
he died. **** to see the same film. I'm still goin' up and down the hallway, stop and knock on
Ted's door. He don't answer. ****_ T go down there and talk to other people and smoke a

cigarette, come back up and call him. He don't answer. The next moming he never called me up
to watch the movie, the news, drink our coffee and then **** same thing **** —
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Other Speaker: You've been doin' the same thing every day. Right?
Ralph Goad: He didn't come out here.
Other Speaker: Did you tell anybody that, uh, you couldn't get a hold of him?

Ralph Goad: Yes, Idid. The only ones **** there, well why would they evict you and not give
you 30 days?

Other Speaker: I don't know. So you said you hadn't seen him for 7 or 8 days.

Ralph Goad: And **** —

Other Speaker: You're sayin' on the, —

Ralph Goad: — ****_ Isaid I have knocked on the door. I called him. He doesn't answer. He's
probably over at the VA again. And Scott was the, the one, you know, he'd taken him over to the
VA. Scott took him everywhere, shoppin' at Wal-Mart and stuff. Yeah, so, but Scott is this old
guy and married, and he ain't gonna be knockin' anybody off either.

Det. Nevills: Who else would want to hurt Ted? Who'd want to hurt Ted?

Ralph Goad: That's what I'm sayin'. As far as I know, he had no enemies. None. Iknow he
got along with Scott, everybody, uh, Vicki, neighbors. He didn't have any enemies, none
whatsoever. He got along with everybody, or he just wouldn't say a word to 'em and just go out
and smoke a cigarette and mind his own business. But he had no enemies. He never argued with
anybody.

Other Speaker: Did he have a relationship with anybody, a girlfriend?

Ralph Goad: No.

Other Speaker: Nothin' like that?

Ralph Goad: Too old. He's like me.

Other Speaker: Too old?

Ralph Goad: Yeah, I'm 72. He was 74 or 75, I forget which. We were very similar, except I
was from Maryland and he was from Pennsylvania. **** got married and divorced three times.

It wasn't very similar there too. Both went to prison. Both got a job **** after that. Both ended
up in that place.

Other Speaker: HoA

Ralph Goad: So we'd just sit around and talk about **** TV, —
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Other. Speaker: Do you feel bad about what happened?

Ralph Goad: —people. I doand I don't. He was dyin' badly. He was sick. I'm still sick, but he
was a lot sicker. Um, I don't know. I'm not a doctor. But he was pretty sick. **** comb his
hair back more and shave every now and then and, and get a shower and —

Other Speaker: How do you feel about him dying?

Ralph Goad: Well, I don't like it 'cause I had kind of planned on get, gettin' my money here and
goin' to pay back my debts and goin' back ****. Now, I can't do that. The rest of 'em are okay.
I talked to Raymond because he's from the mental hospital like me. So he's been ****

20 somethin' years old though. There used to be a lot of others.

Other Speaker: But do you think what happened to Ted, do you think he deserved what
happened to him?

Ralph Goad: Deserved?
Other Speaker: Yeah.

Ralph Goad: No. He didn't, he didn't have any enemies. So he shouldn't deserve it. And he
hasn't ****_ well, —

Other Speaker: So would do you think should happen to, uh, whoever —
Ralph Goad: - ****,

Other Speaker: —killed him?

Ralph Goad: Idon't know. He shouldn't have, uh, —

Other Speaker: No, but what should happen to the person that killed him?
Ralph Goad: I don't know because I don't know why they would do that.
Other Speaker: He was your friend for 8 %2 years.

Ralph Goad: Yeah, but there's probably **** these guys from 215 ****_ That, that would be, it
makes no sense. And that's exactly the kind of thing ****

Det. Nevills: This is what happened to Ted.
Ralph Goad: Man. More like he was shot ****. That's his **** over there.

Det. Nevills: It's what happened to him there too. That's his back.
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Ralph Goad:

Mm, somebody was very, somebody that hated for years or somethin' to do

somethin' like that, or they got the wrong person.

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Why would you do that?

I didn't do that. I told you that. Don't ever ****_ You're wastin' your time with

that. Oh, we know you did it. No, you don't because if you did, ****. But you know I didn't do

1t.

Other Speaker:

arrested.

Ralph Goad:
Other Speaker:
Ralph Goad:

Other Speaker:

You don't understand, Ralph. We didn't come down here 'cause we, you're

Yeah, I know I'm arrested.
We didn't come down here **** you know.
I said I know —

We're not bullshittin' you though. We've watched the video. We just, the

only reason we came down is to try and understand what happened.

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Those videos are every day, it recycles.

No, it doesn't.

And then it, yes —

No, it doesn't.

Yes. They just —

No, it doesn't.

I've been livin' there for 13 years.

Well, you're wrong. You're absolutely wrong, Ralph.
No, I'm absolutely right.

No, you're not.

So you would have gotten a recycled **** —

I've got video. Listen to me.
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Ralph Goad: — ****

Det. Nevills: Listen to me. I've got video from January 17% all the way to February 13%, —
Ralph Goad: No you don't.

Det. Nevills: —24/7, 365.

Ralph Goad: You don't, no.

Det. Nevills: Yes, I do.

Ralph Goad: What you have is somethin' —

Other Speaker: Wouldn't you be excited to hear that? Wouldn't you be excited to hear that
maybe we could catch who killed your friend and we had that video **** —

Ralph Goad: If you had the real, uh, you know, the real film, then you would have who went in
there and who did it and **** —

Other Speaker: I'm just sayin', if someone killed my friend and the detective said hey, we
got a video of the whole time, I would be excited. You seem to say no.

Ralph Goad: Why would I be excited?

Other Speaker: Because you **** —

Ralph Goad: You're tellin' me **** —

Other Speaker: — it could, it should, it should clear you.

Ralph Goad: Somebody killed Ted. And somebody will get caught for that. But that has
nothing —

Det. Nevills: Ted, look at this —

Ralph Goad: —todo,—

Det. Nevills: Ted, —

Ralph Goad: I can't do anything about it.

Det. Nevills: Ted, look at this date right here. What's that date say?

Ralph Goad: It doesn't matter what date it says.
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Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Yes it does. What's the date say?

It doesn't matter what —

It say January 18", 2019.

K*okokok 17

What's this one say? January 22", 2019.

I walk up and down the hall every day.

What's this one say? January 30", 2019.

I'm doin' the same thing I did every day for 8 Y2 years.

That proves that I have video all the way from January 18" to the 30" —
No, what you have is a video for 4 days.

From January 18" to the 30™, that's not 4 days. That's the 18"
Yeah.

This is the 30,

So you got 12 days video.

12 days. I've got more than that. But that's all I can prove to you because you

don't believe me.

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:
in the room —

Ralph Goad:

kkokk

Other Speaker:

I do not —
That's 12 days.
All T know is —

That's 12 days from the day that, that you and, uh, Ted were in that, the only ones

I walk down the hallway every day. So when the exact same thing **** T've been

Here's the thing though, Ralph. We don't have to ask anybody because we

have the video.
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Ralph Goad: The only time I didn't go to Ted's is when I,.I'd be in the hospital myself.. So you,
you don't make sense.

Det. Nevills:  No, you don't make sense.
Ralph Goad: No, you don't make sense.
Det. Nevills: 1-—

Ralph Goad: And seein' those pictures of Ted, that's somebody that, he, he didn't have enemies,
the hate like that.

Det. Nevills: That's what I don't understand. I don't understand. You said, —
Ralph Goad: He didn't have —

Det. Nevills: - you, you say —

Ralph Goad: - enemies to hate like that.

Det. Nevills: — you, that you and Ted were good friends. I don't understand. That's what I'm
trying to say. Tell me what happened. Tell me the truth.

Ralph Goad: Just take that to court.
Det. Nevills: T will.

Ralph Goad: Anybody that hated him did that kind of thing, it's not me. It's not, Ted has
nothing to do with anybody in that building. That's somethin' else. They got the wrong man.

Det. Nevills: There's no one else, —

Ralph Goad: He went to the door and he opened it.

Det. Nevills: — there was no one else in the room, Ted, or, uh, Ralph.
Ralph Goad: You don't know that.

Det. Nevills: Yes, I do.

Ralph Goad: No, you don't.

Det. Nevills: Yes, I do. Listen to me. Why, why are, —

Ralph Goad: Obviously not.
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_ Det. Nevills: = why are you under arrest right now?

Ralph Goad: I'm under arrest because you think I killed Ted.
Det. Nevills: 1know you did.

Ralph Goad: No, you don't know I did.

Det. Nevills: Yes, I do.

Ralph Goad: No, you don't.

Det. Nevills: Yes, I do.

Ralph Goad: No, you don't. I'm being charged with it.

Det. Nevills: You are charged.

Ralph Goad: You don't know, no. It's your job to accuse me, try and intimidate me and try to

confess to somethin' I didn't do.

Det. Nevills: I'm not tryin' to intimidate you.

Ralph Goad: Of course you are, of course you are.

Det. Nevills: No, I'm not. I just want the truth.

Ralph Goad: Of course you are. You're wastin' my time and yours.
Det. Nevills: My idea is —

Ralph Goad: Take me to trial and prove it, fine.

Other Speaker: Ralph, we just want to understand why somethin' like that happened.
There's obviously a reason **** —

Ralph Goad: I don't know why somebody would do that to Ted. To, to the, they had to hate
him for years and years to do somethin' like that. It had to be great hate.

Other Speaker: It did.

Ralph Goad: Somebody that could kill, you know, **** stab somebody or shoot somebody,
they wouldn't do that.

Other Speaker: You didn't seem real shocked. Twas pretty shocked when I saw that
photo.
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Ralph Goad: I've éeén all kinds of dead people, and that's just one.

Other Speaker: I don't, I've worked in homicide for quite some time, and I don't think I've
ever seen anything like that.

Ralph Goad: Well, I've seen a lot worse, a lot worse.
Other Speaker: That was your friend of 8" years.
Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills:  You don't seem too broke up about it.

Ralph Goad: My body be dead soon and it'll be just as ugly and messed up. I'll be all punched
full of holes with — somebody hated him, and then —

Other Speaker: Why do you think somebody would hate him to that, to that ****?
Ralph Goad: It had to be for years.
Other Speaker: For years?

Ralph Goad: Had to be. Okay. He killed his father, and he went to prison for that. He
supposedly had another son or a daughter. I think somebody had got the wrong room.

Other Speaker: How do you think his blood ends in your room on your shirt?

Ralph Goad: That's impossible. How did, how can blood get on my clothes from his
apartment? That don't even make sense.

Det. Nevills: 'Cause you were in it.

Ralph Goad: If it's true to, 'cause it could be false.
Det. Nevills: Whatta ya mean if it's true?

Ralph Goad: It could be false.

Det. Nevills: We know 1it's true.

Ralph Goad: Good. Well, I'm enjoyin' through all, and we'll go through all that crap. If it's
guilty, fine. If I'm innocent, fine, but I have nothing to do with that.

Other Speaker: This is your chance —
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Ralph Goad: Tl get my **%* —

Other Speaker: — to set the record straight. Otherwise, people are gonna look at that
photo, and they're gonna think you're a monster.

Ralph Goad: No, they're not because they know I wouldn't do anything to Ted.

Other Speaker: Well, they're gonna see the video and they're gonna see that you did do it —

Ralph Goad: They're gonna see us run around and get ****,

Other Speaker: — and that we talked to ya and gave ya an opportunity to tell us —

Ralph Goad: No.

Other Speaker: — what happened and you ****

Ralph Goad: You're the two guys that don't know who accuses me of doin' somethin' like that,
that's what it's gonna come to. Two strangers, the two **** down there, like no, no way on
Earth.

Other Speaker: Do you think we're makin' the video up?

Ralph Goad: It didn't happen. Ididn't do that so there's somethin' wrong somewhere. This
can't —

Other Speaker: You don't seem to have a lotta remorse for what happened or any
explanation.

Ralph Goad: Ican't. It's too important. All that —
Other Speaker: Is it important.

Ralph Goad: - would happen later, if I'm convicted or if I'm found innocent. Then I'll worry
about —

Other Speaker: So you, what you're tellin' us is —

Ralph Goad: No.

Other Speaker: —it's too important for you to tell us the truth.
Ralph Goad: Ididn't say that. No, you go —

Other Speaker: What did you mean?
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Ralph Goad: - then there was —

Other Speaker: Well, tell me what ya meant when ya said it was —
Ralph Goad: — when ya said I was a plain, old liar, and I don't want —
Other Speaker: I did not. You said it was too important.

Ralph Goad: Yes, you did.

Other Speaker: What did you mean by that?

Ralph Goad: You just called me a liar and said I killed him.

Other Speaker: I didn't call ya a liar.

Ralph Goad: The hell you didn't.

Other Speaker: You said it's too important. Whatta ya mean?
Ralph Goad: When ya bend it around, ****,

Other Speaker: I'm not tryin' to bend it. Set it straight.

Ralph Goad: You already did. It's too late. All I know is it shouldn't a happened and that's —

Det. Nevills: What shouldn't have happened?
Ralph Goad: That's somebody that hated him.

Det. Nevills: Well, why did you hate him so much?

Ralph Goad:

I didn't hate him, see. Don't ever say I, I, I. You don't know anything. If you

know something, take it to trial and find me guilty, get over with. I don't care what the hell —

Det. Nevills:

Mr. Goad? Mr. Goad? IfI didn't know anything, you wouldn't be sitting in this

jail right now bein' under arrest for murder.

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Yes, you would.
No.

As good as what, one third of everybody convicted of the crime didn't do it.

Everybody knows that.

Det. Nevills:

That's not true.
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Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills: Mr. Goad, here's what you keep forgettin'. You keep forgettin' that we have video
of that hallway, and the only people who go in and outta that room between Jan — listen to me.

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Other Speaker:
Ralph Goad:

Other Speaker:

That's a fact.

I don't believe that.

Every one of 'em that sit there lookin' at ****_ oh, you did it, you did it.
Here's what you keep forgettin'.

The poor son of a bitch.

Here's what you —

ok koK

That's a lie.
Listen. No, listen to me.
I already heard that lie.
Between — and so have 1.
Five times you said this.
Between January 18 and between —
You're a liar.
~ February 13" is you and Mr. Dixon.
And there'll be Bernard, there'll be Mike.
Nope, they are not, they do not go in there.
The woman that lives down the hall.

How would, how would they go in there?

% %k >k sk

No, no, no. How would they go in there?

160



Ralph Goad: They'd go in the same way I got in. Ya knock on the door. If he opens his door,
ya go in.

Other Speaker: But he wasn't answerin' the door, you said.

Ralph Goad: You don't know that.

Other Speaker: You told me that, that he didn't answer the door for you.

Ralph Goad: When I knocked, he didn't answer.

Other Speaker: But ya saw him every day before that, and that —

Ralph Goad: **** yeah. Idon't get **** 5:30. That means somethin'. Through 6, nothin'.
So, 1 get there about 8:00, knock on the door, I get nothin'. **** went out **** cigarette and see
Ted ****‘

Other Speaker: I don't think Ted would let you stay in his room.

Ralph Goad: Ted would let me stay in his room —

Other Speaker: I don't think that —

Ralph Goad: —until T got my check or if he was in the same position 'cause it's only $40.00.
You're not payin' full rent, and it's not forever, couple weeks, 3 weeks, it woulda been
straightened out.

Other Speaker: But he wasn't gonna let you do that.

Ralph Goad: Of course he would.

Det. Nevills: No, I think that's what the argument was about. I think you guys got in an
argument.

Ralph Goad: No, you don't understand what a very good friend.

Det. Nevills: Well, ya weren't that good of friends because I saw what ya did to him.
Ralph Goad: I didn't do anything to him.

Det. Nevills: You're the only one who could have done it.

Ralph Goad: You're runnin' around in circles **** nothin',

Det. Nevills: And you're —
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Ralph Goad: He's my best friend **** no problem. There's just no reason 'cause.we'd do the
same thing.

Other Speaker: You don't —

Ralph Goad: We'd still get up, drink coffee, smoke cigarettes, watch the TV, took me to the
store. We'd, uh, eat food and, uh, usually after we eat somethin', I'd go on back to the house and
maybe it's time to sleep. All that, all the time.

Other Speaker: Ralph, I wish you'd be honest with yourself.

Ralph Goad: I wish you'd stop lyin".

Other Speaker: About what?

Ralph Goad: Intimidator, intimidator.

Other Speaker: What did I lie about?

Ralph Goad: Tellin' me I committed murder when I know goddam well I wouldn't even hurt the
man, and that is somethin' that somebody really hated him.

Other Speaker: That's for sure.
Ralph Goad: For years, it hadda be for years and years and years.
Det. Nevills: But you say that —

Other Speaker: But you said he didn't have any friends like that for years and years and
years.

Ralph Goad: That's just it, he didn't that I knew of, but I don't know who else he, I've only
known him for 8% years. He moved in 9 years ago ****. So, I don't know who and what he was
doin' before that.

Other Speaker: What do you think people are gonna think when they look at that photo of
Ted?

Ralph Goad: They're gonna think that you two strangers are tryin' to lay this on me.
Other Speaker: Why?

Ralph Goad: Oh, he killed him. No, and, and like that? No. They could see if he argued ****
who pushed him and he fell down the stairs or somethin', but nothing like that.
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Other Speaker:

1 mean, there comes a certain point where you understand what we have

and the benefits of tellin' us the truth are ****,

Ralph Goad:

Everything ya have, take it to the courts. We'll have a trial, and they'll decide

what's what. There is no way you're gonna past some other people goin' in and out of there. You
can't delete that when ya go to court.

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Did you take anything from Ted's room that night?
Nope.

Did ya ever taken anything —

Night.

— from Ted's room?

I wasn't there at night.

Have ya ever taken anything from Ted's room?

In the morning. Ileft in the afternoon, about 1:30.
Mr. Goad?

And, uh -

Mr. Goad, have ya ever taken anything from Ted's room?
Of course.

Like what?

He give me this food, and he give me that food. Or he gives me this sugar and

coat or something, and, and I give him food, and I give him a bag of tools and back and forth.
That's the way things are for years. Oh, can of beer goin' through the ****,

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Did anything, did he have any valuables or anything like that in his room?

That's what I mean, he didn't have anything of value, and he didn't have any

money. He had a checking account, bank account —

Other Speaker:

Ralph Goad:

Ya know what? He did have a value. He had a roof over his head.

Yep, we both had that.
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Other Speaker: _. Well, you didn't. = 85 .
Ralph Goad: Oh, I did.

Other Speaker: You were gettin' evicted.

Ralph Goad: There you go lying again.

Other Speaker: You got evicted.

Ralph Goad: T had 4 months' back rent that they, the federal government did not, didn't pay the
rent. That's all. I mean, Ted knew all about that ****

Other Speaker: How'd ya feel when they kicked ya out? Did ya think that was fair?
Ralph Goad: Of course I didn't. I didn't like that. It's January 3 and they didn't even give me
the 24 hours **** outta here. Ya know, my clothes and my LD. was in there. 1 was at, I was

*#%% comin' over here.

Other Speaker: So they didn't tell ya that the rent wasn't gettin' paid until the day you got
evicted?

Ralph Goad: First I heard it. They were, um, sayin' something about —no, we went over there
to see the women because she said she was retirin'. We went Columbus Day and they weren't
open, so we didn't see 'em.

Other Speaker: So she told you she was retiring? Did you transfer to a different lady?

Ralph Goad: No, she didn't tell me we were retirin'.

Other Speaker: No, that she was retiring. That's what you just told me. Am I, I'm not
tryin' to put words in your mouth.

Ralph Goad: She did not tell me anything. Inever heard. I never saw. Ted said to me that
she's retiring and we had to get a new —

Other Speaker: Gotcha.

Ralph Goad: —payee. That's the, and then Ted somewhere got a new payee. Then Scott was
gonna take me he said, uh, then he said to take me over to get my same thing, but we never got
that far.

Other Speaker: Ya never did it?

Ralph Goad: We never got that far.
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Other Speaker: Okay.
Ralph Goad: I'm knockin' on the door, and he's not answerin'. **** again ****

Other Speaker: So, Ted, I just wanna be clear. I don't wanna put words in your mouth.
Ted told you that his, your, the payee was goin' outta business.

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Other Speaker: Or was retirin'. So Scott took him over there and got a new payee, but he
never took you over there to get a new payee.

Ralph Goad: No, he, he was going to. That was, um, **** 'cause when I got up, it was too late.

He went real early, and Vicki told me that you gotta, um, have them pay December's rent and so
this is January the 11", Why would you wait to tell me that December's rent hasn't been paid
when you're the one that collects the rent? And she hasn't given a rent receipt in 10 years so you
couldn't prove, even if you paid every single month for 10 years, you can't prove that you paid
any rent. She don't do that.

Other Speaker: So Vicki tells ya on January 11 that ya didn't pay rent way back in
December.

Ralph Goad: No, that'd be about January the 8%.
Other Speaker: January the 8%.

Ralph Goad: Because the 11% is the exact day when they came in and —

Other Speaker: Well, did ya tell Ted that, hey, I gotta get a new payee 'cause they're sayin
I'm not payin' rent.

Ralph Goad: Oh, no, no. We'd done that weeks before, but **** us around and **** and all
that.

Other Speaker: But once Vicki tells ya that hey, ya haven't paid rent, what do you do
about that?

Ralph Goad: Well, ya try to get your four checks. Social Security checks come out every
month. Why wouldn't ya have the check to pay your rent from Social Security, but they said
they don't know anything about it. So it all shows up here in California 4 years later, and they
took it all for these room and boards. I'm not seeing any room and board.

Other Speaker: So from January 8% though, you don't tell anybody —

Ralph Goad: *#** —
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Det. Nevills: = or try and get some help or talk to Ted about hey, they're tellin' me T didn't pay
my rent?

Ralph Goad: Oh, I went, went to the mental hospital. That's, that's the one that's supposed to
take care of everything when ya get into trouble, but —

Other Speaker: Except I called them and they said you didn't go over there.

Ralph Goad: Yes, I did go over there. You're —

Other Speaker: Which —

Ralph Goad: - callin' me a liar again.

Other Speaker: — well, which one —

Ralph Goad: I went over to the main one where you go, right there down the hall ****, and that
lady sent me over to Building 5, and I sat over there for 2 hours, and nobody even spoke to me,

so I went home.

Det. Nevills: Lemme ask ya this question. Have you ever been in Ted's room when he's not
there?

Ralph Goad: No.

Det. Nevills: Never been in there when he's not there?

Ralph Goad: No, because when he comes out, he locks his door.

Det. Nevills: Okay. So —

Ralph Goad: Even when we go out to smoke, and when he comes out, he locks the door.

Det. Nevills: —so if you went in Ted's room when he wasn't there, what would you be doin' in
there?

Ralph Goad: I've never been in Ted's room when he wasn't there.

Det. Nevills:  Okay.

Ralph Goad: Because it's locked. Ted locked his door if he's not in his apartment. Ain't that
stupid. **** answered the door sometimes when he's in there instead of lookin' out the

peephole, unlocks the door, what do ya want? Bad move.

Det. Nevills: You ever black out? You ever have any blackouts or anything like that?
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Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

No.

No? Never have?

Never.

How much do ya drink a day?

Mm, let's see, we drank, he's up here and we get twelve 16-ouncers so that's

6 quarts so we each drink 3 quarts a day.

Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills: .

Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

Three quarts a day?

Yeah.

And ya never have a blackout?

Nope.

Nope?

And sometimes he sends me over for more.
Ya have a good memory?

No, I couldn't say that. Um, comes and goes.
Help me out, Mr. Goad.

I don't know. I can't remember what I remember and what I don't remember. 1

don't know. I could remember things in detail from 1949, '50, '51 but somethin' that happened,
mm, 2 years ago, [ wouldn't —

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

Yeah, you'd remember somethin' that happened like this, right?

Ya just told it to me. Of course I remember it.

So you remembered killin' him then?

I didn't kill him, and ya keep repeatin' it. It isn't gonna help.

Well, [ just asked ya —

I'm not gonna say I killed him because you keep sayin' [ killed him.

I, I want ya to just tell me the truth.
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Ralph Goad: Then I have to, she told ya I didn't kill hixﬁ.

Det. Nevills: So —

Ralph Goad: You want the truth? Didn't kill him. You want me to lie? I'm not gonna do it.
Det. Nevills: Idon't want ya to lie. I want you to tell me the truth, but the problem is —
Ralph Goad: You want me to lie.

Det. Nevills: No, I want ya to tell me the truth.

Ralph Goad: You want me to lie.

Other Speaker: Is this, is it —

Det. Nevills: That's what we want.

Other Speaker: — we're not here to debate whether ya killed him. We came to see if you
would tell us the reasons, if —

Det. Nevills;: Why?

Other Speaker: — there was some sorta ****

Ralph Goad: There was absolutely nothing. You can either take it to court the way it is.
Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: Go talk to everybody that lives in that building **** mental hospital, talk to all
the workers, talk to the lady I met over here and put it together and then figure out somethin' that

Other Speaker: You see, but we have done all that though.
Ralph Goad: —**** me.
Other Speaker: No, you don't.

Ralph Goad: You're obviously not doin' your job. There's somethin' wrong, somethin' wrong,
doesn't set.

Other Speaker: I think ya got a lotta anger in ya, Ralph, to do somethin' like that.
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Ralph.Goad: 1 feel a lotta anger with you.two 'cause ya keep messin' with me and keep
somethin' I didn't do, lyin' to me. Now they're livin' —

Other Speaker: People look at that picture —

Ralph Goad: - livin'in **#**,

Other Speaker: — they are gonna think that you are a monster.
Ralph Goad: No, they're not.

Other Speaker: You gave us no reason to the contrary.

Ralph Goad: No, they're not. Ya got two strangers showin' a picture. It's worth half a damn,
but by who, you don't know and they don't know —

Other Speaker: But ya see, we got his blood on your clothes.
Ralph Goad: —and **** nobody —

Other Speaker: And we got a video of the room.

Ralph Goad: I don't believe that.

Other Speaker: Okay. Well, you can take that to the bank then.

Ralph Goad: Idon't believe the whole thing. Don't believe it. I believe ya got pictures of the
room **** dead. Ya know, if those pictures of are of him, like what **** —

Det. Nevills: What, ya think we just made it up?

Ralph Goad: —**** him and it don't look like him. Ted doesn't look like that. **** this
easygoin' guy sittin' over in that gray chair ****

Other Speaker: I think it's sad that you guys were friends for that long, drinkin' buddies
and then this happened.

Ralph Goad: We were more than drinkin' buddies, sober, drunk, ****,
Other Speaker: I think it's sad ****,
Ralph Goad: ****,

Other Speaker: I don't know what ****,

169



Ralph Goad: And yonkeep turnin' it around. ***#* kill them ****_ You're lying. You want me _._.

to lie and say I did something I didn't do.

Other Speaker: [ want you to tell us the truth.

Ralph Goad: No, you want me to lie and say somethin' I didn't do, and then you wanna say that
that's the truth. You're the liar. You're the one who's tryin' to make me lie, and I won't do that.
*%%* g0 much better. **** and you can't **** tried. Only hope to God he opened the door, only
wanted ****,

Other Speaker: I don't think Ted deserved that.

Ralph Goad: Iknow he didn't deserve that, but you come runnin' around now with your lie
here. Ooh, we know you did this. No, ya don't know whether he ****_ No, I don't but I'm not
gonna lie and say I did somethin' I didn't do. Take it to trial. That's the way itis. You'll waste
your time, the lawyers and everybody else. Lotta money. Or just go out and investigate and find
out who did it.

Det. Nevills: We did investigate and find out who did it.

Ralph Goad: No, it isn't me so don't keep lying 'cause then when you say it's me, you're the liar.
Det. Nevills: Nope, no, no, I mean —

Ralph Goad: You're the liar. You're the intimidator.

Det. Nevills: — **** you were the only one in and outta that room besides Ted.

Ralph Goad: That's a goddam lie.

Det. Nevills: No, it's not.

Ralph Goad: Well.

Det. Nevills: Well, from the 18% to the 13%.

Ralph Goad: Three, four, five, that puts **** —

Other Speaker: Ralph, how would anybody go in that room after he's dead?

Ralph Goad: They, oh, after he's dead? I'm not ****,

Other Speaker: But how would anyone **** —

Ralph Goad: **** go in the room before.
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Det. Nevills: So you know we're not bullshitting you. You know nobody can go in.that room
on the video afterwards because he's already dead.

Ralph Goad: They can't. The door would be locked and —

Det. Nevills: Exactly.

Ralph Goad: Yeah, nobody's goin' in there.

Det. Nevills: That's what I'm tellin' ya, so you know the video's not lyin'. Nobody can go —
Ralph Goad: No.

Det. Nevills: —in that room after.

Ralph Goad: **** all these people came in before that you say didn't come in here before that.
No, I was in there drinkin' **** time.

Other Speaker: We watched Ted go in.

Ralph Goad: **** cigar.

Other Speaker: We watched you go in. We watched you come out.
Ralph Goad: Couple of girls.

Other Speaker: No one else goes in.

Ralph Goad: Nope, that's a lie. Too many other people went in there for small amounts of
time, and Bernard sat around for hours with him.

Det. Nevills: We already talked to Bernard. He even said he didn't go in.
Ralph Goad: Yeah, sure he did.
Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: What's he gonna do? Oh, yeah, I just ran right in there and killed him. Idid it.
He'd have to be an idiot to say you went in there.

Det. Nevills: Not necessarily.
Ralph Goad: He'd have to be. Nobody goes to **** T went at noon ****,

Other Speaker: People do 'cause at a certain point, the evidence outweighs the story. At
least they can get their side of the story out.
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Ralph Goad: Well, that's ﬁot evidence or anything. That's intimidation **** on that.

Other Speaker: I'm not tryin' to intimidate ya.

Ralph Goad: Wastin' time, my time, your time. Well, ya clear a case and you can move onto
the next poor son of a bitch, set him up. ****_  **** ya know, I, I can't plan it around what
Rk ckaxx that [ killed the guy, well, I didn't, and you convince **** T killed the guy, and it
would be a lie. That's not what happened.

Det. Nevills: Well, we don't want ya to lie.

Ralph Goad: If you have the evidence —

Det. Nevills: We do.

Ralph Goad: —and, and I'm sure there's somethin' wrong with this 'cause I go down that
hallway every day for 8/ years, and now ya say that didn't happen.

Other Speaker: And ya knew those two cameras were there which is —
Ralph Goad: Not two cameras, four cameras.
Other Speaker: You knew they were there.

Ralph Goad: Two over here, two there and there, and they're the same around the stairs, and
they also got 'em there, uh, by the garbage.

Other Speaker: Has that been eatin' at ya since ya been down here?
Ralph Goad: Huh?

Other Speaker: Has it been eatin' at ya since ya been down here?
Ralph Goad: Ain't nothin' eatin' at me about anything.

Other Speaker: Okay.

Ralph Goad: You keep wanting and —

Other Speaker: You don't feel bad about what happened?

Ralph Goad: — **** of something, you accuse me of something I didn't do. **** you didn't do
and something **** does this.
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Other Speaker:

room.

Ralph Goad: You intimidate. You **** only time I went in the room was when he's there. He

Doesn't eat at me at all. 'Cause I watched the video of you going in that

doesn't ¥*** [ can't get ****,

Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:
Det. Nevills:

Ralph Goad:

You give us consent to search your room?

Huh?

Will you give us consent to search your room?

You've been in there a hundred times already.

I haven't.

5% January **%*

I, no, no, no, no, the room here.

Room here.

The room here on Pepper Oaks. Isn't that where you're living, Pepper Oaks?
Uh, Pepper what?

Pepper Oaks?

I wouldn't know. I've only been there a few hours. All I did was lay on the bed.
Or is it Clay Street? Which one you staying at? Are you staying at ****?

**x* like I told you. I was over at the Clay Street. Can't stand that, drugs,

gambling, turning ****_ No ****,

Other Speaker:
Ralph Goad:
just a little while. And I came outside to smoke a cigarette and that's ****_ It's that other place.
What do you —
Det. Nevills:
Ralph Goad:

Det. Nevills:

That's where you were arrested today though, right? Clay Street?

I wasn't arrested. Oh, no you mean, no, I was just over there. [ was over there

The Pepper Oaks place? Is there, is there a room number there?
Pepper Oaks?

Yeah.
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Ralph Goad_:- No, there's no f-c‘)bm number. There's a housé number. I don‘t know what it —
Det. Nevills: Well, can we go there and search your room?

Ralph Goad: Yes. **** [ laid on the mattress last night. That's it.

Other Speaker: Do you have anything over there? Any bags or anything?

Ralph Goad: Well, **** —

Other Speaker: k&% Okay.

Ralph Goad: What I'm wearing when I left **** I left with $70 and some change in my

pocket. Well, **** for $40.50 and **** 30 and that's what I've been doing ever since. ****

And there's four jackets still not and they do come in they said well, you can't have it. Well
kkkk

Other Speaker: And it all could've been avoided if Ted would've just let you stay there,
huh?

Ralph Goad: Say **** wouldn't let **** stay there any **** I told you that a hundred times.
You probably tell him **** but you seem to hate the guy's guts. He ****,

Det. Nevills: Alrighty.
Ralph Goad: Now let's give it a break.

Det. Nevills: If it's okay that we go there and search your room why don't you sign right there
for me. Right by the X.

Ralph Goad: Well it's been there about 12 hours. Slept on the mattress and then, then I left.
Det. Nevills: Then **** now you were staying at the Clay Street, right?

Ralph Goad: I was staying at Clay Street first.

Det. Nevills: So can we search that room, too?

Ralph Goad: Yeah.

Det. Nevills: Okay.

Ralph Goad: And there's no number on that room either.

Det. Nevills: Sign right there for me.
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Ralph Goad: ’fhey don't do that at places. **** aﬁd don't have numbers. You just click ****

and you just sit there.

Det. Nevills: Thank you. Got anything else, Nick?

Other Speaker: No.

Det. Nevills: Well —

Ralph Goad: You got a card?

Det. Nevills: Yes, I do. Absolutely.

Ralph Goad: Yeah, thanks, oh, I don't have the wallet to stick —
Det. Nevills: That's all right. And I appreciate you —

Other Speaker: EREPREE

Ralph Goad: Well, I'll stick 'em **** the other papers.

Det. Nevills: Appreciate you talking with us, Mr. Goad, but, uh —
Ralph Goad: Yeah, well —

Det. Nevills: —Idon't, I don't believe you're being truthful. Sorry.

Ralph Goad: And I think you both lied so **** you. Even, even. I don't trust you two. Ithink
you're lying and you don't trust me. You think I'm lying. Dave Nevills?

Det. Nevills: Dave Nevills, yes.

Ralph Goad: And, Nick Smith.

Other Speaker: Yes, sir.

Ralph Goad: Okay. **** over there **** and **** through where I *#**,

Other Speaker: Can I ask you about the bus ticket? You said it's 40 bucks, or the train

ticket.

Ralph Goad: Uh, it was a bus. I went there **** but they don't have trains anymore. So it's

$40.50.

Other Speaker: So you took, and it was Amtrak but they put you on a bus?
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Ralph Goad: Yes.

Other Speaker; Okay. Where did you get the money to pay for that ticket?
Ralph Goad: Ihad $70.00 and change in my pocket.

Other Speaker: Where did that come from ****.

Ralph Goad: ****,

Other Speaker: But how do you get your money?

Ralph Goad: Oh, I just got—

Other Speaker: You didn't have a pay service for months.
Ralph Goad: No, uh, 200, $40.50 of it was given ****,

Det. Nevills: Who gave it to you?

Other Speaker: Who gave you that?

Ralph Goad: The **** she was still there. 'Cause she said she was quitting in September but
she paid **** again in **** and November's ****.

Other Speaker: So November, and I apologize **** how much money did she give you in
November?

Ralph Goad: 2, $249.50.

Other Speaker: Okay. And that lasted you for 2 months?

Ralph Goad: Yep. Because Ted he's the one, he's giving me food. **** so I don't have to buy
the food. And I was making **** the store for him so it kind of worked out. And I, as soon as I
got this check I was gonna pay **** back plus the, uh, the late charges and everything.

Other Speaker: Have you ever been in Ted's wallet?

Ralph Goad: Huh?

Other Speaker: Ever been in Ted's wallet?

Ralph Goad: Yes. He'd say give me this or give me that. So I'm digging through all the cards

and, oh, is this one it? Said something other, something other, yes. And he had some kind of
papers he'd dig out there.
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Det. Nevills: What would he want you to get his cards for?

Ralph Goad: Because he couldn't see.

Other Speaker: Okay.

Ralph Goad: And he wanted it. And then he had other papers with something about **x% and
Pennsylvania **** thing. And **** and he said what year. And it was like 2009 or 2010.
Anyway, I'd get that for him and **** and he was calling people and doing something with that.
L, I don't know what he was doing. I was just, now that, he **** it's something to do with
Pennsylvania.

Det. Nevills: Other ****_ All right. Well, I guess we'll see you again.

Ralph Goad: Yeah. ****

Det. Nevills: You seem awful lackadaisical about it.

Ralph Goad: Idon't care one way or the other.

Det. Nevills: You don't care one way or the other?

Ralph Goad: **** 72 mother of god, mother of god. I can't get the money for **** and I don't
#xx*%  And he lives right here in Sacramento somewhere. **** all of that information's in that
black leather bag in the room over there in ****,

Other Speaker: All right, Mr. Goad.

Ralph Goad: **** just give me **%#%*,

Other Speaker: All right.

Det. Nevills: Thanks for talking to us, Mr. Goad.

Ralph Goad: Yeah, okay.
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